
           

REGULAR WORK SESSION & MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL

October 11, 2016

ADDISON TOWN HALL

5300 BELT LINE RD., DALLAS, TX 75254

5:15 PM DINNER & EXECUTIVE SESSION
6:00 PM WORK SESSION

7:30 PM REGULAR MEETING
             

Executive Session
 

1.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation
with its attorney on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551,
Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to: 

Western LOI/Sky B&B

Section 551.072, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the purchase,
exchange, lease, sale or value of real property 

4460 Belt Line Road, Addison, TX 75001
4500 Belt Line Road, Addison, TX 75001

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment,
employment, evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal
of a public officer or employee, pertaining to: 



City Secretary Evaluation
 

Reconvene from Executive Session
 

2.   RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into
Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matter discussed in
Executive Session.

 

WORK SESSION
 
 

3.   Present And Discuss The American's With Disabilities Act
Self-Evaluation And Transition Plan.

 

4.   Discussion Of A Partnership Opportunity Between The Town Of
Addison And Charter Communication (Time Warner) To Provide
WiFi Services At Addison Parks, Conference Centre, Treehouse,
And Athletic Club.

 

5.   Present An Update On The Midway Road Reconstruction Project.
 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and Council
Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

6.   Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation.
Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with 



fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on
items that are on the current agenda. In accordance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot take action on items not
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a
future agenda.

 

Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 

7.   Consider Approval Of The September 29, 2016 Regular Meeting
Minutes.   

 

8.   Consider Approval Of The Purchase And Installation Of Eighteen
(18) In-Car Video Camera Systems And Seventy-Four (74) Body
Cameras Through Texas Department Of Information Resources
(DIR) Contract With Coban Research And Technologies In An
Amount Not To Exceed $225,213. 

 

9.   Consider Approval Of The Purchase And Installation Of
Twenty-Seven (27)Panasonic Rugged Laptops And Accessories
For Police Vehicles Through Texas Department Of Information
Resources (DIR) Contract With ARC Government Solutions In An
Amount Not To Exceed $126,926.81.

 

10.   Consider Approval Of A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into An Agreement With The Texas Department Of
Transportation To Participate In The Routine Airport Maintenance
Program (RAMP) Grant For Airport Improvements At Addison
Airport In An Amount Not To Exceed $50,000.

 

11.   Consider Approval Of A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into An Agreement With The WaterTower Theatre For
Use Of The Addison Theatre Centre.

 

12.   Consider Approval Of A Resolution Adopting A Revised Housing
Policy For The Town of Addison.

 

13.   Consider Approval Of A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager



13.   Consider Approval Of A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager
To Enter Into An Events Sponsorship Agreement With DCO
Reality, Inc., For The Purposes Of Sponsoring Events At
Vitruvian Park To Include, But Not Limited To, The Vitruvian
Nights Live, Vitruvian Salsa Nights And The Vitruvian Holiday
Lights Display In An Amount Not To Exceed $185,000 For Fiscal
Year 2016-17.

 

14.   Consider Approval Of An Award Of Bid For The Purchase Of (1)
2017 Sutphen SPH-100 Aerial Platform Fire Truck, Under The
Town's Inter-local Agreement With The Texas Local Government
Purchasing Cooperative Known As BuyBoard In The Amount Of
$1,171,870.76.

 

Regular Items
 

15.   Presentation Regarding The Carrollton-Farmers Branch
Independent School District Budget And Financial Structure.

 

16.   Present, Discuss And Consider Approval Of A Resolution Approving
Amending A Contract With Swagit Productions, LLC For
The Purchase And Installation Of Three (3) Additional High
Definition (HD) Broadcast And Streaming Systems At Town Hall
Parlor, Treehouse, And The Conference Centre In An Amount Not
To Exceed $199,867.65.

 

17.   Present, Discuss And Consider Approval Of A Resolution
Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Professional
Services Agreement With R.H.Shackelford, Inc., For
Program/Project Management Services For Various Capital And
Bond Projects In The Amount Of $235,004.70.

 

18.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, And Consider Approval Of An 
Ordinance Amending The Code Of Ordinances Of The Town Of
Addison By Amending Appendix A - Zoning, Article XX (Special
Uses), Section 1, Subsection A. (27), By Adding That A Special
Use Permit For The Sale Of Beer And Wine For Off-Premises
Consumption Only May Be Issued In Conjunction With The
Issuance Of A Special Use Permit For A Hotel.  Case 1746-Z/Town
of Addison.



 

19.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, and Consider Approval Of An 
Ordinance Changing The Zoning On Property Located At 4875
Belt Line Road, On The North Side Road of Belt Line Road In
Between Quorum Drive And Addison Road, Which Property Is
Currently Zoned C-2, Commercial-2, With A Special Use
Permit For A Hotel, By Approving A Special Use Permit For The
Sale Of Beer And Wine For Off-Premises Consumption Only.
Case 1745-SUP/Home2 Suites by Hilton.

 

20.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, And Consider Approval Of An 
Ordinance Amending Planned Development District O14-056 That
Zoned Property Generally Located At 14675 Dallas Parkway,
Located South Of Quorum Drive On The Tollway, In Order To Add
The Sale of Alcoholic Beverages For On-Premises Consumption
Only As A Use That May Be Authorized Upon The Issuance Of A
Special Use Permit; And By Approving A Special Use Permit For
The Sale Of Alcoholic Beverages For On-Premises Consumption
Only. Case 1748-Z/Tollway Center Cafe.

 

21.   Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss And Consider Approval Of An
Ordinance That Rezones Approximately 39.4 Acres Of Property
Located At 17001 Addison Road, Located Near The Corner Of
Addison Road And Sojourn Drive, Which Is Currently Zoned R-1,
Residential-1, With A Special Use Permit For A Private School
And Approximately 1.74 Acres Of Property Located At 4350
Sojourn Drive, Which Is Currently Zoned PD, Planned
Development, In Order To Create A New Planned Development
District Allowing A Private School and Approving A Concept Plan
and Development Standards, On Application From Trinity
Christian Academy. Case 1738/Z/Trinity Christian Academy.

 

22.   Present, Discuss, Consider, And Provide Direction Related To
The Site Selection And Design Of The U.S. Customs and Border
Protection Facility At Addison Airport.

 

23.   Present, Discuss, Consider And Provide Direction Related To Action
Needed To Adopt The Addison Athletic Club Master Plan.   

 

24.   Discussion Regarding The Role Of The City Council In The



24.   Discussion Regarding The Role Of The City Council In The
Consideration And/Or Approval Of Severance Agreements
Between The Town Of Addison And Town Employees.

 

Adjourn Meeting
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed on
the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with the attorney for
the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real property);
§551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel); §551.076
(deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security personnel or
devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any decision held
on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session following the
conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

 

Posted:
Laura Bell, DATE, 5:00pm

THE TOWN OF ADDISON IS ACCESSIBLE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES.
PLEASE CALL (972) 450-7090 AT LEAST

48 HOURS IN ADVANCE IF YOU NEED ASSISTANCE.



   
AI-1929     1.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation with its attorney on a
matter in which the duty of the attorney to the governmental body under the Texas
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to: 

Western LOI/Sky B&B

Section 551.072, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, sale or
value of real property 

4460 Belt Line Road, Addison, TX 75001
4500 Belt Line Road, Addison, TX 75001

Section 551.074, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the appointment, employment,
evaluation, reassignment, duties, discipline or dismissal of a public officer or employee,
pertaining to: 

City Secretary Evaluation

BACKGROUND:
n/a

RECOMMENDATION:
n/a



   
AI-1930     2.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with Texas Government
Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will reconvene into Regular Session to consider
action, if any, on matter discussed in Executive Session.

BACKGROUND:
N/A

RECOMMENDATION:
N/A



   
AI-1927     3.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present And Discuss The American's With Disabilities Act Self-Evaluation And
Transition Plan.

BACKGROUND:
The Town's Fiscal Year 2017 approved budget included $300,000 in the Infrastructure
Investment Fund for the development of an American's with Disabilities Act
Self-evaluation and Transition Plan. Staff will provide an briefing on the Federal
requirement, the Town's responsibility to meet that requirement, the proposed process,
and the timeline and schedule of the development of the plan.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.



   
AI-1736     4.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Information Technology

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discussion Of A Partnership Opportunity Between The Town Of Addison And
Charter Communication (Time Warner) To Provide WiFi Services At Addison
Parks, Conference Centre, Treehouse, And Athletic Club.

BACKGROUND:
To support the high demand for wireless coverage while balancing the needs of
business, municipalities, residential lifestyle and communities Charter Communication
(Time Warner) discreetly places WiFi equipment in many locations. 

Outdoor pedestrian areas
Attached to buildings, rooftops, or light posts
Inside malls, stadiums/arenas
Campuses and municipalities
Congregation areas such as parks and plazas 

Customized to blend anesthetically with environment 
Addison is one of few cities that Charter Communication (Time Warner) has chosen to
deploy WiFi services. Below are a few benefits that Addison will receive from the
proposed partnership: 

WiFi coverage in public spaces
Free WiFi up to 60 mins per day
Hardware included
Indoor/outdoor WiFi Access Points (APs)
Necessary cabling (Coax Ethernet) and power adapters
Construction, installation and support

Charter Communication (Time Warner) will install, manage and support the network - at
no cost to Addison. End user support through toll free number.

No impact on host property's own networks
WiFi traffic segregated to dedicated bandwidth
Bandwidth requirements scoped as part of design planning
Management Portal with Reporting Tools

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.





   
AI-1918     5.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present An Update On The Midway Road Reconstruction Project.

BACKGROUND:
The Midway Road reconstruction project was selected and the bond authorization voted
on as part of the 2012 bond package.  The amount approved for this project was
$16,000,000.  Staff provided an update to Council on July 12, 2016, and August 15,
2016, to discuss the status of the project and overall budget.  Staff will provide additional
information based on the feedback from the August 15, 2016, Council meeting, as well
as design and cost refinement options.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.



   
AI-1926     7.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of The September 29, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes.   

BACKGROUND:
The City Secretary has prepared the minutes for the Council's approval.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Minutes



D R A F T
OFFICIAL ACTIONS OF THE ADDISON CITY

COUNCIL
WORK SESSION

September 29, 2016
Addison Town Hall, 5300 Belt Line Rd., Dallas, TX 75254
5:15 PM Executive Session
6:00 PM Work Session
7:30 PM Regular Meeting
Present: Mayor Meier; Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten; Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore

Hughes; Councilmember Angell; Councilmember Duffy; Councilmember
Walden; Councilmember Wilcox 

 

 

               

Executive Session
 

  1.   Closed (executive) session of the Addison City Council pursuant to:

Section 551.071, Tex. Gov. Code, to conduct a private consultation
with its attorney on a matter in which the duty of the attorney to the
governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of
Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with
Chapter 551, Tex. Gov. Code, pertaining to 

4800 Airport Parkway
Open Meetings Act
The ponds or lakes at Vitruvian Park located within the
vicinity and east of the intersection of Vitruvian Way and
Ponte Ave., and Farmers Branch Creek 

Section 551.072, Tex. Gov. Code, to deliberate the purchase,
exchange, lease , or value of real property, pertaining to 

Potential Development on Claire Chennault On Addison
Airport

  

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 5:19 pm.



  Council convened into Executive Session at 5:19 pm.

Councilmember Angell entered the Executive Session at 5:25 pm.
 

Reconvene from Executive Session
 

  2.   RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION: In accordance with
Texas Government Code, Chapter 551, the City Council will
reconvene into Regular Session to consider action, if any, on matter
discussed in Executive Session.

  

 
  Council recessed from Executive Session at 6:37 pm.

Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten moved to authorize the City Manager or
his designee to negotiate a Letter of Intent for potential
development at the Jet Port on Claire Chennault at the Addison
Airport. Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes seconded the motion.
The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

 

WORK SESSION
 
 

  3.   Present And Discuss The Council Calendar For Meetings In
October, November, December 2016 And January 2017.

  

 
  City Secretary, Laura Bell, presented the item to Council. The

meeting for October 25 would need to be rescheduled due to the
DART Board meeting that Council needs to attend. Also, the
meetings in November and December had possible conflicts due to
the holidays.

Council agreed to move the October 25 meeting to October 20. The
two regular meetings in November will be November 8th and 
November14th. The regular meeting in December will be on
December 13th.

 

  4.   Present and Discuss The Proposed FY2017 WaterTower
Theatre Use Agreement.

  

 
  Theatre Technical Specialist, Scott Guenther, presented the item to



  Theatre Technical Specialist, Scott Guenther, presented the item to
Council. He detailed the proposed changes to the agreement. He
stated staff has spoken to the Theatre management and they have
agreed on the terms of the agreement. This item will come back to
Council for approval at the next meeting.

Council agreed with the terms of the agreement and the
modifications that had been made from the previous agreement.

 

REGULAR MEETING
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

 Announcements and Acknowledgements regarding Town and
Council Events and Activities

Discussion of Events/Meetings
 

 Public Comment.
The City Council invites citizens to address the City Council on any
topic not on this agenda. Please fill out a City Council Appearance
Card and submit it to a city staff member prior to Public Participation.
Speakers are allowed up to three (3) minutes per speaker with 
fifteen (15) total minutes on items of interest or concern and not on
items that are on the current agenda. In accordance with the Texas
Open Meetings Act, the City Council cannot take action on items not
listed on the agenda. The Council may choose to place the item on a
future agenda.

 
  Neil Hewitt, 3756 Park Place, spoke regarding the stop signs at

Beltway and Les Lacs and possible other systems that could go
there to deter speeding instead.

 

 Consent Agenda:
All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine by the City Council and will be
enacted by one motion with no individual consideration. If individual consideration of an item is
requested, it will be pulled from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

 
  Councilmember Wilcox asked to pull item #6 &12. Mayor Meier

asked to pull item #8.

Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten moved to approve items
7,9,10,11,13,14 &15 as submitted. Councilmember Duffy seconded
the motion. The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.



Item #6- Councilmember Wilcox stated that he felt that the caption
for Item #4 on the September 13, 2016 agenda, alluded that the
broadband connectivity had an increase in cost to users. Discussion
regarding the intent of the item followed. While Council discussed
the caption could not be changed at this time, the intent of change
was agreed to in concept. Councilmember Wilcox moved to
approve item #6 with a note stating that in the minutes it is reflected
that the there was no cost increase for the broadband connectivity
and actually a cost benefit. Mayor Meier seconded the motion. The
vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

Item #8- Mayor Meier stated that the agreement for Metrocrest
Chamber needed to reflect Erin' Carney's name under the President
title. Mayor Meier moved to approve item #8 with the name change
to Erin Carney as President on the agreement. Mayor Pro Tempore
Arfsten seconded the motion. The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the
motion.

Item #12- Councilmember Wilcox stated he was needing
clarification regarding the portions of the agreement that covers
fly-overs. Councilmember Wilcox stated that he thought the
agreement should state that the fly-overs were during special
events. Council discussed that the funding has been listed as
general marketing expenses in the past. This year the bulleted list
named specific things that funding would be used for. The funding
purpose has not changed. Councilmember Wilcox moved to
approve item #12 as submitted. Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore
Hughes seconded the motion. The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the
motion.

 

  6.   Consider Approval Of The September 13, 2016 Regular Meeting
Minutes.

  

 

  7.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With
LaunchAbility In An Amount Not To Exceed $2,500.

  

 

  8.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With
Metrocrest Chamber Of Commerce In An Amount Not To Exceed
$35,000.

  

 

  9.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City   



  9.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With
Metrocrest Community Clinic In An Amount Not To Exceed $5,000.

  

 

  10.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With
Metrocrest Social Services In An Amount Not To Exceed $61,000.

  

 

  11.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With The
Family Place In An Amount Not To Exceed $12,000.

  

 

  12.   Consider A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter
Into A Grant Funding Agreement With The Cavanaugh Flight
Museum In An Amount Not To Exceed $50,000.

  

 

  13.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With
WaterTower Theatre In An Amount Not To Exceed $445,000.

  

 

  14.   Consider And Approve A Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager To Enter Into A Grant Funding Agreement With The
Addison Arbor Foundation In An Amount Not To Exceed $47,500.

  

 

  15.   Consider An Ordinance Amending The Code Of Ordinances By
Amending Chapter 82 (Utilities), Article I (In General), Division 5
(Rates And Charges)By Amending Section 82-76 And Section
82-77 Increasing Sewer And Water Rates For All Customer
Classifications. 

  

 

Regular Items
 

  16.   Present, Discuss, And Consider Action Regarding An Ordinance
Amending The Town's Annual Budget For The Fiscal Year
Ending September 30, 2016.

  

 
  Interim Chief Financial Officer, Scott Neills, introduced the item.

Senior Analyst, Paul Debuff, presented the item and supporting
information to Council.

Council discussed the amendments done earlier in the year and the
projects included in the Special Projects fund.



Councilmember Walden moved to approve the item as submitted.
Councilmember Angell seconded the motion. The vote was cast 7-0
in favor of the motion.

 

  17.   Hold A Public Hearing, Present, Discuss, And Consider Action
On The Housing Policy For The Town of Addison. 

  

 
  Assistant Director Development Services, Charles Goff, presented

the item to Council. Mr. Goff stated after the last discussion with
Council, staff was directed to bring back options for wording within
the policy regarding possible amendments to the existing policy and
to establish a process for the community to provide input on any
changes. Mr. Goff stated this item now includes options for that
wording.

Council discussed the amendments proposed.

Mayor Meier opened the Public Hearing.

Shelia Barkofske, 4130 Proton Dr, spoke against the amendments
as presented allowing the opportunity of rezoning for apartments.

Mayor Meier closed the Public Hearing.

Mayor Meier moved to keep the current policy as written and not
adopt the proposed changes. Councilmember Wilcox seconded the
motion. The vote was cast 3-4 against the motion. Mayor Pro
Tempore Arfsten, Councilmembers Angell, Walden and Duffy voted
against.

Council discussed the item further offering wording changes to the
proposed amendments.

Councilmember Angell moved to approve amendments as
proposed. Councilmember Duffy seconded the motion.

Council continued to discuss the item.

Councilmember Angell withdrew his motion. Councilmember Angell
then moved to direct staff to bring back a policy with the following
amendments: Change the first bulletpoint in the policy to state:
Where feasible and appropriate, new housing should increase the
proportion of fee-simple ownership in Addison’s housing mix. 
Apartment-only rezoning is unlikely to be approved, as currently the
ratio of rental to ownership properties is higher than desired.  And
that the 5th bulletpoint would state: The City Council acknowledges



that there may be exceptional projects that do not comply with
elements of this policy. The Council encourages developers and
staff to pursue projects that represent the highest and best use of
each property and that advance portions of this policy or other Town
goals. Mayor Pro Tempore Arfsten seconded the motion. The vote
was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.
 

 

  18.   Present And Discuss Transportation Planning And The 2016
Master Transportation Plan Update.

  

 
  Assistant Director Development Services, Charles Goff, presented

the item. Mr. Goff stated that this item is intended to be
informational, give Council an update on the process and what to
expect when the document is produced to Council.

Council discussed the item and thought the presentation was very
informational. 

 

  19.   Present And Discuss The Development Of The Addison Airport
Southeast Quadrant Located Across Addison Road From
Addison Circle Park; And Authorize The City Manager To Enter
Into A Letter Of Intent With The Recommended Developer. 

  

 
  Council convened into Executive Session at 9:55 pm.

Council reconvened into regular session at 10:04 pm.

Infrastructure and Development Services Director, Lisa Pyles,
presented the item to Council.

Council discussed the item as submitted.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tempore Hughes moved to concur with the
selection of Addison Jet Center as the developer and direct the City
Manager to negotiate and enter into a Letter of Intent with the
proposed developer. Councilmember Wilcox seconded the motion.
The vote was cast 7-0 in favor of the motion.

 

Adjourn Meeting
 
  The meeting was adjourned at 10:04 pm.
 

NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed



NOTE: The City Council reserves the right to meet in Executive Session closed
to the public at any time in the course of this meeting to discuss matters listed
on the agenda, as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Texas
Government Code, Chapter 551, including §551.071 (private consultation with
the attorney for the City); §551.072 (purchase, exchange, lease or value of real
property); §551.074 (personnel or to hear complaints against personnel);
§551.076 (deployment, or specific occasions for implementation of security
personnel or devices); and §551.087 (economic development negotiations). Any
decision held on such matters will be taken or conducted in Open Session
following the conclusion of the Executive Session.
 

___________________________
Mayor-Todd Meier

Attest:

_______________________________
City Secretary-Laura Bell



   
AI-1749     8.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Information Technology

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of The Purchase And Installation Of Eighteen (18) In-Car
Video Camera Systems And Seventy-Four (74) Body Cameras Through
Texas Department Of Information Resources (DIR) Contract With Coban
Research And Technologies  In An Amount Not To Exceed $225,213. 

BACKGROUND:
The existing in-car video systems and body cameras were purchased and installed in
2011. Since the last purchase the Police department has been contributing to the 
Information Technology Internal Service Fund on an annual basis. This fund
allows the Town to replace systems including hardware and software on a regular basis
in order to be adequately responsive to the increasing demands on the network.
According to our equipment replacement program we are scheduled to replace In-Car
video camera systems every 3 years. However, due to the low hardware failure rate we
have been able to use the existing devices for five (5) years.

The Town will purchase the in-car video camera systems and body cameras from Coban
Research and Technologies Inc. on a contract through the Texas Department of
Information Resources (DIR). DIR is an agency that bids out services and products for
its members to provide the leverage to achieve better pricing on products, equipment
and services.  

Addison is one of Coban’s pioneer customers and since then they have delivered over
12,500 in-car digital video systems to agencies including LAPD, Chicago PD and
Washington State Patrol. Their system is the most cost effective solution on the market
with a complete video management tools, compact and flexible solution, simple to use,
rugged design, unlimited pre-event recording options, intelligent wireless microphone
design, and it offers the Failsafe technology.

Failsafe technology is similar to a black box on an airplane. It continuously
records to the internal drive, while storing event-based video on the removable drive.  
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments



Body Cameras Quote
In-Car Video Cameras Quote



11375 W. Sam Houston Parkway South #800

Houston, TX 77031

P. 281-925-0488 | F. 281-925-0535

Quotation Expiration: 60 Days

Terms: Net 30 Days

FOB Point: Destination

20151202

Prepared for: Addison Police Department (Addison, Texas)
Date

Address
PO Box 9010 8/30/2016

City, State
Addison, TX 75001

COBAN ECHO BODY WORN CAMERA List Price Quoted Quantity Total

ECHO-01

COBAN ECHO Body Worn Camera Package

(Includes: ECHO Camera, 110v Wall Adapter, USB Cable, Spring Clip, 1 year factory

warranty)

$466.00 407.00$ 74 $30,118.00

ECHO-CLU-001

ECHO 3-Year, All-Inclusive Local Storage Plan

Includes 3-year software/support license and warranty, and one replacement camera at

the end of 2nd year.

$1,100.00 857.00$ 74 $63,418.00

ECHO-03 ECHO IR CLIP Camera $120.00 101.00$ 2 $202.00

ECHO-05
ECHO Single Bay Vehicle/Office Upload/Charging Cradle

( incl.CABLE- USB 16FT EXTENSION W/ REPEATER for EDGE/M7 Integration)
$120.00 101.00$ 18 $1,818.00

ECHO-04 ECHO 6-Bay Upload/Charging Cradle $578.00 505.00$ 12 $6,060.00

ECHO-016 ECHO Magnet Z-Clip $25.00 20.00$ 74 $1,480.00

SHIPPING List Price Quoted Quantity Total

LFEE-053 Shipping - Fusion or 6-bay dock for bodycam $25.00 25.00$ 6 $150.00

LFEE-054 Shipping - Bodycam or single/double dock for bodycam $15.00 15.00$ 74 $1,110.00

$128,330.00

-$23,974.00

$104,356.00

-$1,480.00

$102,876.00

Terms /Conditions / Assumptions:

1. If required, bid bond, performance bond, permits and fees will be at additional costs.

2. A tax exempt number will be provided upon acceptance of this proposal.

QT Version

Prepared by:

LaMonica Archer (281-900-3500)

Total List

Line Item Discount

Subtotal

Additional Discount (s)

Taxes (if applicable)

GRAND TOTAL

Quote #

738611-M

8/30/2016 Page 1



11375 W. Sam Houston Parkway South #800

Houston, TX 77031

P. 281-925-0488 | F. 281-925-0535

Quotation Expiration: 60 Days

Terms: Net 30 Days

FOB Point: Destination

20151202

Prepared for: Addison Police Department (Addison, Texas)
Date

Address
PO Box 9010 6/14/2016

City, State
Addison, TX 75001

Contact
Hamid Khaleghipour

COBAN IN-CAR SYSTEM - EDGE-HD List Price Quoted Quantity Total

SYSED-05 EDGE Hi-Def IN-CAR SYSTEM

5.7" touchscreen monitor

GPS

Smart Power Module (SPM) w/ UPS

8 GB internal SSD OS drive

64 GB internal SSD Fail-Safe drive

64 GB removable SSD

Front facing HD color camera

Backseat wide angle IR camera

Wireless microphone

Covert backseat microphone

Internal 802.11 a/g/n/ac wireless card

Three year limited hardware warranty

$5,672.00 4,944.00$ 18 $88,992.00

MZZ-01 Adapter Plate (required for all cars, except for Ford Crown Victoria and 2012 Dodge

Charger) $110.00 95.00$ 17 $1,615.00

SCPKB-DRA-0100 G5 Wireless Microphone Package

(Includes: Transmitter, Battery, Lapel Mic, Antenna, Charger, AC/DC Adapters for

charger and Leather Holster.) $407.00 355.00$ 10 $3,550.00

STANDARD EXTENDED HARDWARE WARRANTY List Price Quoted Quantity Total

WARR-E4 EDGE Fourth Year Extended Warranty
$460.00 400.00$ 18 $7,200.00

WARR-E5 EDGE Fifth Year Extended Warranty
$632.00 550.00$ 18 $9,900.00

DVMS - SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND TECHNICAL SUPPORT List Price Quoted Quantity Total

WLIC-01 COBAN DVMS SOLUTION

(Software License with First Year Technical Support ) $265.00 250.00$ 18 $4,500.00

WMAIN-110 COBAN DVMS SOLUTION ANNUAL RENEWAL

(Software Maintenance and Technical Support ) $290.00 225.00$ 36 $8,100.00

SHIPPING List Price Quoted Quantity Total

LFEE-050 Shipping - In-Car Equipment (EDGE, M7 MDC, M7 VMDC, ALPR) $50.00 50.00$ 18 $900.00

$143,802.00

-$19,045.00

$124,757.00

Trade in & Bundle discount
-$2,420.00

$122,337.00

Quote #

755582-2

Terms /Conditions / Assumptions:

1. If required, bid bond, performance bond, permits and fees will be at additional costs.

2. A tax exempt number will be provided upon acceptance of this proposal.

QT Version

Prepared by:

LaMonica Archer (281-900-3500)

Total List

Line Item Discount

Subtotal

Additional Discount (s)

Taxes (if applicable)

GRAND TOTAL

6/14/2016 Page 1



   
AI-1750     9.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Information Technology

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of The Purchase And Installation Of Twenty-Seven
(27)Panasonic Rugged Laptops And Accessories For Police Vehicles
Through Texas Department Of Information Resources (DIR) Contract With
ARC Government Solutions  In An Amount Not To Exceed $126,926.81.

BACKGROUND:
The existing rugged laptops were purchased and installed in 2011. Since the last
purchase the Police department has been contributing to the Information
Technology Internal Service Fund on an annual basis. This fund allows the Town to
replace systems, including hardware and software, on a regular basis in order to be
adequately responsive to the increasing demands on the network. According to our
equipment replacement program we are scheduled to replace the Mobile Data Computer
(MDC) every 3 years. However, due to the low hardware failure rate we have been able
to use the existing devices for last five (5) years.

Due to needed functionalities, a unique operating environment, and limited real estate to
operate these devices a decision was made not to release a RFP to purchase these
devices. Instead, we began evaluating two (2) different Systems from Panasonic and
Getac. These devices were installed in selected police cruisers and were tested by the
committee members for almost 3 months.

The main objective for this committee was to select a solution that offers: 

Ease-of-usage and environment-friendly devices which were the main
concerns for the police officers,

1.

Flexibility, compatibility, modularity, reliability, adaptability, and scalability
which was the Information Technology Staff’s concern.

2.

Committee members were very happy with the performance of the Panasonic laptops
and they recommend the Panasonic CF-31 and CF-54 Toughbook models.

The Town will purchase the laptops from Panasonic on a contract through the Texas
Department of Information Resources (DIR). DIR is an agency that bids out services and
products for its members to provide the leverage to achieve better pricing on
products, equipment and services.  
 

RECOMMENDATION:



Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Rugged Panasonic Laptops Quote



Quantity Model Description Unit Extended

5.00 CF-20C0-00VM DIR-TSO-2520  Public Sector Specific - Elite 
RFID, Win10 Pro, Intel Core m5-6Y57 1.10 
GHz, vPro, 10.1 in WUXGA 10-pt Gloved 
Multi Touch+Digitizer, 8GB, 256GB SSD, 
Intel WiFi a/b/g/n/ac, TPM, Bluetooth, Dual 
Pass (Ch1:WWAN/Ch2:WWAN), 2D Bar 
Laser (N6603), Contactless Smartcard/NFC, 
Webcam, 8MP Cam, Bridge Battery, 
Emissive Backlit Keyboard, Toughbook 
Preferred, 3 Year Public Sector Service and 
Support Package

NON RETURNABLE

$3,376.16USD $16,880.80USD

20.00 CF-3113-00VM DIR-TSO-2520  Public Sector Specific - 
Premium, Win10 Pro COA, Intel Core i5-
5300U 2.30GHz, vPro, 13.1" XGA Touch, 
8GB(4+4), 256GB SSD, Intel WiFi a/b/g/n/ac, 
TPM, Bluetooth, Dual Pass 
(Upper:WWAN/Lower:Selectable), 4G LTE 
Multi Carrier (EM7355), GPS, Webcam, 
Emissive Backlit Keyboard, No DVD Drive, 
Toughbook Preferred, 3 Year Public Sector 
Service and Support Package

$3,573.46USD $71,469.20USD

2.00 CF-54F5-01VM DIR-TSO-2520  Public Sector Specific - Elite 
RFID, Win10 Pro, Intel Core i5-6300U 
2.40GHz, vPro, 14.0" FHD, Gloved Multi 
Touch, 256GB SSD, 8GB(4+4), Intel WiFi 
a/b/g/n/ac, TPM, Bluetooth, 4G LTE Multi 
Carrier (EM7355), Dual Pass 
(Ch1:GPS/Ch2:WWAN), GPS, Contactless 
Smartcard/NFC, Emissive Backlit Keyboard, 
DVD Multi-drive, Webcam, Toughbook 
Preferred, 3 Year Public Sector Service and 
Support Package

NON RETURNABLE

$2,895.06USD $5,790.12USD

27.00 CF-SVCPSY5 DIR-TSO-2520  PANASONIC : 4th and 5th 
years Public Safety Service Bundle Add on 
(Year 4 & 5 only). Must be purchased in 
conjunction with PS bundle base unit. 
Includes Premier, Protection Plus, Customer 
Portal, Disk Image Management, HDD No 
Return

$560.15USD $15,124.05USD

18.00 DS-PAN-112-2 DIR-SDD-1934  TOUGHBOOK CERTIFIED 
DOCKING STATION FOR PANASONIC CF-
30/31 LAPTOPS W\ POWER SUPPLY - 
DUAL HIGH GAIN

$752.28USD $13,541.04USD

40.00 RDR-179-01 NON Contract  pcProx 82 Series 13.56 CSN; 
Black; Vertical
USB Nano Reader

$90.54USD $3,621.60USD

100.00 CRD-503-100 NON Contract  iClass Key Fob (13.56 MHz) $5.00USD $500.00USD

To: Notes:

Account Manager:

Expiry Date:

John D. Rowell

07-Oct-16Quote #:   5034-04
  5034-01Town of Addison

PO Box 9010  
Addison Texas 75001
United States
ATTN:Accounts Payable

1Page of 2

 ARC 9211 Waterford Centre Blvd Suite 202, Austin, Texas 78758
Phone:  Fax:  

Quote
Printed: 09-Sep-16 08:21 AM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)



Product Total:

Project Services:

Shipping And Handling:

Total:

$126,926.81USD

$0.00USD

$0.00USD

$126,926.81USD

Approved By: Jeremy Kling

Payment Term: N30
For questions regarding this quote, please 
contact your sales representative at 512-452-
0651.  This quote is valid for 30 days unless 
otherwise noted.
These prices do NOT include taxes, insurance, 
shipping, delivery, setup fees, or any cables or 
cabling services or material unless specifically 
listed above. All prices are subject to change 
without notice. Supply subject to availability.

2Page of 2

 ARC 9211 Waterford Centre Blvd Suite 202, Austin, Texas 78758
Phone:  Fax:  

Quote
Printed: 09-Sep-16 08:21 AM (UTC-06:00) Central Time (US & Canada)



   
AI-1861     10.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into
An Agreement With The Texas Department Of Transportation To Participate
In The Routine Airport Maintenance Program (RAMP) Grant For Airport
Improvements At Addison Airport In An Amount Not To Exceed $50,000.

BACKGROUND:
The Town of Addison annually receives a Routine Airport Maintenance Program (RAMP)
grant administered by the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT), Aviation
Department under the State Block Grant program. Maintenance projects on the airport
such as, pavement repairs, pavement markings, general maintenance, are eligible for
this grant. This year staff has earmarked the grant to be used for various pavement
improvements.

The grant will be a 50/50 matching grant, $50,000 TxDOT Funds and $50,000 Town of
Addison Airport Funds.  The funds required for the Town's share is budgeted and
available in the Airport fund.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS
RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS ACCEPTING R.A.M.P. FUNDS FROM THE TEXAS
DEPARTMENT  OF  TRANSPORTATION  FOR  IMPROVEMENTS  TO
THE ADDISON AIRPORT, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO
EXECUTE THE NECESSARY CONTRACTS AND AGREEMENTS AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, hereinafter referred to as Sponsor, intends to make 
certain improvement to the Addison Airport; and

WHEREAS, the general description of the project is described as: Airport Improvements 
(Taxiway Improvements & AWOS Maintenance); and

WHEREAS, the Sponsor is currently eligible for R.A.M.P. funds of $50,000; and

WHEREAS, the Sponsor has available and will provide at least 50% of the project costs 
with local funds;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Sponsor hereby accepts R.A.M.P. funds from the Texas Department
of Transportation for these improvements, a copy the Texas Department of Transportation Grant
for Routine Airport  Maintenance Program is attached to the Resolution as  Exhibit A and is
hereby approved and the City Manager is authorized to execute the Grant. 

Section 2. The Sponsor hereby directs Wesley S. Pierson, City Manager to execute
on behalf of the Sponsor, at the appropriate time, and with the appropriate authorizations of this
governing body, all contracts and agreements with the Texas Department of Transportation, and
such  other  parties  as  shall be  necessary  and  appropriate  for  the  implementation  of  the
improvements to the Addison Airport.

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 11th day of October, 2016.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor



ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1901     11.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: City Manager

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into
An Agreement With The WaterTower Theatre For Use Of The Addison
Theatre Centre.

BACKGROUND:
During the work session of the September 29, 2016, regular Council meeting, City
Council was presented with the proposed changes to the Fiscal Year 2017 Use
Agreement with the WaterTower Theatre (WTT) for its rental occupancy of the Addison
Theatre Centre. Updates to the Use Agreement include: 

Moving from an annual lease to a multi-year lease
A year-to-year increase in show rental pricing
Inclusion of the Town's Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) seating policy
and compliance
Charge-backs to WTT for alarm code changes and lost keys

The WTT has been the primary resident company and lessee of the Addison Theatre
Centre since 1996. Historically, any changes to the Use Agreement would be negotiated
between the City Manager's Office and WTT. The agreement would then be brought to
Council for final approval and adoption by resolution. The Use Agreement is similar to a
standard lease agreement that allows the lessee (WTT) to rent space and pay a monthly
rent to the lessor, property owner, and manager (Town of Addison).

Staff is bringing the resolution forward to adopt the Fiscal Year 2017 Use Agreement for
WTT.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING A USE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE 

TOWN AND THE WATERTOWER THEATRE, INC. FOR THE USE OF 

THE ADDISON THEATRE CENTER; AUTHORIZING THE CITY 

MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas (“City Council”) has 

investigated and determined that it is in the best interest of the Town of Addison, Texas 

(“Town”) to utilize public property such as the Addison Theatre Center in an effective manner; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has further investigated and determined that it is beneficial 

to allow a reputable theatre company to use the Addison Theatre Center on an annual basis to 

achieve this goal; and  

 

WHEREAS, WaterTower Theatre, Inc. is a reputable company who’s history 

demonstrates capability in the use of the Addison Theatre Center; and  

 

WHEREAS, as a result, the City Council desires to enter into this Use Agreement, 

whereby the Town and Water TowerTheatre, Inc. may contractually agree on the terms and 

conditions of use of the Addison Theatre Center (“Use Agreement”). 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

ADDISON, TEXAS: 
 

 Section 1. The Use Agreement between the Town and WaterTower Theatre, Inc., a 

copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit A, is hereby approved. The City Manager 

is hereby authorized to execute said agreement. 

 

 Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this 

the 11th day of October, 2016. 

 

 

       ___________________________  

       Todd Meier, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

By: _______________________________      

 Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

By: _______________________________      

 Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 
 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 



 

 



   
AI-1908     12.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of A Resolution Adopting A Revised Housing Policy For The
Town of Addison.

BACKGROUND:
The City Council has held a series of discussions regarding the Town's current housing
policy. At the September 29, 2016, City Council Meeting, staff was instructed to prepare
a resolution that revised the policy in two ways.

First, Council requested that "Where feasible and appropriate" be added to the first
section of the policy, so that it would read: 

Where feasible and appropriate, new housing should increase the proportion of
fee-simple ownership in Addison’s housing mix.  Apartment-only rezoning is unlikely
to be approved, as currently the ratio of rental to ownership properties is higher than
desired.
 

 Second, Council requested that a fifth section be added that would allow for exceptions
to the policy. This new section would read as follows:
  

The City Council acknowledges that there may be exceptional projects that do not
comply with elements of this policy. The Council encourages developers and staff to
pursue projects that represent the highest and best use of each property and that
advance portions of this policy or other Town goals.
 

 This language recognizes that there may be projects that warrant special consideration,
defines staff's role in bringing such projects forward and broadly states the criteria for
considering exceptions to the policy.

The other components of the policy were left unchanged.

The full policy can be found in the attached resolution.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Housing Policy - Red Line Version



Housing Policy - Red Line Version
Housing Policy Resolution



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. R016-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TX APPROVING AND SUPPORTING A HOUSING POLICY WITHIN 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON PURSUANT TO THE LAWS OF THE STATE 

OF TEXAS AND THE ADDISON CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has researched the current housing stock and discussed and 

deliberated a wide range of housing alternatives for the Town of Addison, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to make a policy statement to guide City Staff and 

potential developers as new housing developments are proposed and brought forward for City 

Council consideration. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

Section 1. Addison Housing Policy. When new housing is proposed in Addison, the Addison 

City Council encourages it to be developed according to the following principles: 

1. Where feasible and appropriate, nNew housing should increase the proportion of fee-

simple ownership in Addison’s housing mix.  Apartment-only rezoning is unlikely to 

be approved, as currently the ratio of rental to ownership properties is higher than 

desired.  

 

2. A proposal should offer a ‘best fit’ mix of uses and housing choices within the context 

of the surrounding Addison community.  The Town may use a study area committee 

(with staff, elected, and appointed members such as area residents and business 

representatives) to evaluate a proposal’s fit in Addison. 

 

3. New housing should create or enhance neighborhoods of urban character rather than 

locate on a stand-alone, nonintegrated property and should continue the high quality 

design and walkability that make Addison’s existing neighborhoods distinctive, 

 

4. Proposals for independent and/or assisted living may be considered by the Town of 

Addison. Since there are no assisted living housing units in Addison today, the Town 

will conduct research to understand how this housing could or should be included in 

Addison’s future. 

 

5. The City Council acknowledges that there may be exceptional projects that do not 

comply with elements of this policy. The Council encourages developers and staff to 

pursue projects that represent the highest and best use of each property and that 

advance portions of this policy or other Town goals. 



 

Section 2.  Recitals. The above and forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporate 

herein and made part hereof for all purposes. 

Section 3.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 11th 

day of October, 2016. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Todd Meier, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

      Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

       Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

RESOLUTION NO. R016-___ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TX APPROVING AND SUPPORTING A HOUSING POLICY WITHIN 

THE TOWN OF ADDISON PURSUANT TO THE LAWS OF THE STATE 

OF TEXAS AND THE ADDISON CODE OF ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City Council has researched the current housing stock and discussed and 

deliberated a wide range of housing alternatives for the Town of Addison, Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to make a policy statement to guide City Staff and 

potential developers as new housing developments are proposed and brought forward for City 

Council consideration. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

Section 1. Addison Housing Policy. When new housing is proposed in Addison, the Addison 

City Council encourages it to be developed according to the following principles: 

1. Where feasible and appropriate, new housing should increase the proportion of fee-

simple ownership in Addison’s housing mix.  Apartment-only rezoning is unlikely to 

be approved, as currently the ratio of rental to ownership properties is higher than 

desired.  

 

2. A proposal should offer a ‘best fit’ mix of uses and housing choices within the context 

of the surrounding Addison community.  The Town may use a study area committee 

(with staff, elected, and appointed members such as area residents and business 

representatives) to evaluate a proposal’s fit in Addison. 

 

3. New housing should create or enhance neighborhoods of urban character rather than 

locate on a stand-alone, nonintegrated property and should continue the high quality 

design and walkability that make Addison’s existing neighborhoods distinctive, 

 

4. Proposals for independent and/or assisted living may be considered by the Town of 

Addison. Since there are no assisted living housing units in Addison today, the Town 

will conduct research to understand how this housing could or should be included in 

Addison’s future. 

 

5. The City Council acknowledges that there may be exceptional projects that do not 

comply with elements of this policy. The Council encourages developers and staff to 

pursue projects that represent the highest and best use of each property and that 

advance portions of this policy or other Town goals. 



 

Section 2.  Recitals. The above and forgoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporate 

herein and made part hereof for all purposes. 

Section 3.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect upon its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 11th 

day of October, 2016. 

 

 

 

______________________________ 

Todd Meier, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

      Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

By: ______________________________ 

       Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 



   
AI-1921     13.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: General Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into
An Events Sponsorship Agreement With DCO Reality, Inc., For The
Purposes Of Sponsoring Events At Vitruvian Park To Include, But Not
Limited To, The Vitruvian Nights Live, Vitruvian Salsa Nights And The
Vitruvian Holiday Lights Display In An Amount Not To Exceed $185,000 For Fiscal
Year 2016-17.

BACKGROUND:
The Town of Addison and DCO Reality, Inc., (UDR) the developer/ manager of Vitruvian
Park entered into an event sponsorship reimbursement agreement in 2012 that renews
annually. DCO Reality, Inc., desires to conduct and present a variety of public events
within the Vitruvian Park area. The Town desires to participate in the public events and
activities as a sponsor and as such entered into this agreement with DCO Reality, Inc.,
for sponsorship reimbursement purposes in the amount of $185,000

From 2012 to 2014 the contracting of the vendor to install, maintain and remove the
holiday lights was hired directly by UDR and paid for from the Towns sponsorship funds.
 
In 2014 the Town's attorney recommended that the Town bid out and hire the lighting
contractor for the holiday display. As of 2015, the Town no longer reimburses UDR for
this event as the Town staff manages the bidding and procurement of the contractor to
install, maintain and remove the holiday lights each season and funds it directly from the
sponsorship funds before any remaining funds are allocated to UDR.
 
Other events that are funded from the sponsorship include, but not limited to, the
Vitruvian Nights Live and the Vitruvian Salsa Nights. The amount of funds remaining that
are available to reimburse UDR for these events may vary from year to year after the
Town has paid for the holiday lighting display.
 
This agreement has been in place since 2012 and is presented each year to Council for
approval.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.
 



Attachments
Resolution



TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON, TEXAS APPROVING AN EVENTS AGREEMENT BETWEEN
TOWN  OF  ADDISON  AND  DCO  REALTY,  INC.  FOR  THE
MANAGEMENT, OPERATION, COORDINATION AND CONTROL OF
A VARIETY OF EVENTS AT VITRUVIAN PARK, AUTHORIZING THE
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT, AND PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison is authorized by Chapter 351 of the Texas Property
Tax Code to levy a hotel occupancy tax to be used to directly enhance and promote tourism and
the convention and hotel industry; and

WHEREAS,  the  Vitruvian Nights Live, Vitruvian Salsa Festival and other special events
conducted by DCO Realty, Inc. within Vitruvian Park bring thousands of visitors and tourists to the
Town of Addison, many of whom will stay at Addison hotels.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS:

Section 1. The Events Agreement between Town of Addison and DCO Realty, Inc.
for the management, operation, coordination and control of a variety of events at Vitruvian Park,
a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as  Exhibit A, is hereby approved and the City
Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 11th day of October, 2016.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney





EXHIBIT A   – PAGE 1























   
AI-1923     14.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: General Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Consider Approval Of An Award Of Bid For The Purchase Of (1) 2017 Sutphen
SPH-100 Aerial Platform Fire Truck, Under The Town's Inter-local Agreement
With The Texas Local Government Purchasing Cooperative Known As
BuyBoard In The Amount Of $1,171,870.76.

BACKGROUND:
At the January 11, 2005 Council meeting, the Town approved a resolution to join the
Texas Local Government Purchasing Cooperative - better known as BuyBoard.
BuyBoard issues request for bids for vehicles and equipment every year and receives
extremely competitive prices because of the large volume of purchases they generate.
This is a comparable purchasing method to those purchases done through the Houston
Galveston Area Council. By participating in a cooperative, we are able to receive better
prices on items we need and in some cases without the effort of seeking formal quotes
or bids.
 
Per our Capital Equipment Replacement Fund schedule, the Town is purchasing a 2017
Sutphen SPH-100 Aerial Platform ladder truck that will replace a 2004 85’ Pierce Aerial
ladder truck that has reached the end of its useful life (12 years) and will be sent to
auction. This purchase will also move a 2004 75’ Pierce Aerial truck into reserve status.
As with all of our fire apparatus, this is a turn-key complete build purchase. When the
truck is delivered it will be ready to go into service. 
 
Sutphen Corporation offers a down payment discount option of which staff has chosen to
participate. The bid price for this piece of apparatus is $1,190,976. By sending a full
prepayment of $1,171,870.76 with our build order, we save $19,105.24 off the bid price
for a purchase price of $1,171,870.76. Historically, staff has successfully participated in
their down payment discount options to achieve additional savings.
 
There are sufficient funds in the Capital Equipment Replacement Fund to cover the
recommended expenditure of $1,171,870.76.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.
 

Attachments



Attachments
BuyBoard Contract # -Discount Options







   
AI-1928     15.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: City Secretary 

AGENDA CAPTION:
Presentation Regarding The Carrollton-Farmers Branch Independent School
District Budget And Financial Structure.

BACKGROUND:
The Carrollton-Farmers Branch Independent School District Superintendent Bobby
Burns asked to present this information to Council.

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.



   
AI-1799     16.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Information Technology

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss And Consider Approval Of A Resolution Approving Amending A
Contract With Swagit Productions, LLC For The Purchase And Installation Of
Three (3) Additional High Definition (HD) Broadcast And Streaming Systems
At Town Hall Parlor, Treehouse, And The Conference Centre In An Amount Not
To Exceed $199,867.65.

BACKGROUND:
The Town of Addison is currently in a contract with Swagit Productions, LLC (Swagit) for
the recording and streaming of Council meetings held in the Council Chambers. When
meetings are held outside of the Chambers, the Town utilizes a mobile unit from Swagit
for the recording of these meetings. Additionally, the Town has funds available to
support public, educational, and governmental (PEG) access facilities for its citizens.
This item is requesting approval for the purchase of three additional high definition (HD)
broadcast and streaming systems to be permanently installed at the parlor in Town Hall,
Treehouse, and the Conference Centre to be paid for by PEG funds in an amount not to
exceed $199,867.65.

In 2005, the Texas Legislature passed Senate Bill 5, which enacted a new Chapter 66 to
the Texas Utilities Code, authorizing a state-issued certificate of franchise authority for
cable and video providers. This effectively eliminated local regulatory authority of
telecommunication companies. 
 
Chapter 66 keeps Texas cities financially whole by providing that all technologies and
services that use the public rights-of-way pay a fair and equitable rental fee for use of
the public's land. Specifically, a provider that holds a state-issued franchise must pay
five percent of its gross revenues to the city. A city may spend these funds without
restriction on any general budget item it sees fit.
 
In addition, Chapter 66 provides for additional funds to PEG access facilities for their
citizens. Chapter 66 expressly states that providers are required to pay these additional
funds to the city, over-and-above the five percent franchise fee, to assist the city in
providing PEG channel capacity.These funds do have a restricted use. If the funds
are not spent for the purposes specified in Chapter 66 the provider may be able to
deduct the amount they previously paid from future franchise fee payments.                   
 
This chapter explicitly explains that the cities can only use the PEG fee for
Capital PEG access facilities. In General, Capital facilities include all facilities and
equipment that have a useful life of longer than one year, and that are used for PEG



equipment that have a useful life of longer than one year, and that are used for PEG
access facilities to provide or enhance the provisioning of PEG channel capacity,
programming, and transmissions for a governmental use. For example, capital facilities
include, but are not limited to: 

Production facilities, such as a studio office and furnishings;1.
Physical sets coaxial and fiber lines and all other physical connections;2.
Vehicles dedicated for the support of PEG access facilities; and3.
Cameras or other similar items having a useful life of more than one year.4.

 
Additionally, any purchase that increases or adds substantial value to capital PEG
access facilities mentioned above, or that adapts PEG access capital facilities to a new
or different use, or that constitutes a betterment of those capital facilities, is a permissible
use of the PEG fee.
 
Since the inception of the PEG (Public, Educational & Governmental) fund, part of the
cable franchise agreement, Addison has collected close to $320,000 in PEG fees. PEG
fees are established to allow and encourage cities to: 

Provide a convenient and information-rich resource for residents, visitors,
businesses, non-profit organizations, other public agencies, and schools to
access their city government,
Make public proceedings and events more accessible to City residents by
providing footage of City Council, Planning Commission, and other local
government meetings,
Provide more extensive information on important City issues and activities,
Promote City-sponsored or City co-sponsored special events,
Employ the latest technology to improve customer service and
communication relating to issues,
Foster economic development,
Act as a source of information during local emergencies.

The Town’s transparency philosophy has always been to use all the available media
resources (Newsletter, Web site, Facebook, Twitter, publication, door hangers, etc.) to
communicate with its stakeholders. The PEG channel is the last leg of the
communication platform that hasn’t yet been offered to the public. If we don’t use the
collected fees to establish a PEG channel soon we might be forced to return the money 
to the cable company, as it’s been explained under section 66.006(b) and cease the
collection process as well.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
Resolution





TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS

RESOLUTION NO. ________

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  CITY  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF
ADDISON,  TEXAS  APPROVING  THE AMENDMENT NO.  1  TO  THE
AGREEMENT  BETWEEN  THE  TOWN  OF  ADDISON  AND  SWAGIT
PRODUCTION,  LLC  FOR  LIVE  AND  ON-DEMAND  VIDEO
STREAMING SERVICES AND EQUIPMENT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO
EXCEED  $199,867.65,  AUTHORIZING  THE  CITY  MANAGER  TO
EXECUTE THE CONTRACT, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON,
TEXAS:

Section 1. The Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement between the Town of Addison
and Swagit Production, LLC for live and on-demand video streaming services and equipment in
an amount not to exceed $199,867.65, a copy of which is attached to this Resolution as Exhibit
A, is hereby approved. The City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the agreement.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect from and after its date of adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this
the 11th day of October, 2016.

___________________________
Todd Meier, Mayor

ATTEST:

By: _______________________________
Laura Bell, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By: _______________________________
Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



EXHIBIT A



   
AI-1874     17.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss And Consider Approval Of A Resolution Authorizing The City
Manager To Enter Into A Professional Services Agreement With
R.H.Shackelford, Inc., For Program/Project Management Services For
Various Capital And Bond Projects  In The Amount Of $235,004.70.

BACKGROUND:
In November 2010, the Town selected R.H. Shackelford, Inc., through a Request for
Qualifications (RFQ) RFQ #11-04 process to provide program and project management
professional services on an as-needed basis for capital and bond projects.  RHSI has
provided these services on a number of projects including, Spring Valley Road widening,
Redding Trail extension, Vitruvian Phases I through IV, Belt Line Road utility
undergrounding, water master plan, and the wastewater system master plan. 

This amendment to the original contract covers project management services for the
completion of the Belt Line utility undergrounding project and the next phases of the
Vitruvian development.  The services included for the Belt Line project are: daily onsite
inspection, review of all requests for information submitted by the civil contractors,
advising on any needed design changes, reviewing and advising on any material
submittals, reviewing contractor pay applications, conducting regular interval
construction meetings, assisting in the development of punch list items, and conducting
project closeout. 

The scope for the Vitruvian Phase V and Phase VIIIa (commercial area) developments
include: review of all design submittals for the streetscape and utility
improvements. Coordination of field activities including preliminary and final plating,
easement review and process, storm water design requirements, and attendance at all
project meetings.  Vitruvian Phase V bid phase services consist of the development of
bid documents and the construction contract, working with the Finance department for
the bid posting, conducting the pre-bid meeting, answering pre-bid requests for
information, assisting in the development of bid phase addenda, reviewing and
developing the bid tabulation, and conducting the pre-construction conference with
selected contractor. 

Also included in the contract amendment are services related to the completion of the
wastewater master plan.  These services consist of contract support related to reviewing
final deliverables, review of the collected data, and rate model investigations, analysis,
and recommendations. 



The complete scope of services for this amendment is included in the attachments to this
item.

The contract amount for these services is not to exceed $235,004.70.  These services
are billed on an hourly basis and the Town only pays for completed work paid for from
bond funds.  This contract will cover services through August 2017.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
RSHI Original Contract
Resolution and Contract



SMALL A/E 
AGREEMENT 

for 
Architect/Engineer Consultant Services 

This AGREEMENT is between the Town of Addison, Texas ("CITY"), acting through its 
duly authorized City Manager or designee ("Deputy Assistant Manager"), and R. H. Shackelford, 
Inc. a Texas corporation ("CONSULTANT"), acting through its duly authorized representative 
who is Kent Power, P.E., Vice President,  which agree as follows: 

1. DECLARATIONS. CITY desires to engage "CONSULTANT" to provide services 
in connection with CITY's project, described as follows: 	"Project Management". 
CONSULTANT desires to provide such Project Management services to the CITY. 

2. SCOPE OF WORK. "CONSULTANT" shall, upon the CITY's request, provide 
services for the PROJECT in accordance with the accompanying Letter, Scope of Services, and Fee 
attached as "Exhibit A" ("Services"). The Services include and encompass, among other things, 
supervision of the engineering construction of the various CITY projects for which CONSULTANT 
is providing project management services. 

CONSULTANT warrants and represents that CONSULTANT has the skills, qualifications, 
expertise, and experience necessary to perform the Services described herein with a high degree of 
quality and responsiveness. CONSULTANT warrants and represents that CONSULTANT is 
licensed, permitted, or otherwise authorized by Texas law, as may be necessary, to practice and 
perform the Services described herein and will at all times while this Agreement is in effect be so 
licensed or otherwise authorized. Neither CITY's review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment 
for, any of the Services provided under this Agreement shall be construed to operate as a waiver of 
any rights or remedies of the CITY under this Agreement or of any claim or cause of action that the 
CITY has or may have arising out of CONSULTANT's performance of this Agreement, and 
CONSULTANT shall be and remain liable to the CITY for all claims, damages and injuries caused 
by or resulting from the Services under or in connection with this Agreement. 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, CONSULTANT and the CITY 
acknowledge that the CITY is entering into this Agreement in reliance on CONSULTANT's 
professional abilities with respect to performing its Services set forth herein. CONSULTANT 
agrees to use its professional skill, judgment and abilities in the performance of its Services 
hereunder, and CONSULTANT shall be responsible, to the level of competency presently 
maintained by other project managers in the same type of work in Dallas County, Texas, for the 
professional and technical soundness, accuracy, and adequacy of all of its Services under this 
Agreement. 

CONSULTANT shall use its best efforts to ensure that the work of each project as described 
in the construction contract and related documents applicable to the project to be performed under 
the construction contract and related documents is completed in a timely manner and in accordance 
with the applicable construction contract documents, plans, standards, specifications, and other 
materials and information related thereto. CONSULTANT shall coordinate the construction as a 
construction and project manager, including confirming that the Design Professional has observed 
and reviewed the work of the contractor, to guard the CITY against defects and deficiencies in the 

Agreement - Page 1 of 14 



work without assuming responsibility for the means and methods used by the Contractor. 
CONSULTANT shall promptly notify the CITY of any defects or deficiencies in the work if the 
same are observed or detected by CONSULTANT or otherwise brought to CONSULTANT's 
attention. 

3. 	FEE. The "CITY" agrees to pay the "CONSULTANT" for services provided in 
accordance with Exhibit "A", Scope of Services, and Fee under this AGREEMENT, a total fee not 
to exceed $48,566.88, Forty Eight Thousand Five Hundred Sixty Six Dollars and Eighty Eight 
Cents. 

Payment of the said amount shall be in accordance with the following: No later than the 10 th 
 day of each calendar month, CONSULTANT shall submit to the CITY an invoice for the services 

performed by CONSULTANT during the immediately preceding calendar month. Each invoice 
shall (i) identify each of CONSULTANT's employees that provided services during the period of 
the invoice, (ii) the hourly rate for each such person (which rate shall be the rate for that person 
identified in the document submitted by CONSULTANT to the CITY and entitled "RFQ 11-04 
Program/Project Management Professional Services, Price/Cost Schedule" (the "Price/Cost 
Schedule")), (iii) a description of the services performed, and (iv) the total amount of the invoice. 
It is anticipated that each invoice will reflect approximately the number of hours for each month and 
for each employee as set forth in the Price/Cost Schedule (and in any event, the total amount to be 
paid CONSULTANT for the services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall not exceed the 
amount set forth above). Upon the CITY's receipt of the invoice, the CITY will review the same 
and, if the invoice has been submitted in accordance with the provisions hereof and if the services 
have been properly performed and are not in dispute, the CITY shall pay the invoice within thirty 
(30) days following the CITY's receipt of the invoice. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing or any other provision of this Agreement, the CITY shall not 
be obligated to make payment to the CONSULTANT hereunder if: 

(a) The CONSULTANT is in default of any of its obligations under this Agreement (and 
payment may be withheld to the extent of any such default); 

(b) Any part of such payment is attributable to any services of the CONSULTANT 
which are not performed in accordance with this Agreement; 

(c) The CONSULTANT has failed to make payment promptly to consultants or other 
third parties used by the CONSULTANT in connection with the CONSULTANT's Services 
hereunder for which the CITY has made payment to the CONSULTANT; or 

(d) If the CITY, in its good faith judgment and after consultation with the 
CONSULTANT, determines that the portion of the compensation then remaining unpaid 
will not be sufficient to complete the services hereunder, no additional payments will be due 
the CONSULTANT hereunder unless and until the CONSULTANT performs a sufficient 
portion of the services so that such portion of the compensation remaining unpaid is 
determined by the CITY to be sufficient to complete the services. 

4. 	CERTAIN PROVISIONS REGARDING THE SERVICES. The provision of the 
Services by CONSULTANT shall be in accordance with the following: 

Agreement - Page 2 of 14 



(a) CONSULTANT will inspect the work ("work") of the construction contractor or 
contractors ("contractor") for each project ("project") for which CONSULTANT is providing 
project management services. 

(b) CONSULTANT will perform and provide the Services in an efficient and 
professional manner, and at a level of competency consistent and in accordance with the 
commercially accepted best practices and industry standards in the Dallas, Texas metropolitan area 
for project management and engineering review services at the time such Services are performed. 
CONULTANT's Services shall be performed and provided in accordance and compliance with all 
applicable state, federal, and local laws, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations relating to the 
same. 

(c) The CONSULTANT shall expeditiously review design documents during their 
development or revision and advise on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, 
building systems and equipment, and methods of project delivery. The CONSULTANT shall keep 
the CITY informed of cost implications of their design concepts, provide recommendations on 
relative feasibility of construction methods, availability of materials and labor, time requirements 
for procurement, installation and construction, and factors related to construction cost including, but 
not limited to, costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, and possible 
economies. 

(d) The CONSULTANT shall consult with the CITY and the design professional 
("Design Professional," e.g., architect or engineer who prepared the architectural or engineering 
plans for the project) regarding the project construction contract and related documents and make 
recommendations whenever design details adversely affect constructability, cost or schedules. 

(e) Consultant shall review the contractor's safety control program and implementation 
thereof to ensure that the same are in compliance with law and to ensure public safety with 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic and site cleanup. This will include review of suitable temporary 
structures as required by law and to ensure sufficient access and lighting for hydrants and other 
similar places at all times. 

(f) The CONSULTANT shall assist the CITY in selecting, retaining and coordinating 
the professional services of surveyors, special consultants and testing laboratories required for a 
project. 

(g) The CONSULTANT shall obtain insurance certificates, bonds and any other relevant 
documents from the contractor and Design Professionals and required building permits and special 
permits for permanent improvements. The CONSULTANT shall verify that the CITY has paid 
applicable fees and assessments. The CONSULTANT shall assist the CITY in connection with the 
CITY's responsibility for filing documents required for the approvals of governmental authorities 
having jurisdiction over the construction of any project improvements. 

(h) The CONSULTANT shall provide administrative, management and related services 
to coordinate scheduled activities and responsibilities of the contractor and with those of the 
CONSULTANT, the CITY, and the Design Professional to endeavor to manage the project in 
accordance with the latest approved estimate of construction costs, any project schedule (approved 

Agreement - Page 3 of 14 



by the CITY), and the project construction contract and related documents. 

(i) The CONSULTANT shall schedule and conduct meetings to discuss such matters as 
procedures, progress and scheduling. The CONSULTANT shall review the pre-construction 
conference minutes for the entire construction team to establish job site practices and guidelines, 
including, but not limited to and as applicable, establishing job site work rules; safety and security 
procedures; developing a detailed phasing and relocation strategy; establishing traffic flow patterns, 
including planning the means of egress, traffic control and work hours; planning storage and staging 
areas, including equipment placement, job office location, and utility availability. 

(j) The CONSULTANT shall review the construction schedule(s) (if any) provided by 
the contractor, to ensure they incorporates the activities of the contractor on the project, including 
activity sequences and durations, allocation of labor and materials, processing of shop drawings, 
product data and samples, and delivery of products requiring long lead time and procurement. The 
project construction schedule shall include the CITY's occupancy requirements showing portions of 
the project having occupancy priority. The CONSULTANT shall coordinate updates to the project 
construction schedule with revisions to the contractor's project construction schedule as required to 
show current conditions. If an update indicates that the previously approved project construction 
schedule may not be met, the CONSULTANT shall recommend corrective action to the CITY. 

(k) Consistent with the various bidding documents, and utilizing information from the 
contractor, the CONSULTANT shall coordinate the sequence of construction and assignment of 
space in areas where the contractor is performing work. The CONSULTANT shall ensure proper 
provisions for safety, temporary protection, pedestrian flow and ongoing building use. The 
CONSULTANT shall oversee scheduling and expediting, quality assurance, work schedule 
management, communications among trade contractors and consultants, document control and 
contract compliance, and shall perform periodic project, job and work inspection and observation 
(and more often as the CITY may request). 

(1) 	The CONSULTANT shall use its best efforts to obtain prompt and satisfactory 
performance from the contractor and subcontractors. The CONSULTANT shall require each 
contractor to perform and complete its respective portion of the work in accordance with the 
contract documents pertaining to such contractor. The CONSULTANT shall recommend courses of 
action to the CITY when requirements of the construction contract are not being fulfilled. The 
CONSULTANT shall ensure the contractor has arranged for all work, labor, services, materials, 
supplies, and equipment necessary for the execution and completion of the work. 

(m) The CONSULTANT shall provide regular monitoring of the costs set forth in the 
construction contract, showing actual costs for activities in progress and estimates for uncompleted 
tasks. The CONSULTANT shall identify variances between actual and budgeted costs (that is, 
costs that comprise the then existing costs set forth in the construction contract), and advise the 
CITY whenever projected costs are likely to exceed such budgeted costs. At least once each month, 
the CONSULTANT shall review the contractor's pay estimate and prepare and distribute a letter 
recommending payment and indicating potential overrun and critical project cost reports during the 
construction of each project. The letter shall specify actual project and construction costs compared 
to each project and construction budget. 

(n) The CONSULTANT shall maintain accounting records on authorized work 

Agreement - Page 4 of 14 



performed under unit costs, additional work performed on the basis of actual costs of labor and 
materials, and other work requiring accounting records. 

(o) The CONSULTANT shall develop and implement procedures for the review and 
processing of applications by contractor for progress and final payments in accordance with the 
CITY's payment application procedures. 

(p) Based on the CONSULTANT's observations and evaluations of each contractor's 
application for payment, the CONSULTANT shall review and approve each such application and 
determine whether the amount requested reflects the progress of the contractor's work. The 
CONSULTANT shall make appropriate adjustment to each payment application and shall prepare 
and forward to the CITY a progress payment report. The report shall state the total contract price, 
payments to date, current payment requested, retainage and actual amounts owned for the current 
period. Included in this report shall be a certificate of payment that shall be signed by the 
CONSULTANT and delivered to the CITY for the CITY's approval and payment. 

(q) The CONSULTANT shall prepare a project application for payment based on the 
contractor' certificates for payment. 

(r) CONSULTANT's certification shall be by affidavit sworn to by the appropriate 
official of CONSULTANT authorized to submit the same, and shall certify that the estimate of 
work completed for the relevant period is true and correct to the best of CONSULTANT's 
information and belief, has been measured and verified in accordance with the applicable 
construction contract documents, and that all construction contract preconditions to payment have 
been met. If not previously provided to the CITY, copies of all material testing results (if applicable 
and available) shall be furnished with the certification. 

The CONSULTANT's approval of payment shall constitute a representation to the CITY, 
based on the CONSULTANT's determinations, inspections and observations at the project site and 
on the data comprising the contractor' applications for payment, that, to the best of the 
CONSULTANT's knowledge, information and belief, the work has progressed to the point 
indicated and the quality of the work is in accordance with the construction contract and related 
documents. The forgoing representations are subject to an evaluation of the work for conformance 
with the Construction Contract and related documents upon substantial completion, to results of 
subsequent tests and inspections, to minor deviations from the construction contract and related 
documents correctable prior to completion and to specific qualifications expressed by the 
CONSULTANT. The issuance of a certificate for payment shall further constitute a representation 
that the contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. 

(s) The CONSULTANT shall review the safety programs developed by each contractor 
(and any subcontractors) for purposes of coordinating the safety programs with those of any other 
contractors. The CONSULTANT's responsibilities for coordination of safety programs shall not 
extend to direct control over or charge of the acts or omissions of the contractor, subcontractors, 
agents or employees of the contractor or subcontractors, or any other persons performing portions of 
the work and not directly employed by or on behalf of, or under contract by or on behalf of, the 
CONSULTANT. 

The CONSULTANT shall, or shall cause contractors to, take all precautionary measures as 

Agreement - Page 5 of 14 



required by the CITY and all other governmental authorities to prevent and correct hazardous 
conditions, and shall conduct all operations with due regard for the avoidance of hazardous 
conditions. 

The CONSULTANT shall plan all work to minimize personal injury, property damage and 
loss of productive time, and shall maintain a system of prompt detection and correction of unsafe 
practices and conditions. The CONSULTANT shall furnish and maintain all necessary first aid 
equipment in a special location on each project site. The CONSULTANT shall investigate all 
accidents promptly to determine cause and to take necessary corrective action, and shall file 
required reports in connection therewith. 

The CONSULTANT shall monitor contractor's activities to ensure contractor is adequately 
protecting existing facilities and adjacent property. Any portion of the work and any existing 
improvements or appurtenances liable to damage shall be properly protected. 

(t) The CONSULTANT shall determine that the work of the Contractor is being 
performed in accordance with the requirements of the applicable project construction contract, 
endeavoring to guard the CITY against defects and deficiencies in the work. As appropriate, the 
CONSULTANT shall have authority, upon written authorization from the CITY, to require 
additional inspection or testing of the work in accordance with the provisions of the Construction 
Contract, whether or not such work is fabricated, installed or completed. The CONSULTANT, in 
consultation with the Design Professional and the CITY, may reject work which does not conform 
to the requirements of the contract. The CONSULTANT agrees to cause to be performed any work 
and furnish and install any materials and equipment which CONSULTANT deems reasonably 
necessary during an emergency endangering life or property; the CONSULTANT shall notify the 
CITY of the emergency as soon as practicable but shall not wait for instruction before proceeding 
unless the cost to be incurred by reason thereof shall exceed $5,000.00. 

(u) The CONSTRUCTION MANAGER shall schedule and coordinate the sequence of 
construction in accordance with the Construction Contract and the latest approved project 
construction schedule. 

(v) With respect to each contractor's own work, the CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 
shall not have control over or charge of and shall not be responsible for construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection 
with the work of each contractor, since these are solely the contractor's responsibility. The 
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER shall determine that the contractor carries out its work in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the construction contract. 

(w) The CONSULTANT shall transmit to the Design Professional requests for 
interpretations of the meaning and intent of the construction contract drawings and specifications, 
and assist in the resolution of questions that may arise. 

(x) The CONSULTANT shall review requests for changes, assist in negotiating 
contractor' proposals, submit recommendations to the Design Professional and the CITY, and, if 
they are accepted, prepare change orders and construction change directives which incorporate the 
Design Professional's or other modifications to the construction contract and related documents, and 
submit the same to the CITY for review and approval. At least once each month during the 

Agreement - Page 6 of 14 



construction of each project, the CONSULTANT shall prepare and distribute to the CITY and 
Design Professional change order reports. 

All change orders with respect to a construction contract and the construction of the 
applicable improvements shall be processed and approved by the City in accordance with the City's 
procedure for the review and approval thereof. In the event of a change order which increases the 
cost of construction work for the construction of the improvements, there shall be withheld from 
each payment of an invoice, pay request or draw in connection with that change order the retainage 
required to be withheld under the construction contract,. 

The CITY, from time to time, has and reserves the right to, among other things, order (in 
writing) changes in the work, including additions, deletions, and modifications in the work; work 
which must be performed in respect of unforeseen conditions; changes in the intensity and pace of 
the work (including suspensions of the work or any portion thereof); and uncovering and covering 
of a portion of the work, if such portion, upon uncovering, is found to be acceptable. 

(y) The CONSULTANT shall assist the Design Professional in the review, evaluation 
and documentation of any claims. 

(z) The CONSULTANT shall receive certificates of insurance from the contractor and 
forward them to the CITY, and shall assist the CITY in evaluating the same. 

(aa) In collaboration with the Design Professional, the CONSULTANT shall establish 
and implement procedures for expediting the processing and approval of shop drawings, product 
data, samples, proposed substitutions, design modification, and other submittals. The 
CONSULTANT shall review all shop drawings, product data, samples, proposed substitutions, 
design modifications, and other submittals from the contractor for general conformance with the 
contract documents and make any recommendations regarding the same. If any such submittal is 
deemed to be in such general conformance, the CONSULTANT shall promptly forward it to the 
Design Professional and the CITY; if any such submission is deemed to not be in such general 
conformance, it shall be returned to the applicable contractor for correction and resubmittal to 
CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT shall coordinate submittals with information contained in 
related documents and transmit to the Design Professional those which have been approved by the 
CONSULTANT. The CONSULTANT's actions shall be taken with such reasonable promptness as 
to cause no delay in the construction work or in the activities of the CITY or contractor. 

(bb) The CONSULTANT shall record the progress of each project on a weekly basis. 
The CONSULTANT shall submit written progress reports to the CITY including information on 
each contractor and each contractor's work, as well as the entire project, showing percentages of 
completion. The submittal of this report shall coincide with the submittal of the CONSULTANT's 
invoice for professional services. The CONSULTANT shall review, and submit to the CITY, the 
contractor's daily log containing a record of weather, each contractor's work on the site, number of 
workers, identification of equipment, work accomplished, problems encountered, other similar 
relevant information pertaining to the construction of the applicable improvements, and other 
information as the CITY may require. The CONSULTANT shall maintain a log for those days 
physically present on the site. 

(cc) The CONSULTANT shall ensure the contractor maintains at a project site for the 

Agreement - Page 7 of 14 



CITY one record copy of the construction contract and related documents, and all other contracts, 
drawings, specifications, addenda, change orders and other modifications, in good order and marked 
currently to record changes and selections made during construction which are related to the project 
and/or the construction contract, and in addition, approved shop drawings, product data, samples 
and similar required submittals. . 

(dd) The CONSULTANT shall verify that the contractor arranges for the delivery, 
storage, protection and security of materials, systems and equipment that are a part of the project 
until such items are incorporated into the project. In addition, the protection of and security for 
such materials, systems and equipment after such delivery to the project site and until such items are 
incorporated into the project is the contractor's responsibility. 

(ee) With the CITY's personnel and the Design Professional, the CONSULTANT shall 
observe the contractors' checkout of utilities, operational systems and equipment for readiness and 
assist in their initial start-up and testing. The CONSULTANT shall arrange, with the CITY's 
approval and consent, for the appropriate contractors to assist in training the CITY' s personnel, as 
needed, to operate and maintain all systems and equipment, and shall monitor, as necessary, this 
training. 

With the Design Professional and the CITY's personnel, the CONSULTANT shall observe 
the contractor's final testing and start-up of utilities, operational systems and equipment. 

(ff) When the CONSULTANT considers the contractor's work and services or a 
designated portion thereof substantially complete, the CONSULTANT shall, jointly with the 
contractor, prepare for the CITY and the Design Professional a list of incomplete or unsatisfactory 
items and a schedule for their completion. The CONSULTANT shall assist the CITY and the 
Design Professional in determining whether the work or designated portion thereof is substantially 
complete. 

(gg) The CONSULTANT shall coordinate and monitor the correction and completion of 
the work by the contractor. Following issuance of a certificate of substantial completion of the 
work or a designated portion thereof, the CONSULTANT shall evaluate the completion of the work 
of the contractor and make recommendations to the CITY and the Design Professional when work 
is ready for final inspection. After substantial completion of the work has been achieved, the 
CONSULTANT shall coordinate the correction and completion of the work remaining to be 
completed. The CONSULTANT shall evaluate the completion of the work of the contractors, and 
assist the Design Professional and the CITY in conducting final review and observation. 

(hh) The CONSULTANT shall secure from the contractor(s) and transmit to the Design 
Professional, or to such other appropriate person as CITY may direct, all required guarantees, lien 
waivers, releases, bonds, affidavits, warranties and similar submittals required by the construction 
contract for delivery to the CITY and deliver all keys, manuals, record drawings and maintenance 
stocks to the CITY. The CONSULTANT shall forward to the Design Professional a final project 
application for payment upon compliance with the requirements of the construction contract and 
related documents. 

(ii) 	The CONSULTANT agrees to exercise such controls as may be necessary for proper 
financial management under this Agreement; the accounting and control systems shall be 

Agreement - Page 8 of 14 



satisfactory to the CITY. The CONSULTANT agrees to keep full and detailed project books and 
records showing the charges billed to the CITY for performance of the work. Such project books 
and records shall be open for inspection by the CITY and its authorized representatives upon 
reasonable notice to the CONSULTANT and at reasonable hours at the CONSULTANT's office, 
and shall be retained by CONSULTANT for a period of three years after the work has been 
completed. 

(jj) 	All reports, documents and materials prepared by CONSULTANT under this 
Agreement shall be the sole property of the CITY. CONSULTANT may retain a copy of such 
reports, documents, and materials. 

5. 	INSURANCE. At all times in connection with this Agreement, CONSULTANT 
shall purchase and maintain in a company or companies lawfully authorized to do business in Texas 
such insurance coverages as set forth below: 

Workers Compensation insurance at statutory limits, including Employers Liability 
coverage a minimum limits of $1,000,000 each-occurrence each accident/$ 1,000,000 by 
disease each-occurrence/$1,000,000 by disease aggregate; 

(ii) Commercial general liability insurance at minimum combined single limits of 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000 general aggregate for bodily injury and 
property damage, which coverage shall include products/completed operations ($1,000,000 
products/ completed operations aggregate) and contractual liability (covering, but not 
limited to, the liability assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement); 
and 

(iii) Commercial Automobile Liability insurance at minimum combined single limits of 
$1,000,000 per-occurrence for bodily injury and property damage, including owned, non-
owned, and hired car coverage. 

B. 	With reference to the foregoing insurance requirement, CONSULTANT shall 
specifically endorse applicable insurance policies as follows: 

(i) The Town of Addison shall be named as an additional insured with respect to 
General Liability and Automobile Liability. 

(ii) All liability policies shall contain no cross liability exclusions or insured versus 
insured restrictions applicable to the claims of the Town of Addison. 

(iii) A waiver of subrogation in favor of the Town of Addison, Texas, its officers, 
employees, and agents shall be contained in the Workers Compensation and all liability 
policies. 

(iv) All insurance policies shall be endorsed to require the insurer to immediately notify 
the Town of Addison of any material change in the insurance coverage. 

(v) All insurance policies shall be endorsed to the effect that the Town of Addison will 
receive at least sixty (60) days' notice prior to cancellation or non-renewal of the insurance. 

Agreement - Page 9 of 14 



(vi) All insurance policies, which name the Town of Addison as an additional insured, 
must be endorsed to read as primary coverage regardless of the application of other 
insurance. 

(vii) Required limits may be satisfied by any combination of primary and umbrella 
liability insurances. 

(viii) CONSULTANT may maintain reasonable and customary deductibles, subject to 
approval by the Town of Addison. 

(ix) Insurance must be purchased from insurers that are financially acceptable to the 
Town of Addison and licensed to do business in the State of Texas. 

C. 	All insurance must be written on forms filed with and approved by the Texas 
Department of Insurance. Certificates of Insurance, satisfactory to CITY, shall be prepared and 
executed by the insurance company or its authorized agent, shall be delivered to the CITY 
immediately upon execution of this Agreement by CONSULTANT (and CONSULTANT shall not 
provide any services, and shall not be entitled to payment for any services, unless and until 
CONSULTANT has provided or caused to be provided such Certificates of Insurance to the Town 
of Addison), and shall: 

(i) List each insurance coverage described and required herein. Such certificates will 
also include a copy of the endorsements necessary to meet the requirements and instructions 
contained herein. 

(ii) Specifically set forth the notice-of-cancellation or termination provisions to the 
Town of Addison. 

Upon request, CONSULTANT shall furnish the Town of Addison with complete copies of all 
insurance policies certified to be true and correct bythe insurance carrier. CITY reserves the right 
to review the insurance requirements contained herein and to adjust coverages and limits when 
deemed necessary and prudent by CITY. 

6. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS OF CONSULTANT. The 
CONSULTANT covenants, agrees to, and shall INDEMNIFY, HOLD HARMLESS and DEFEND 
(with counsel reasonably acceptable to CITY) the Town of Addison, Texas and the Town of 
Addison, Texas' elected officials, its officers, agents, servants, volunteers, and employees (the 
Town of Addison, Texas and the elected officials, the officers, agents, servants, volunteers, and 
employees of the Town of Addison, Texas being each a "City Person" and collectively "City 
Persons") from and against any and all claims, liabilities, judgments, lawsuits, demands, 
harm, losses, damages, proceedings, suits, actions, causes of action, liens, fees, fines, penalties, 
expenses, or costs, of any kind and nature whatsoever made upon or incurred by City and/or 
any other City Person, whether directly or indirectly, (the "Claims"), that arise out of, result 
from, or relate to: (i) the performance or provision of the Services as described in Section 2 of 
this Agreement by CONSULTANT, (ii) any representations and/or warranties by 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement, and (iii) any act or omission under, in performance of, 
or in connection with this Agreement by CONSULTANT or by any of CONSULTANT's 

Agreement - Page 10 of 14 



owners, directors, officers, shareholders, managers, partners, employees, agents, consultants, 
contractors, subcontractors, invitees, guests, customers, licensees, sublicensees, or any other 
person or entity for whom CONSULTANT is legally responsible, and their respective owners, 
directors, officers, shareholders, managers, partners, employees, agents, consultants, 
contractors, subcontractors, invitees, guests, customers, and licensees ("Consultant Persons"). 
SUCH DEFENSE, INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS SHALL AND DOES INCLUDE 
CLAIMS ALLEGED OR FOUND TO HAVE BEEN CAUSED IN WHOLE OR IN PART BY 
THE NEGLIGENCE OR GROSS NEGLIGENCE OF ANY CITY PERSON, OR CONDUCT 
BY ANY CITY PERSON THAT WOULD GIVE RISE TO STRICT LIABILITY OF ANY 
KIND. However, CONSULTANT's liability under this clause shall be reduced by that portion 
of the total amount of the Claims (excluding defense fees and costs) equal to the City Person or 
City Persons' proportionate share of the negligence, gross negligence, or conduct that would give 
rise to strict liability of any kind, that caused the loss. Likewise, CONSULTANT's liability for 
City Person's defense costs and attorneys' fees shall be reduced by that portion of the defense 
costs and attorneys' fees equal to City Person or City Persons' proportionate share of the 
negligence, gross negligence, or conduct that would give rise to strict liability of any kind, that 
caused the loss. 

CONSULTANT shall promptly advise Municipality in writing of any claim or demand 
against any City Person or CONSULTANT or , any other Consultant Person related to or 
arising out of CONSULTANT's activities under this Agreement and shall see to the 
investigation and defense of such claim or demand at CONSULTANT's sole cost and expense. 
The City Persons shall have the right, at the City Persons' option and own expense, to 
participate in such defense without relieving CONSULTANT of any of its obligations 
hereunder. The indemnity, hold harmless, and defense obligations set forth herein shall 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

CONSULTANT and CITY agree that the Services being provided by the 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement are not (i) engineering or architectural services as 
described by Section 271.904, Tex. Loc. Gov. Code, in that the CONSULTANT is not 
providing work product under this Agreement, and accordingly the indemnity, hold harmless 
and defense provision above does not apply to any work product of CONSULTANT, or (ii) 
the engineering or architectural design services of CONSULTANT as described in Section 
130.002(b), Tex. Civ. Prac. & Rem. Code, in that the CONSULTANT is not providing such 
engineering or architectural design services under this Agreement, and accordingly the 
indemnity, hold harmless and defense provision above does not apply to any engineering or 
architectural design services of CONSULTANT. 

7. ASSIGNMENT. CONSULTANT has no authority to and may not assign, sell, 
transfer, pledge, subcontract, or otherwise convey this Agreement or any portion hereof without the 
prior written consent of CITY, and any of the same without such prior written consent shall be 
deemed null and void. CONSULTANT remains responsible for any subcontractor's performance. 
Subcontractors will be subject to the same performance criteria expected of CONSULTANT. 
Performance clauses will be included in contracts with all subcontractors to assure quality levels 
and agreed upon schedules are met. 

8. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES: This Agreement is intended solely for the 
benefit of CONSULTANT and CITY and no third party rights or benefits are intended or implied, 

Agreement - Page 11 of 14 



and this Agreement does not create or grant any rights, contractual or otherwise, to any third person 
or entity. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

9. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. CONSULTANT is an independent contractor 
and neither CONSULTANT nor its employees or contractors will be considered as employed by 
CITY. Further, nothing in this Agreement creates nor shall be construed to create an employer-
employee relationship, a partnership, a joint venture relationship, or a joint enterprise between the 
parties hereto. 

10. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT. Either party may terminate this Agreement 
at any time and for any reason (or for no reason) by giving at least thirty (30) days notice of such 
termination to the other party . Upon its receipt of or its giving of (as the case may be) notice of 
such termination, CONSULTANT will immediately invoice (in accordance with the invoice process 
set forth herein) CITY, and CITY agrees to pay for all services properly rendered by 
CONSULTANT to CITY prior to termination of this Agreement (which payment obligation shall 
survive termination of this Agreement). 

11. GOVERNING LAW; VENUE. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with, and is subject to, the laws of the State of Texas, and all services to be 
provided will be provided in accordance with applicable federal, state and local law. Venue for any 
suit, action or proceeding under this Agreement shall lie exclusively in Dallas County, Texas. 

12. MISCELLANEOUS. 

CONSULTANT shall keep complete and accurate records, reports, materials and other 
documents (in whatever form or format, whether kept electronically, in writing, or otherwise) 
(collectively, "records") in connection with the services performed pursuant to this Agreement, and 
such records are the property of CITY and CONSULTANT shall make such records available to 
CITY upon request. CONSULTANT shall assure the confidentiality of any records that are 
required by law, rule or regulation to be so maintained. CONSULTANT shall prepare and forward 
such additional or supplementary records as CITY may request. 

CITY shall be the absolute and unqualified owner of all studies, exhibits, maps, reports, 
analyses, determinations, recommendations, computer files, and other documents prepared or 
acquired by or on behalf of CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement with the same force and 
effect as if CITY had prepared or acquired the same. 

No reports, information, documents, or other materials given to or prepared by 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement which CITY requests in writing to be kept confidential, shall 
be made available to any individual or organization by CONSULTANT without the prior written 
approval of CITY. 

For purposes of this Agreement, notices and all other communications required to be in 
writing shall be addressed as provided hereinafter to the party to whom the notice or other 
communication is given, and shall be either (i) delivered personally, (ii) sent by United States 
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, (iii) placed in the custody of Federal 
Express Corporation or other nationally recognized carrier to be delivered overnight. Notice shall 
be deemed given: when received if delivered personally; seventy-two (72) hours after deposit if sent 

Agreement - Page 12 of 14 



by mail; and twenty-four (24) hours after deposit if sent by Federal Express or other nationally 
recognized carrier. Addresses for notice are as follows: 

To CONSULTANT: 	 To CITY: 

1100 NW Loop 410 Suite 546 
San Antonio, Texas 78213  

Attn:  Kent Power, P.E.  

No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived or any breached excused 
unless the waiver or excusing of the breach shall be in writing and signed by the party claimed to 
have waived or excused. 

Section and paragraph headings are for convenience only and shall not be used in 
interpretation of this License. For purposes of this Agreement, "includes" and "including" are terms 
of enlargement and not of limitation or exclusive enumeration, and use of the terms does not create 
a presumption that components not expressed are excluded. 

The rights and remedies provided by this Agreement are cumulative and the use of any one 
right or remedy by either party shall not preclude or waive its right to use any or all other remedies. 
Said rights and remedies are given in addition to any other rights the parties may have by law, 
statute, ordinance, or otherwise. 

This Agreement shall be deemed drafted equally by the parties hereto. The language of all 
parts of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, and any 
presumption or principle that the language herein is to be construed against any party shall not 
apply. Headings in this Agreement are for the convenience of the parties and are not intended to be 
used in construing this Agreement. All exhibits, schedules and addenda attached to this Agreement 
are incorporated herein by reference and for all purposes. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement nothing in this Agreement shall or 
may be deemed to be, or shall or may be construed to be, a waiver or relinquishment of any 
immunity, defense, or tort limitation to which the CITY, its officials, officers, employees, 
representatives, and agents is or may be entitled. 

CONSULTANT represents and warrants that it is a corporation duly organized, validly 
existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Texas, that it is authorized to conduct 
and do business in the State of Texas, and that the same shall remain in good standing throughout 
the term of this Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable. If any term, covenant, condition or 
provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 
unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall 
in no way be affected, impaired or invalidated thereby. 

This Agreement supersedes all previous Agreements and constitutes the entire 
understanding of the parties hereto. No changes, amendments or alterations shall be effective 

Attn: 

Agreement - Page 13 of 14 



unless in writing and signed by both parties. 

The undersigned officers and/or agents of the parties hereto are the properly authorized 
officials and have the necessary authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto. 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

Lei-Dunn 	 Date) 
Deputy City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

CONSULTANT Legal Department 

R H. SHACKELFORD, INC. 
A 	1 

	

-4 	r31:71
1 
11 

Kelpower, P. E. 	(Date) 
Vice President 

(Date) 

Proj. No. Project Title Fund Source No. Amount 
Redding Trail Project 
Bush Elementary 
Spring Valley Road 

Total $48,566.88 

Agreement - Page 14 of 14 

































































   
AI-1907     18.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, And Consider Approval Of An Ordinance Amending
The Code Of Ordinances Of The Town Of Addison By Amending Appendix A
- Zoning, Article XX (Special Uses), Section 1, Subsection A. (27), By Adding
That A Special Use Permit For The Sale Of Beer And Wine For Off-Premises
Consumption Only May Be Issued In Conjunction With The Issuance Of A
Special Use Permit For A Hotel.  Case 1746-Z/Town of Addison.

BACKGROUND:
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on
September 20, 2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance amending the Code
of Ordinances of the Town of Addison by amending Appendix A – Zoning, Article XX
(Special Uses), Section 1, Subsection A. (27), to add that a Special Use Permit for the
sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption only may be issued in conjunction
with the issuance of a Special Use Permit for a hotel.
 
Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer
Voting Nay:   Morgan
Absent:         Smith
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: none

Please refer to the attached staff report for additional information on the case.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1746-Z Staff Report
Ordinance



 

 

 

September 16, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE:                            Case 1746-Z/Town of Addison 

REQUEST:   Approval of an ordinance allowing the 

issuance of a Special Use Permit for the 

sale of beer and wine for off-premises 

consumption only in conjunction with a 

Special Use Permit for a hotel. 

DISCUSSION: 

Background: Prior to 2010, the sale of alcoholic beverages of any kind for off-premises 

consumption was limited to Inwood Road. On November 2, 2010, the Town held a 

Charter amendment election in order to remove this restriction for beer and wine sales. 

The Addison Zoning Ordinance has always allowed beer and wine to be sold in any 

Local Retail district with a Special Use Permit, but that provision was always 

superseded by the restriction in the Charter. Following the successful Charter 

amendment election, the Town recognized that there were many properties that were 

appropriate for such sales, but that were not zoned Local Retail. Accordingly, the 

Special Use Permit provision was expanded through Ordinance O11-007, to include the 

Urban Center district and certain Planned Development districts. This section of the 

zoning ordinance currently reads as follows:  

(27)   Sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption only in any local retail 

district, in any urban center district, or in any planned development district 

wherein the sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption is 

specifically allowed in the ordinance establishing such planned 

development. 

Since the election in 2010, The Town has issued 19 Special Use Permits for the sale of 

beer and wine for off-premises consumption only. Most recently (2014), the Hyatt House 

hotel at 4900 Edwin Lewis, which is zoned as a Planned Development, was granted this 

SUP. This allows the hotel to sell beer and wine to their guests to take from the lobby to 

their rooms. 



Case 1746-Z/Town of Addison  Page  2 
September 16, 2016 

 

Recently, the Town has been approached by another hotel, adjacent to the Hyatt House, 

requesting the same service. This hotel, however, is not zoned LR, UC or PD. Given the 

similarity in location and use, this does not seem to be an unreasonable request, but the 

ordinance does not currently allow this. 

 

Current Request: Staff is proposing to add language to this section of the zoning 

ordinance to state that such a Special Use Permit may be issued in conjunction with a 

hotel use, which also requires a Special Use Permit. The new provision would read as 

follows: 

 

(27)   Sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption only in any local retail 

district, in any urban center district, or in any planned development district 

wherein the sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption is 

specifically allowed in the ordinance establishing such planned 

development, or in conjunction with the issuance of a Special Use Permit 

for a hotel.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL  

 

This change would give the Town the ability to consider the request for this specific hotel 

as well as other hotels that may make this request in the future, but would not obligate 

the Town to approve such requests.   

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1746-Z/Town of Addison 
September 20, 2016 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on 
September 20, 2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance amending the 
Code of Ordinances of the Town of Addison by amending Appendix A – Zoning, Article 
XX (Special Uses), Section 1, Subsection A. (27), to add that a Special Use Permit for 
the sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption only may be issued in 
conjunction with the issuance of a Special Use Permit for a hotel. 
 
Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer 
Voting Nay:   Morgan 
Absent: Smith 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:  none 
On:  none 
Against: none 



Case No. 1746-Z/Town of Addison 

 

Ordinance No.    

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

ORDINANCE NO.    

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS AMENDING THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES, APPENDIX A – ZONING, ARTICLE XX 

(SPECIAL USES), SECTION 1, SUBSECTION A (27), TO PROVIDE THAT 

A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR THE SALE OF BEER AND WINE FOR OFF-

PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY MAY BE ISSUED IN CONJUNCTION 

WITH THE ISSUANCE OF A SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR A HOTEL; 

PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY 

CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF A FINE NOT TO EXCEED 

THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000) FOR EACH 

OFFENSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Addison, Texas (the “City”) is a home rule municipality having 

full power of local self-government pursuant to Article 11, Section 5 of the Texas Constitution and 

its Home Rule Charter; and 

 

WHEREAS, currently, Special Use Permits for the sale of beer and wine for off-premises 

consumption only may be approved for properties zoned Local Retail, Urban Center or in certain 

Planned Development Districts; and 

 

WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at a public hearing, and other relevant 

information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this ordinance 

promotes the general welfare and safety of this community. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF ADDISON, TEXAS THAT: 
 

 

Section 1. The Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) of the Town of Addison, Texas 

Appendix A (Zoning), Article XX (Special Uses), Section 1. Subsection A (27) is hereby amended to 

read in its entirety as follows:   

 

Section 1. – Special uses in specified districts. 

 

A. The city council may, after public hearing and proper notice to all parties 

affected, and after recommendation from the planning and zoning 

commission containing such requirements and safeguards are necessary to 

protect adjoining property, authorize by ordinance the location of any of 

the following in the following specified districts: 

 

… 

 



Case No. 1746-Z/Town of Addison 

 

Ordinance No.    

(27) Sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption only in any local 

retail district, in any urban center district, in any planned development 

district wherein the sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption 

is specifically allowed in the ordinance establishing such planned 

development, or in conjunction with the issuance of a Special Use Permit 

for a hotel. 

 

… 

 

 

Section 2. Recitals.  The above and foregoing recitals are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 

 

Section 3. Savings; Repealer.  This Ordinance shall be cumulative of all other ordinances 

of the City and shall not repeal any of the provisions of those ordinances except in those instances 

where the provisions of those ordinances are in direct conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance.  

Provided, however, that the repeal of such ordinances or parts of such ordinances and the amendments 

and changes made by this Ordinance, shall not affect any right, property or claim which was or is 

vested in the City, or any act done, or right accruing or accrued, or established, or any suit, action or 

proceeding had or commenced before the time when this Ordinance shall take effect; nor shall said 

repeals, amendments or changes affect any offense committed, or an penalty or forfeiture incurred, or 

any suit or prosecution pending at the time when this Ordinance shall take effect under any of the 

ordinances or sections thereof so repealed, amended or changed; and to that extent and for that purpose 

the provisions of such ordinances or parts of such ordinances shall be deemed to remain and continue 

in full force and effect.  

 

 

Section 4. Severability. The sections, paragraphs, sentences, phrases, clauses and words 

of this Ordinance are severable, and if any section, paragraph, sentence, phrase, clause or word in this 

Ordinance or application thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid or unconstitutional by 

a Court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions 

of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed such remaining 

portions of this Ordinance despite such invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force 

and effect.  

 

 

Section 5. Penalty.  Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of 

this ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 

fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and every 

such day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 

 

Section 6. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take from and after its adoption and 

publication as required by law.   

 



Case No. 1746-Z/Town of Addison 

 

Ordinance No.    

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas this the 

11th day of October, 2016. 

 

 

              

       Todd Meier, Mayor 

       Town of Addison, Texas 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

       

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 



   
AI-1797     19.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, and Consider Approval Of An Ordinance Changing
The Zoning On Property Located At 4875 Belt Line Road, On The North Side
Road of Belt Line Road In Between Quorum Drive And Addison Road, Which
Property Is Currently Zoned C-2, Commercial-2, With A Special Use
Permit For A Hotel, By Approving A Special Use Permit For The Sale Of Beer
And Wine For Off-Premises Consumption Only. Case 1745-SUP/Home2 Suites
by Hilton.

BACKGROUND:
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on
September 20, 2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance changing the zoning
on property located at 4875 Belt Line Road by approving a Special Use Permit for the
sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption only, subject to no conditions.
 
Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer
Voting Nay:   none
Absent:         Smith
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: none

Please refer to the attached staff report for additional information on the case.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1745-SUP Staff Report
1745-SUP Plans
Ordinance



1745-SUP 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1745-SUP/Home 2 Suites by Hilton. Public hearing, discussion, 

and take action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance changing the zoning on 

property located at 4875 Belt Line Road, which property is currently zoned C-2, 

Commerical-2, with a Special Use Permit for a hotel by approving a Special Use Permit 

for the sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 



  

 

 

 

September 16, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1745-SUP/Home 2 Suites by Hilton 

LOCATION:      4875 Belt Line Road 

REQUEST: Approval of a new Special Use Permit for the sale 

of beer and wine for off-premises consumption 

only 

 

APPLICANT:   Magnolia Lodging, represented by Mr. Michael   

Buta 

 

 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: The property at 4875 Belt Line Road is zoned Commerica-2. In December 2013, the 

Town of Addison approved a Special Use Permit for the development of the Home2 Suites by Hilton 

at this location. The property has been under construction since that time and is nearing completion. 

 

Current Request: The plan features a large lobby. In the corner of the lobby, adjacent to the 

registration desk, is a small market area for the sale of goods, including food and beverages, to 

guests of the hotel. This area is outlined with a red box on the attached floor plan. Home2 is 

requesting approval of a Special Use Permit for the sale of beer and wine for off-premises 

consumption only. This will allow them to sell beer and wine out of the market area for their guests to 

take to their room. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL 

 

This recommendation is contingent on the approval of the text amendment being proposed in Case 

1746-Z, which allows for consideration of such a request. Many hotels appear to be expanding their 

offerings and moving in the direction of providing beer and wine for sale as a way to attract additional 

and younger guests. The Town previously approved for the Hyatt House hotel, located adjacent to 

Home2, to sell beer and wine, and they have been doing so with no problems. By judging the floor 

plan and the small area being shown as the market, the beer and wine offering here will be fairly 

limited, will be done so in a controlled environment, and should not pose any issues. Granting this 

request will allow Home2 to provide an additional service to its guest and compete with its neighbors. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1745-SUP/Home2 Suites by Hilton 
September 20, 2016 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on 
September 20, 2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance changing the 
zoning on property located at 4875 Belt Line Road by approving a Special Use Permit 
for the sale of beer and wine for off-premises consumption only, subject to no 
conditions. 
 
Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer 
Voting Nay:   none 
Absent: Smith 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:  none 
On:  none 
Against: none 
 



janet.caouette
Rectangle



Case No. 1745-SUP/Home2 Suites by Hilton 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE TO GRANT A SPECIAL USE 

PERMIT FOR THE SALE OF BEER AND WINE FOR OFF-PREMISES 

CONSUMPTION ONLY, ON APPLICATION FROM HOME 2 SUITES BY 

HILTON, FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 4875 BELT LINE ROAD; 

PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED TWO THOUSAND AND NO/100 

DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE 

SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A 

VIOLATION OCCURS OR CONTINUES; SAVINGS, NO SEVERABILITY AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 4875 Belt Line Road is zoned C-2, Commercial-2, 

with a Special Use Permit for a hotel; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at a public hearing, and other relevant 

information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 Section 2.   That a Special Use Permit authorizing the sale of beer and wine for off-premises 

consumption only, on the property located 4875 Belt Line Road, is hereby granted subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

(a) Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, said Property shall be improved in 

accordance with the floor plan attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof for 

all purposes.  

 

(b) The sale of beer and wine shall be limited to the area indicated on the floor plan. 

 

 Section 3.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 

of this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 

in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 

Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 



Case No. 1745-SUP/Home2 Suites by Hilton 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

 Section 4.  That it is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered in 

its entirety, as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not 

have adopted said ordinance if any part or portion of said ordinance should be held to be 

unconstitutional or void. 

 

 Section 5.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the 

provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section 6.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS, on this the 11th day of October, 2016. 

 

 

                                                              ______________________________ 

                                                                        Todd Meier, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:  1745-SUP/Home2 Suites by Hilton 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Case No. 1745-SUP/Home2 Suites by Hilton 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

 



   
AI-1906     20.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss, And Consider Approval Of An Ordinance Amending
Planned Development District O14-056 That Zoned Property Generally
Located At 14675 Dallas Parkway, Located South Of Quorum Drive On
The Tollway, In Order To Add The Sale of Alcoholic Beverages For
On-Premises Consumption Only As A Use That May Be Authorized Upon
The Issuance Of A Special Use Permit; And By Approving A Special Use
Permit For The Sale Of Alcoholic Beverages For On-Premises Consumption
Only. Case 1748-Z/Tollway Center Cafe.

BACKGROUND:
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on
September 20, 2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance amending Planned
Development District O14-056, by adding the sale of alcoholic beverages for
on-premises consumption only as a use that may be authorized upon the issuance of a
Special Use Permit; and by approving a Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic
beverages for on-premises consumption only for the property located at 14675 Dallas
Parkway, subject to the following condition: 

The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions relating to
alcoholic beverages in exterior signage.

Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer
Voting Nay:   none
Absent:         Smith
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: none

Please refer to the attached staff report for additional information on the case.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1748-Z Staff Report
1748-Z Plans
Ordinance





1748-Z 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1748-Z/Tollway Center Cafe. Public hearing, discussion, and 

take action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance amending Planned 

Development District O14-056 that zoned the property generally located at 14675 Dallas 

Parkway, in order to add the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption 

only as a use that may be authorized upon the issuance of a Special Use Permit; and by 

approving a Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises 

consumption only. 

 

LOCATION MAP 

 



  

 

 

 

September 16, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1748-Z/Tollway Center Café 

LOCATION:      14675 Dallas Parkway 

REQUEST: Approval to amend the current Planned 

Development District in order to add the sale of 

alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption 

only as a use that may be authorized upon the 

issuance of a Special Use Permit and a Special 

Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages for 

on-premises consumption only for the café. 

 

APPLICANT:   Cawley Partners, represented by Kim Sutton 

 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: In 2014, the Town of Addison approved a Planned Development to accommodate the 

construction of the Tollway Center office building. The building was completed earlier this year, and as 

part of the amenity offerings, the building was allowed to have a small café. This is known as the 

Tollway Center Café. 

 

Current Request: The owner of the building is requesting permission to sell alcoholic beverages for 

on-premises consumption only within the café. This requires the issuance of a Special Use Permit. 

This SUP may only be granted within Planned Developments allowing for the issuance of such an 

SUP. To accommodate this request, the Planned Development must be amended in order to add, as 

an allowed use, the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only upon the issuance 

of a Special Use Permit. The property owner is asking that this change be made and that such a 

Special Use Permit be approved. 

 

Proposed Plan: The Special Use Permit would be limited to the existing café, which is approximately 

2,100 square feet with seating for 53. 

 

Facades: There are no façade changes associated with this request. 

 

Parking: The Planned Development requires a parking ratio of 1 space per 300 square feet. This 

standard has been met and will not change as a result of this request. 



2 
 

  

 

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH CONDITION 

 

Many office buildings are using food and beverages to attract tenants desiring a variety amenities. 

Allowing this request will increase the Tollway Center’s ability to attract such tenants. Staff 

recommends approval subject to the following condition: 

 

 The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions that relate to alcoholic beverages 

in any exterior signage. 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1748-Z/Tollway Center Café 
September 20, 2016 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on 
September 20, 2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance amending Planned 
Development District O14-056, by adding the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-
premises consumption only as a use that may be authorized upon the issuance of a 
Special Use Permit; and by approving a Special Use Permit for the sale of alcoholic 
beverages for on-premises consumption only for the property located at 14675 Dallas 
Parkway, subject to the following condition: 
 

 The applicant shall not use any terms or graphic depictions relating to 
alcoholic beverages in exterior signage.  

 
Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer 
Voting Nay:   none 
Absent: Smith 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:  none 
On:  none 
Against: none 
 



G
EN

X
FM
R

GEN

V
A
NV

A
N

E
V

E
V

J

J

JJ

J

J J J J
J

J

J
JJ

J J

J

ICE

COOK
LINE

EXPO/ORDER

COFFEE/BAR

WARE
WASH

PREP
LINE

WALK-IN
COOLER

ADMIN.

MOP

DELIVERY

SOILED
LINEN

G

E
1

G

D
 A

 L
 L

 A
 S

  
 P

 A
 R

 K
 W

 A
 Y

L A
 N

 D
 M

 A
 R

 K
   B

 O
 U

 L E
 V

 A
 R

 D

02/A1.01

75' - 8 3/4"

TOLLWAY CENTER

CAFE LOCATION

Project No.:

 2016 BOKA Powell, LLC  Not for regulatory approval, permitting or constructionc

Donald R. Powell, Jr.
Reg. No.: 7206

Chris W. Barnes
Reg. No.: 10147

John E. Orfield
Reg. No.: 11164

Andrew Bennett
Reg. No.: 18129

CAWLEY TOLLWAY - CAFE

14067.100

09.12.2016

CAFE

NORTH
SCALE:  1" = 80'-0"02 SITE PLAN - CAFE

SCALE:  1/4" = 1'-0"01 PLAN - CAFE



Case No. 1748-Z/Tollway Center Café 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  ____________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

COMPREHENSIVE ZONING ORDINANCE BY AMENDING ORDINANCE O14-

056 THAT ZONES AS PD – PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THE 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED AT 14675 DALLAS PARKWAY, BY 

AMENDING EXHIBIT B (PLANNED DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS) TO 

PROVIDE AN ADDITIONAL USE AND BY GRANTING A SPECIAL USE 

PERMIT FOR THE SALE OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES FOR ON-PREMISES 

CONSUMPTION ONLY, ON APPLICATION FROM CAWLEY PARTNERS; 

PROVIDING A PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED TWO THOUSAND AND NO/100 

DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE AND A SEPARATE OFFENSE 

SHALL BE DEEMED COMMITTED EACH DAY DURING OR ON WHICH A 

VIOLATION OCCURS OR CONTINUES; SAVINGS, NO SEVERABILITY AND 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the property located at 14675 Dallas Parkway is zoned PD, Planned 

Development District, through Ordinance O14-056; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendation of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at a public hearing, and other relevant 

information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

ordinance promotes the general welfare and safety of this community. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 Section 1.  That the recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 Section 2.   Exhibit B to Ordinance No. O14-056 is hereby amended as follows: 

 

 1.04 Development Regulations: 

 

 A. The Property shall be developed for Office uses as defined in the Zoning Ordinance, as 

amended, with the following support uses: 

 

i.   Rooftop conference center and terrace 

ii.  Fitness center 

iii. Café 

iii. The sale of alcoholic beverages for on-premises consumption only upon the 

issuance of a Special Use Permit 

 



Case No. 1748-Z/Tollway Center Café 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

 Section 3.  That a Special Use Permit authorizing the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-

premises consumption only, on the property located at 14675 Dallas Parkway, is hereby granted 

subject to the following conditions: 

 

(a) Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, the café shall be improved in 

accordance with the site plan and floor plan attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a 

part hereof for all purposes.  

 

(b) The Special Use Permit granted herein for the sale of alcoholic beverages for on-

premises consumption only shall be limited to the café as designated on the final site 

plan as encompassing a total area not to exceed 2,100 square feet. 

 

(c) No signs advertising sale of alcoholic beverages shall be permitted other than those 

authorized under the Liquor Control Act of the State of Texas, and any sign ordinance 

of the Town of Addison, Texas. 

 

(d) The sale of alcoholic beverages under this Special Use Permit shall be permitted with 

the cafe.  Cafes are hereby defined as establishments which receive at least sixty percent 

(60%) of their gross revenues from the sale of food and non-alcoholic beverages. 

 

(e) Said establishment shall make available to the city or its agents, during reasonable hours 

its bookkeeping records for inspection, if required, by the city to insure that the 

conditions of subparagraph (d) above are being met. 

 

(f) Any use of property considered as a nonconforming use under the Comprehensive 

Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Addison shall not be permitted to receive a license or 

permit for the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

 

(g) If the property for which these Special Use Permits are granted is not used for the 

purposes for which said permits were granted within one (1) year after the adoption of 

this ordinance, the City Council may authorize hearings to be held for the purpose of 

considering a change of zoning and repeal of the Special Use Permits granted herein. 

 

(h) If a license or permit to sell alcoholic beverages on property covered by this Special Use 

Permit is revoked, terminated or cancelled by proper authorities, the City Council may 

authorize hearings to be held for the purpose of considering a change of zoning to repeal 

the Special Use Permits granted herein. 

 

(i) The establishment shall not use the term “bar”, “tavern”, or any other terms or graphic 

depictions that relate to the sale of alcoholic beverages on any signs visible from the 

exterior of the premises. 

 

 Section 4.  That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions or terms 

of this ordinance shall be subject to the same penalty as provided for in the Comprehensive Zoning 

Ordinance of the city, as heretofore amended, and upon conviction shall be punished by a fine set 



Case No. 1748-Z/Tollway Center Café 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

in accordance with Chapter 1, General Provisions, Section 1.10, General penalty for violations of 

Code; continuing violations, of the Code of Ordinances for the Town of Addison. 

 

 Section 5.  That it is the intention of the City Council that this ordinance be considered in 

its entirety, as one ordinance, and should any portion of this ordinance be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, then said ordinance shall be void in its entirety, and the City Council would not 

have adopted said ordinance if any part or portion of said ordinance should be held to be 

unconstitutional or void. 

 

 Section 6.  That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance 

be, and the same are hereby repealed and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict with the 

provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section 7.  That this Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance. 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS, on this the 11th day of October, 2016. 

 

 

                                                              ______________________________ 

                                                                        Todd Meier, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:  1748-Z/Tollway Center Café  

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Case No. 1748-Z/Tollway Center Café 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Ordinance No.  _________ 
 

 



   
AI-1905     21.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Hold A Public Hearing, Discuss And Consider Approval Of An Ordinance That
Rezones Approximately 39.4 Acres Of Property Located At 17001 Addison
Road, Located Near The Corner Of Addison Road And Sojourn Drive, Which
Is Currently Zoned R-1, Residential-1, With A Special Use Permit For A
Private School And Approximately 1.74 Acres Of Property Located At 4350
Sojourn Drive, Which Is Currently Zoned PD, Planned Development, In Order
To Create A New Planned Development District Allowing A Private School
and Approving A Concept Plan and Development Standards, On Application
From Trinity Christian Academy. Case 1738/Z/Trinity Christian Academy.

BACKGROUND:
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on May 17
2016, voted to recommend approval of an ordinance changing the zoning on property
located at 17001 Addison Road, which is currently zoned R-1, Residential,-1 with a
special use permit for a private school, and property located at 4350 Sojourn Drive,
which is currently zoned PD, Planned Development, in order to create a new Planned
Development District allowing a private school and approving a concept plan and
development standards, subject to the following condition: 

The applicant shall provide a traffic management plan to the Town for review
and approval by the Zoning Administrator and shall abide by the provisions of
the traffic management plan.

Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer
Voting Nay:   none
Absent:         Smith
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING:
 
For:               none
On:                none
Against:         Jim Halter, 17055 Windward Lane

CASE UPDATE:

When presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission, the proposed Planned
Development regulations called for a strict parking requirement that would apply to the
school, athletic fields and theater separately. The standards also included a provision
allowing for the parking standards to be relaxed, if a parking study were conducted



allowing for the parking standards to be relaxed, if a parking study were conducted
showing that the various uses on the campus could share parking without issue. The
original thinking was that the parking study would be conducted at the time of
development plan approval. However, the applicant requested that consideration of this
case be delayed so that the parking study could be conducted now so that the actual
parking standards be reflected in the ordinance.

Trinity Christian Academy hired Kimley-Horn and Associates to determine if the 1,024
parking spaces proposed would be sufficient to meet the parking needs of the campus. It
was found that 1,024 parking spaces are enough to support the uses on campus. This
study was reviewed by Town staff and determined to have a reasonable conclusion.
Accordingly, staff is proposing to revise the ordinance in the following ways: 

Limiting enrollment to a maximum of 1,574 students.
Requiring that the property at no time provide less than 932 parking spaces,
which is the current number.
Requiring that the parking garage be constructed and there be a minimum of
1,024 parking spaces available prior to the issuance of a building permit for
the consolidated athletic center shown on the concept plan.
Allowing that staff may approve a temporary parking plan to facilitate the
construction process, which may include gravel lots.

While this changes the Planned Development regulations slightly from what was
presented to the Planning and Zoning Commission, it achieves the same outcome and
provides additional specificity in the ordinance itself.

Additional information regarding this item can be found in the attached staff report.

RECOMMENDATION:
Administration recommends approval.

Attachments
1738-Z Staff Report
Site Plan
Ordinance



1738-Z 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING Case 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy. Public hearing, discussion, 
and take action on a recommendation regarding an ordinance rezoning approximately 
39.4 acres of property located at 17001 Addison Road, which is currently zoned R-1, 
Residential-1, with a special use permit for a private school and approximately 1.74 acres 
of property located at 4350 Sojourn Drive, which property is zoned PD, Planned 
Development, in order to create a new Planned Development District allowing a private 
school and approving a concept plan and development standards. 

LOCATION MAP 

 



 

 

 

 

May 13, 2016 

STAFF REPORT 

RE: Case 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

LOCATION:      17001 Addison Road 

REQUEST: Approval of an ordinance rezoning the property 
from R-1, Residential-1, with a special use permit 
for a private school to a new PD (Planned 
Development) for a private school. 

 
APPLICANT:  Trinity Christian Academy, represented by Mr. Bill 

Dahlstrom 

DISCUSSION:  

Background: Trinity Christian Academy opened in Addison in 1976. At that time, the property was 
zoned Restindetial-1 and a special use permit for a private school was approved. Over the years, as 
TCA expanded or altered their campus plan, new special use permits have been approved to 
accommodate TCA’s growth into what exists currently on the site today. More recently, TCA’s growth 
required that they expand to a second parcel further west on Sojourn Drive for certain athletic 
facilities. Trinity Christian has recently completed a visioning process to revise their campus master 
plan. The primary focus of the campus master plan is to modernize facilities and improve the function 
of the campus. Very little growth above the current enrollment of approximately 1,500 students is 
contemplated. Any growth would be limited to a possible future Pre-K program of up to 80 students. 
  
Proposed Conceptual Plan: The proposed conceptual plan features several important elements. First, 
the proposed plan calls for the creation of a distinct entry to the campus located on Sojourn Drive. 
Several of the existing buildings are shown to be removed and replaced with new buildings to house 
campus administration, the visual arts department, the chapel, middle school and dining hall. These 
new buildings surround the campus commons open space. This will serve as the primary gathering 
point for the campus and can host certain events such as commencement. The upper school, 
performing arts center and lower school are slated to remain with only minor modifications.  
 
The plan calls for a new consolidated athletic center to move most of the athletic activities back to the 
campus from the parcel further west on Sojourn. The existing stadium will be expanded along the 
west side and become the home field side with a press box. Along with this, the speakers, which are 
currently on the east side of the stadium facing west, will be relocated and face east in the future. This 
will reduce the noise level directed towards the residential neighborhood immediately west of the 
campus. The property to the south of Sojourn is contemplated to become tennis courts. 
 



2 
 

 

The concept plan improves both parking and traffic circulation onto and within the campus. A new ring 
road is contemplated along the western edge of the consolidated athletic center and stadium. 
Additional parking is provided through the construction of a 3 level parking structure on the north side 
of the campus as well as with new surface parking lots along Addison Road and Sojourn. This pushes 
all parking to the perimeter of the campus allowing a pedestrian only environment within the campus 
and creates sufficient queuing areas for student pickup within the parking lots. 
 
Proposed Uses: The new Planned Development will allow for a private school as well as accessory 
uses typical of school campuses including recreation space and facilities and surface and structured 
parking. Up to 8,000 square feet of portable school buildings are proposed to be permitted only in 
order to accommodate the construction contemplated in the proposed concept plan. All other use of 
portable school buildings will require a special use permit. 
 
Development Standards: The following development standards would apply to buildings on the site: 
 

Building Setbacks. Because of the campus setting and number of buildings, staff is proposing 
to create a permissible building zone in place of a traditional building setback requirement. The 
permissible building zone is shown on the concept plan. Buildings and other improvements 
can be located anywhere within this zone. 
 
Height. The maximum building height is 3 stories and 60 feet as measured to the midpoint of 
the roof. Architectural features comprising of less than ten percent of the floor area may 
extend up an additional 15 feet. 
 
Lot Coverage. The maximum lot coverage for structures on the site is proposed to be 70% 
 
Maximum Allowable Building Area. The maximum allowable building areas, not including the 
parking structure, is proposed to be 585,000 square feet. 

 
 
Parking:  There is currently no parking requirement on the property. This PD proposes to establish the 
following parking standards. 
 

(1). School.  
a. Lower School. (1.5 per lower school classroom) One and one-half spaces per 

every lower school classroom. 
b. Middle School. (3.5 per middle school classroom) Three and one-half spaces 

per every middle school classroom. 
c. Upper School. (9.5 per upper school classroom) Nine and one-half spaces per 

every upper school classroom. 
(2). Soccer fields, baseball fields, and stadiums. (1 per 4 seats) One space per every four 

seats. 
(3). Theaters, auditoriums, gymnasiums and field houses. (1 per 3 seats) One space per 

every three seats. 
 



3 
 

 

Addison did not previously have a requirement for parking at schools. The proposed standards are 
pulled from the City of Dallas’ parking requirements. The other two standards are consistent with 
Addison’s requirements for the listed uses. Additionally, staff is proposing a shared parking provision 
to permit the sharing of parking among the various uses on the campus, if a parking study can be 
provided to show that the parking can be shared without negatively impacts. This would be reviewed 
by the Town’s zoning administrator and could result in fewer parking spaces than required by the 
ordinance. 
 
There are currently 842 spaces provided on the site. The concept plan proposes a total of 1024. 
Specific parking requirements will be assessed when development plan approval is requested, but the 
proposed amount should be more than adequate to meet the requirements.  
 
The Planned Development standards will require that any parking structure be constructed in 
accordance with Addison’s standard provision that ramps not be expressed on the façade of the 
structure and that steel structures and steel guard cables on the facades are prohibited. 
 
Exterior Appearance: The façade of all structures on the site will be regulated by the Planned 
Development district text. Buildings will be constructed of 80 percent masonry which can include brick, 
stone, stucco, glass and split face concrete masonry units. A maximum of three materials will be 
permitted per building. 
 
Landscaping: The landscaping must comply with the Town’s landscaping regulations, including the 
20% site landscaping coverage, perimeter screening and interior plantings. 
 
Screening of Mechanical Equipment and Service Areas: For this Planned Development, mechanical 
equipment shall be screened from view of all public areas. Loading, service and trash storage areas 
will also need to be screened from public areas. 
 
Lighting and Speaker Requirements: The Planned Development language would require that as the 
west side of the stadium is improved that the speakers be relocated accordingly and face east. Any 
change in the current lighting would need to be approved by the zoning administrator. Lighting for the 
tennis courts on the south side of Sojourn would be limited to 60 feet in height and be directed and 
shielded to shine only onto the courts. The tennis court lights would also be required to be turned off 
no later than 10pm and not operate on Sundays.  
 
Traffic Impact Analysis: The applicant was required to study the impact that this development will 
have on the roadway network currently and in the long term (2030). As part of the analysis, a traffic 
management plan for managing the morning drop-off and afternoon pick-up operations was included. 
Kimley-Horn conducted the analysis which was reviewed by Town staff in conjunction with Cobb-
Fendley. Because of the very minimal enrollment increase, it was found that the plan can be 
successfully incorporated into the surrounding roadway network. Given the additional on-site queuing 
capacity provided in the plan, traffic on Addison Road and Sojourn Drive will be improved since the 
Middle School operations currently backs up into the street. 
 



4 
 

 

The Traffic Impact Analysis did recommend that a police officer continue to be present to direct traffic 
on Addison Road during pick-up and drop-off times. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: APPROVAL WITH A CONDITION 
 
Trinity Christian Academy has been a valuable asset to the Town of Addison and in many ways as 
grown with the Town. The proposed campus master plan marks an important next step in the school’s 
continued development. The proposed changes improve both the aesthetics and operations of the 
campus and will be an enhancement to both the property and the Town. This is a long term plan with 
no immediate timetable for construction. As funding allows, Trinity Christian Academy will come back 
for development plan approval for the construction of the specific elements of the concept plan in 
accordance with the standards approved for the Planned Development district. Staff recommends 
approval of the request with one condition. 
 

 The applicant shall provide a traffic management plan to the Town for review and approval by 
the zoning administrator and shall abide by the provisions of the traffic management plan. 

 
 



Land Use Analysis form  

Town of Addison Comprehensive Plan 

Land Use Analysis     

 

Attribute Comment  Score 

 

Competitive 

 

Trinity Christian is a very successful and competitive pri-
vate school in the north Dallas area. These improvements 
will enable them to continue to compete. 

  

 Safe 
Several of the improvements contemplated in the plan will 
improve the safety of the campus. 

  

 Functional 
The concept plan improves the functionality of the cam-
pus. 

  

Visually           
Appealing 

The concept plan and PD standards will increase the visu-
al appeal of the campus with additional landscaping and 
attractive new buildings. 

  

Supported with 
Amenities 

Trinity Christian is a high quality private school campus 
with the amenities within the campus to support the 
school 

  

Environmentally 
Responsible 

This is an infill redevelopment site and represents an en-
vironmentally responsible development pattern. 

  

 Walkable The campus will be walkable. 

  

 Overall            
Assessment  

The proposal marks an important next step in the 
school’s continued development. The proposed 
changes improve both the aesthetics and operations 
of the campus and will enhance the property and this 
area Town. 

  

Attributes of Success Matrix 

Trinity Christian Academy (17001 Addison Road) 1736-Z 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Case 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 
May 17, 2016 
 
COMMISSION FINDINGS: 
 
The Addison Planning and Zoning Commission, meeting in regular session on May 17 
2016, voted to recommend approval of ordinance changing the zoning on property 
located at 17001 Addison Road, which is currently zoned R-1, Residential,-1 with a 
special use permit for a private school, and property located at 4350 Sojourn Drive, 
which is currently zoned PD, Planned Development, in order to create a new Planned 
Development District allowing a private school and approving a concept plan and 
development standards, subject to the following condition: 
 

 The applicant shall provide a traffic management plan to the Town for 
review and approval by the Zoning Administrator and shall abide by the 
provisions of the traffic management plan. 

 
Voting Aye:   Ennis, Griggs, Morgan, Robbins, Robinson, Schaeffer 
Voting Nay:   none 
Absent: Smith 
 
SPEAKERS AT THE PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
For:  none 
On:  none 
Against: Jim Halter, 17055 Windward Lane 
 







Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, TEXAS, CREATING 

PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT ________ FOR A PRIVATE SCHOOL 

WITH MODIFIED DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS ON APPROXIMATELY 41.13 

ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED AT 17001 ADDISON ROAD; PROVIDING A 

PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED TWO THOUSAND AND NO/100 DOLLARS 

($2,000.00) FOR EACH DAY A VIOLATION CONTINUES; AND PROVIDING 

FOR SAVINGS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, at a meeting held on May 17, 2016, the Planning and Zoning Commission 

considered and made a recommendation on a request for a Planned Development District (Case 

No. 1738-Z); and 

 

WHEREAS, this change of zoning is in accordance with the adopted Comprehensive Plan of 

the Town of Addison, as amended; and  

 

WHEREAS, after due deliberations and consideration of the recommendations of the 

Planning and Zoning Commission, the information received at a public hearing; and other relevant 

information and materials, the City Council of the Town of Addison, Texas finds that this 

amendment promotes the general welfare and safety of this community. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

ADDISON, TEXAS: 

 

 Section 1.  The recitals and findings set forth above are hereby found to be true and 

correct and incorporated as if fully set forth herein. 

 

 Section 2. Planned Development District ____ is hereby established for the 41.13 

acres of property located at 17001 Addison Road and more specifically described in Exhibit A 

attached hereto and incorporated herein (the “Property”), to allow a private school and master plan 

for the Trinity Christian Academy campus developed in accordance with the Development 

Standards contained in Exhibit B an attached hereto and incorporated herein and in accordance 

with the following conditions: 

 

1. The applicant shall provide a traffic management plan for the Town for review and 

approval by the Zoning Administrator and shall abide by the provisions of the 

traffic management plan. 

 

 Section 3.  Development and use of the Property must substantially comply with the 

Concept Plan shown in Exhibit C attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

 

 Section 4. Development of the Property for a private school may be undertaken in 

phases. For the purposes of this ordinance, structures, uses, and accessory uses existing on the 

effective date of this Ordinance which are not in compliance with the concept plan or these 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

development standards are considered conforming and may remain until the development of their 

respective phases. The existing structures are shown in the Existing Site Plan contained in Exhibit 

D attached hereto and incorporated herein.  Existing portable school buildings shall be allowed by 

right and shall be removed within 60 days of the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the 

relevant phase.  Failure to remove an existing portable school building as required herein shall be 

considered a violation of this Ordinance and the owner shall be subject to the penalty prescribed 

in Section 8. 

 

 Section 5. Prior to and as a condition of the issuance of a building or any other permit 

for (i) any development. or (ii) the construction, erection, alteration, extension, placement or 

locating of any building, structure, infrastructure element,  or improvement whatsoever, within the 

Property or any portion thereof, a development plan for the same must be approved by the Planning 

and Zoning Commission and by the City Council in accordance with Article XV, Section 5 of the 

Zoning Ordinance, as amended. A development plan (whether submitted for the entire Property or 

for a portion thereof) must comply with the Concept Plan, the standards, terms and conditions of 

this Ordinance, the Zoning Ordinance, and all other applicable ordinances, laws, rules, regulations, 

codes and standards of the City and any other governmental entity or agency having jurisdiction 

over the Property or applicable portion thereof. Development, occupancy, and use of the Property 

or portion thereof which is covered by or the subject of a development plan must comply in all 

respects with the development plan. Upon approval of a development plan by the City Council, 

the same shall be incorporated into and made a part of this Ordinance for all purposes.  

 

 Section 6.  The creation of Planned Development District ______ has been made in 

accordance with the comprehensive plan of the City for the purpose of promoting the health, safety 

and welfare of the community, and with consideration of the reasonable suitability for the 

particular use and with a view of conserving the value of the buildings and encouraging the most 

appropriate use of land within the community. 

 

 Section 7.   That the provisions of the Town of Addison Code of Ordinances, as 

amended, shall remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by this ordinance. 

 

 Section 8.   That any person, firm, corporation, or other business entity violating any 

of the provisions or terms of this Ordinance shall, in accordance with Article XXVIII (Penalty for 

Violation) of the Zoning Ordinance, be fined, upon conviction, in an amount of not more than Two 

Thousand and No/100 Dollars ($2,000.00), and a separate offense shall be deemed committed each 

day during or on which a violation occurs or continues. 

 

 Section 9.   The provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and should any section, 

subsection, paragraph, sentence,  phrase or word of this Ordinance, or application thereof to any 

person, firm, corporation or other business entity or any circumstance, be adjudged or held to be 

unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the same shall not affect the validity of the remaining or other 

parts or portions of this Ordinance, and the City Council hereby declares that it would have passed 

such remaining parts or portions of this Ordinance despite such unconstitutionality, illegality, or 

invalidity, which remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 Section 10.   That all ordinances of the City in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City not in conflict 

with the provisions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

 Section 11.   This Ordinance shall become effective from and after its passage and 

approval and after publication as may be required by law or by the City Charter or ordinance 

 

 PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF ADDISON, 

TEXAS, on this the 11th day of October, 2016. 

 

 

                                                              ______________________________ 

                                                                        Todd Meier, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Laura Bell, City Secretary 

 

CASE NO:  1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Brenda N. McDonald, City Attorney 

 

 

PUBLISHED ON: _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

EXHIBIT A: PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

NORTH - PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF DALLAS § 

 

BEING a tract of land situated in the L. NOBELS SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1098 and the E. 

SHEPPARD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1361, City of Addison, Dallas County, Texas and 

being all of the same tracts of land described in deed to Trojan Real Properties, Inc., recorded in 

Instrument No. 20070460310, Official Public Records, Dallas County, Texas (O.P.R.D.C.T.), 

and being more particularly described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod with plastic cap stamped "huit zollar" found for corner, said 

iron rod being the northeast corner of Lot 1, Block A, Trinity Christian Academy and being 

situated in the westerly right-of-way line of Addison Road (72' right-of-way, at this point); 

 

THENCE South 01 deg 34 min 44 sec West, along the westerly right-of-way line of said 

Addison Road, a distance of 369.03 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for corner; 

 

THENCE North 89 deg 27 min 59 sec East, continuing along said westerly right-of-way line, a 

distance of 12.00 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for corner; 

 

THENCE South 01 deg 14 min 40 sec West, continuing along the westerly right-of-way line of 

said Addison Road, a distance of 647.11 feet to a MAG nail with shiner set for corner at the 

intersection of the westerly right-of-way line of said Addison Road and the northerly right-of-

way line of Sojourn Road (60' right-of-way); 

 

THENCE South 89 deg 27 min 59 sec West, departing the westerly right-of-way line of said 

Addison Road and along the northerly right-of-way line of said Sojourn Road, a distance of 

1,589.38 feet to a point for corner from which a 1/2 inch iron rod found bears North 30 deg 10 

min 22 sec West, a distance of 0.61 feet, said point being the southeast corner of Addison Place 

Addition, an addition to the Town of Addison, Dallas County, Texas according to the plat thereof 

recorded in Volume 82038, Page 1386, Deed Records, Dallas County, Texas; 

 

THENCE North 00 deg 34 min 01 sec West, departing the northerly right-of-way line of said 

Sojourn Road and along the east line of said Addition Place Addition, a distance of 646.79 feet 

to a 1/2 inch iron rod with red plastic cap stamped "W.A.I." set for corner, said iron rod being 

situated in the southerly line of Lot 2, The Dominion Addition, an addition to the Town of 

Addison, Dallas County, Texas according to the plat thereof recorded in Volume 95102, Page 

2238, Deed Records, Dallas County, Texas; 

 

THENCE along the southerly and easterly line of said Lot 2 the following: 

 

North 89 deg 27 min 59 sec East, a distance of 249.80 feet to an "X" cut in concrete set 

for corner and the beginning of a curve to the left having a radius of 170.00 feet, a central 

angle of 90 deg 00 min 06 sec, a chord bearing of North 44 deg 27 min 59 sec East and a 

chord length of 240.42 feet; 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

Along said curve to the left, an arc distance of 267.04 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with red 

plastic cap stamped "W.A.I." set for corner; 

 

North 00 deg 32 min 01 sec West, a distance of 308.17 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with red 

plastic cap stamped "W.A.I." set for corner and the beginning of a curve to the right 

having a radius of 155.00 feet, a central angle of 90 deg 02 min 09 sec, a chord bearing of 

North 44 deg 29 min 06 sec East and a chord length of 219.27 feet; 

 

Along said curve to the right, an arc distance of 243.57 feet to a 1/2 inch irin rod with 

plastic cap stamped "huit zollar" found for corner; 

 

North 89 deg 30 min 14 sec East, a distance of 436.69 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found 

for corner and the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the right having a radius of 80.00 

feet, a central angle of 42 deg 44 min 34 sec, a chord bearing of South 69 deg 07 min 34 

sec East and a chord length of 58.31 feet; 

 

Along said non-tangent curve to the right, an arc distance of 59.68 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 

rod with plastic cap stamped "huit zollar" found for corner; 

 

South 08 deg 24 min 38 sec East, a distance of 57.59 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod found for 

corner and the beginning of a curve to the left having a radius of 25.00 feet, a central 

angle of 206 deg 46 min 08 sec, a chord bearing of North 69 deg 06 min 50 sec East and 

a chord length of 48.64 feet; 

 

Along said curve to the left, an arc distance of 90.22 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with 

plastic cap stamped "huit zollar" found for corner, said iron rod being situated in the 

westerly line of Lot 1 of said The Dominion Addition; 

 

THENCE along the westerly and southerly lines of said Lot 1, the following: 

 

South 34 deg 15 min 58 sec East, a distance of 38.96 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with 

plastic cap stamped "huit zollar" found for corner; 

 

North 79 deg 07 min 13 sec East, a distance of 79.68 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with 

plastic cap stamped "huit zollar" found for corner and the beginning of a non-tangent 

curve to the left having a radius of 1,050.00 feet, a central angle of 15 deg 35 min 16 sec, 

a chord bearing of South 73 deg 11 min 43 sec East and a chord length of 284.78 feet; 

 

Along said non-tangent curve to the left, an arc distance of 285.66 feet to a 1/2 inch iron 

rod with plastic cap stamped "huit zollar" found for corner; 

 

South 50 deg 51 min 14 sec East, a distance of 156.20 feet to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINING within these metes and bounds 39.326 acres or 1,713,019 square feet of land, 

more or less. 

 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

Bearings shown hereon are based upon an on-the-ground Survey performed in the field on the 

15th day of April, 2015, utilizing a G.P.S. measurement (NAD 83, grid) of South 01 deg 34 min 

44 sec West (Plat - South 02 deg 22 min 55 sec West), along the west right-of-way line of 

Addison Road, recorded in Document No. 200600311786, O.P.R.D.C.T. 

 

 SOUTH - PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

 

STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF DALLAS § 

 

BEING a tract of land situated in the LEVI NOBLES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 1098, City of 

Addison, Dallas County, Texas and being all of Lot 1, Block A, Dallas Gymnastics Center, an 

addition to the City of Addison, Dallas County, Texas according to the plat thereof reecorded in 

Volume 98073, Page 0025, Deed Records, Dallas County, Texas and being more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch iron rod found for the northeast corner of said Lot 1, Block A, said 

iron rod also being situated in the south right-of-way line of Sojourn Drive; 

 

THENCE South 00 deg 35 min 40 sec East, departing said south right-of-way line and along the 

east line of said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 188.61 feet to a 1/2 inch iron rod with red plastic 

cap stamped "W.A.I." set for corner; 

 

THENCE South 89 deg 21 min 59 sec West, departing the east line and along the south line of 

said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 400.31 feet to a point for corner from which a 1/2 inch iron rod 

found bears South 58 deg 37 min 55 sec West, a distance of 0.37 feet; 

 

THENCE North 00 deg 30 min 09 sec West, departing the south line and along the west line of 

said Lot 1, Block A, a distance of 189.53 feet to an "X" cut in concrete found for corner and 

being situated in the south right-of-way line of said Sojourn Drive, same being the north line of 

said Lot 1, Block A; 

 

THENCE North 89 deg 29 min 51 sec East, along the north line of said Lot 1, Block A and the 

south right-of-way line of said Sojourn Drive, a distance of 400.01 feet to the POINT OF 

BEGINNING. 

 

CONTAINING within these metes and bounds 1.737 acres or 75,657 square feet of land, more or 

less. 

 

Bearings shown hereon are based upon an on-the-ground Survey performed in the field on the 

21st day of April, 2016, utilizing a G.P.S. measurement (NAD 83, grid) of South 01 deg 34 min 

44 sec West (Plat - South 02 deg 22 min 55 sec West), along the west right-of-way line of 

Addison Road, recorded in Document No. 200600311786, O.P.R.D.C.T. 

 

 

 

 

 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

EXHIBIT B: DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 

 

1.  Purpose.  

 

The purpose of this Planned Development District (the "PD District," "Planned Development 

District," or "district") is to accommodate the development of a private school and master plan for 

the Trinity Christian Academy campus in phases. The Property will be developed in accordance 

with all of the standards, terms and conditions of this Ordinance (the "Ordinance"). These Planned 

Development conditions are incorporated into and made a part of the Ordinance for all purposes. 

Development, occupancy, and use of the Property and any portion thereof shall comply with 

development conditions set forth herein, with the Ordinance, with all applicable provisions of the 

Zoning Ordinance of the Town of Addison, Texas (the "City") (the same being Appendix A - 

Zoning of the Code of Ordinances of the City, and as it may be amended or superseded (the 

"Zoning Ordinance") and with all other applicable ordinances, laws, rules, regulations, standards. 

and codes of the City and any other governmental entity or agency having jurisdiction over the 

Property or applicable portion thereof.  

 

2.  Definitions, Interpretations.  

A. Unless otherwise stated, the definitions and interpretations in the Zoning Ordinance apply 

to this Ordinance and the development conditions set forth herein.  

3. Phasing. 

A. Development of the Property for a private school may be undertaken in phases. For the 

purposes of this PD, structures, uses, and accessory uses existing on the effective date of 

this Ordinance (shown in Exhibit D – Existing Site Plan) which are not in compliance with 

the concept plan are considered conforming and may remain until the development of their 

respective phases. 

4. Uses.  

 

A. Authorized Uses/ Prohibited Uses. Only those uses identified herein as permitted uses, 

special uses, or accessory uses are authorized uses (subject to the terms, conditions and 

provisions of this Ordinance) within the Property. All other uses are expressly prohibited.  

 

B. Permitted Uses. 

(1). Private schools, including, but not limited to the “school facility” use as defined in 

Article XXX of the Zoning Ordinance.  Maximum enrollment shall be 1,574 

students. 

(2). Existing portable school buildings shall be allowed by right and shall be removed 

within 60 days of the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for the relevant phase; 

any other portable building shall be allowed only upon the issuance of a Special 

Use Permit. 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

 

C. Accessory Uses. The following are permitted as accessory uses within the Property:  

(1). Recreation space and facilities 

(2). Parking and parking structures 

(3). Other uses customarily incidental and subordinate to permitted uses and any special 

uses 

 

5. Development Standards 

 

A. Development, occupancy, and use of the Property shall comply with the development 

standards set forth in the following Table A: 

 

Table A: Development Standards 
  

Building Setbacks Building setbacks within the property are 

shown as the permissible building zone 

on the Concept Plan in Exhibit C. 

  

Maximum Building Height 60 feet as measured to the midpoint of the 

roof 

  

Maximum Lot Coverage 70% 

  

Maximum Allowable Building Area 585,000 square feet 

 

B. Miscellaneous development standards: 

 

(1).  Lot coverage. The area of above ground parking structures is included in the lot 

coverage calculation. 

(2). Height. Architectural features including, but not limited to, turrets, spires and 

towers may exceed the maximum building height provided that any such structure 

is no more than 15 feet higher than the maximum permitted height and has a floor 

plan which is ten percent or less of the ground floor area of the building of which 

it is a part of. 

(3).  Maximum Allowable Building Area. Parking structures or covered walkways are 

not included in the maximum allowable building area calculation. 

 

6. Parking 

 

A. Generally. Off-street parking must be provided in accordance with the following: 

 (1). At no time shall the property provide less than 932 parking spaces. 

(2). The property shall be required to construct the parking garage prior to the issuance 

of a building permit for the consolidated athletic center as shown on the Concept 

Plan and provide at least 1,024 spaces prior to the issuance of the occupancy permit 

for said consolidated athletic center. 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

(3). In order to facilitate the construction process, a temporary parking plan may be 

utilized upon approval of the Zoning Administrator. 

 a. Temporary parking may be provided on gravel parking lots, utilize tandem 

parking as well as other provisions which the Zoning Administrator determines to 

be acceptable. 

B. Parking garages. Parking garage ramps shall not be express on the façade of the 

parking structure fronting or visible from public streets or adjacent properties. Steel 

parking garages and steel guard cables on the garage facades are prohibited. 

7. Exterior Appearance 

 

A. Materials: 

(1).  At least 80 percent of the exterior walls of all structures shall be of masonry 

construction. 

(2).  For purposes of this planned development district, "masonry construction" 

includes, but is not limited to brick, stone, cultured stone, glazing and plate glass, 

three-coat stucco, and split face concrete masonry units. An applicant, however, 

may submit a design for construction of parking structures that employs alternative 

construction materials for exterior cladding with an application for a development 

plan. The alternative may be approved by the city upon determination that such 

construction will result in an appearance that is compatible with surrounding 

buildings and the overall character of the district. 

(3).  No more than 15% of each exterior wall fronting or visible from public streets 

(including above grade parking structures) shall use accent materials such as stucco, 

architectural metal paneling, tile, and fiber cement siding (e.g. hardi-material). 

(4).  No more than 40% of exterior cladding of all walls not fronting on, or not visible 

from, public areas (including above grade parking structures) shall use accent 

materials such as stucco, architectural metal paneling, tile, and fiber cement siding 

(e.g. hardi-material). 

(5).  The exterior cladding (excluding glass and roofing materials) of all buildings, 

(including above grade parking structures) shall be composed of not more than 

three materials.  

(6).  The following materials are prohibited as primary cladding materials:  

i. Aluminum siding or cladding 

ii. Fiberboard or Masonite siding 

iii. Wood roof shingles 

iv. Unfinished concrete block (architecturally finished concrete block is permitted 

as a cladding material) 

 

(7).  The following materials are prohibited as primary roofing materials:  

i. Wood roof shingle  



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

ii. Composite shingles with less than a 50-year life  

 

(8).  All balcony and stairway walking surfaces shall be constructed of noncombustible 

materials. The structural elements may be constructed of noncombustible materials 

or decay-resistant wood or as required by the Building Code. All handrails and 

guardrails shall be constructed of noncombustible materials. 

 

B. Windows. Glass is to be clear or tinted, not reflective.  

C. Walls. Walls attached to buildings shall be developed as architectural extensions of the 

building, constructed of the same material and in the same style.  

8. Landscape.  

 

A. Landscaping within the Property shall comply with the standards contained in the Town 

of Addison Code of Ordinances, as amended. 

 

9. Screening 

 

A. Mechanical equipment shall be screened from view from all public streets and adjacent 

properties and located to minimize noise intrusion off each lot. The required screening 

must be composed of the same exterior materials as the buildings on the lot, or through 

the use of masonry walls, ornamental fence (80 percent opaque), evergreen landscape 

material, or combination thereof.  

B. Loading, service, and trash storage areas shall be screened from all public streets and 

adjacent properties. Refuse containers must be placed on a designed, reinforced 

concrete pad, including drive approach. The required screening must be composed of 

the same exterior materials as the buildings or through the use of masonry walls, 

ornamental fence (80 percent opaque), evergreen landscape material, or combination 

thereof.  

C. Roof-mounted mechanical elements must be screened from view from all public streets 

and adjacent properties. Screening must be architecturally compatible with the building 

design.  

 

10.  Miscellaneous Requirements 

 

A. Athletic Field Improvements. Location of structures and improvements such as 

dugouts, bleachers, backstops, benches, and other similar athletic improvements may 

be relocated anywhere within the permissible building zone of the Property to 

accommodate other proposed improvements. 

 

B. Speakers. Upon construction of the proposed press box and bleachers for the football 

field, speakers for the football field shall be removed from their current location on the 

east side of the football field and shall then be located on the west side of the football 

field and oriented towards the east. 

 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

C. Additional athletic lighting may be installed upon approval of the Zoning 

Administrator.  If the Zoning Administrator denies additional athletic lighting, the 

applicant may appeal to the City Council.  The City Council may not approve 

additional athletic lighting prior to a public hearing held not sooner than 10 days after 

written notice is provided to property owners within 200 feet of the area of the request. 

 

D. Lighting for tennis courts shall not exceed 60' in height. Fixtures shall be shielded and 

directed onto courts. Lighting shall be turned off no later than 10 p.m. on Monday – 

Saturday, with no lighting operations on Sunday. 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

EXHIBIT C: CONCEPT PLAN 

 
 

 



Case No. 1738-Z/Trinity Christian Academy 

Ordinance No. ___________ 

EXHBIT D: EXISTING SITE PLAN 

 



   
AI-1859     22.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Infrastructure- Development Services

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, Consider, And Provide Direction Related To The Site Selection And
Design Of The U.S. Customs and Border Protection Facility At Addison
Airport.

BACKGROUND:
In 1994, Addison Airport was granted U.S. Customs and Border Protection User Fee
status.  A User Fee Airport is an airport that has been approved to receive the services
of a Customs officer who will process aircraft, passengers, and cargo that is entering the
United States.  The user fee airport is responsible for all the costs associated with this
service.

On May 4, 2015, U.S. Customs and Border Protection conducted an inspection of the
Customs inspection facility at the Addison Airport, as part of their program to inspect all
User Fee airport facilities across the country. During the inspection, several deficiencies
were found based on the current requirements as outlined in the latest U. S. Customs
and Border Protection Airport Technical Design Standard.  In general, the deficiencies
are related to the amount of space for the Customs facility, direct access to the aircraft
ramp, and various security requirements.  The current facility is an approximately 300
square foot office in the hangar area of Million Air's main hangar.  The estimated space
required for an airport Addison's size is approximately 3,700 square feet that consists
of office space, waiting area space, detention and inspection space, and other ancillary
space. 

Under the User Fee arrangement, the Town is required to meet the standards for space,
ramp access, and security or risk losing the ability to have Customs service on the
airport.  Losing this service would put Addison Airport at a distinct competitive
disadvantage to other airports in the area that have Customs service and would be
detrimental to several tenants on the field.  Therefore, it is critical that a new Customs
site be selected and brought into compliance.

In order to continue to have Customs service on the field and in order to meet the
standards as set forth by the Federal government, the Town would either need to retrofit
an existing space, build a new stand-alone facility, or co-locate with a business on the
field, most likely a Fixed Base Operator.  

Staff will provide a briefing on the importance of the Customs service, the possible sites
for consideration and the operational considerations for each site, and the financial
implications of each option.  Staff will seek Council's direction as it relates to the site



selection and the design of the facility. Specifically, staff will ask Council to decide on the
following questions:
  

What should be included in that facility? 
Customs service only
Customs service and airport management offices
Customs service, airport management offices, and a public use space

There are three sites that have the potential to meet Customs' requirements.
Of these three sites, where should the facility be built?

Once these decisions are made, staff will make a recommendation on the next steps.
 

RECOMMENDATION:
Information only, no action required.

Attachments
Presentation



Addison Airport
Customs

October 11, 2016

10/11/2016 1



Customs at Addison 

• User Fee Airport – Since December 1994
• Airport reimburses Customs for all costs
• Staffing costs for minimum of one full-time inspector
• Currently located in Million Air hangar

• May 2015 – Received Non-compliance letter 
from Customs and Border Protection 

10/11/2016 2



Importance of Customs

Airport Master Plan recognized importance 
of Customs service to:

• Remain competitive
(DFW, Love Field, Meacham, Alliance, McKinney)

• Support and retain existing tenant base
• (Mary Kay, Basa Resources, Yum! Brands, Sky B&B, 

PepsiCo, etc.)

• Attract new business
• Increase based aircraft and private 

investment

10/11/2016 3



Non-compliance Letter 

• May 2015 – Non-compliance letter received
• “…must satisfy Customs and Border Protection 

facility standards…”
• Several areas of deficiencies noted
• Changes required to maintain service
• If not made, subject to 120-day termination

• Retrofit an existing building or construct a new 
facility (current facility cannot be made compliant)

10/11/2016 4



• Facility Requirements:
• Minimum 3,710sf building
• Direct access to / view of ramp
• Reasonable landside access
• Rigorous security specifications

• Minimum of 10,000sf heavy concrete apron 
• Runway / Taxiway access for large aircraft

• Taxiway Alpha
• West end of Taxilane Victor

10/11/2016 5

Customs Facility Requirements 



Customs Only

Customs + Airport 
Offices

Customs + Airport 
Offices + Public 
Use 

What should we build?

6



• Three sites meeting operational requirements:
1. JetPort site
2. Midfield site 
3. Southeast quadrant

• Additional operational considerations
• Aircraft towing or taxiing from Customs ramp to 

FBO
• Co-locating with an FBO may be unfair advantage 

(possible Grant Assurance violation)

10/11/2016 7

Customs Facility Site Alternatives



10/11/2016 8

JetPort – Claire Chennault



10/11/2016 9

JetPort – Claire Chennault
Pro:
• Capable of being renovated; renovation costs lower than new construction 

costs
• Large enough to accommodate additional uses
• Could support new-build Customs facility
• Proximity to Million Air, which presently serves ~90% of Customs flights
• Proximity to Atlantic Aviation
• Existing ramp could support Customs operations for short-term

Con:
• Precludes other redevelopment proposals
• Not convenient to potential third FBO at SEQ 
• Ramp would need to be reconstructed in near future



10/11/2016 10

Midfield – Toll Tunnel



10/11/2016 11

Midfield – Toll Tunnel 

Pro:
• Proximity to Atlantic Aviation

• Convenient to all FBOs

• Existing asphalt ramp could support Customs short-term

• Site is less commercially valuable than alternatives

• Customs facility still leaves space for redevelopment on site 

Con:
• Requires demolition of existing hangar, redevelopment / new-build

• Ramp would need to be reconstructed



10/11/2016 12

Southeast Quadrant



10/11/2016 13

Southeast Quadrant

Pro:
• Site under consideration for redevelopment

Con:
• Operationally inconvenient for existing FBOs (Million Air, Atlantic)

• Would provide unfair advantage to third FBO

• New ramp would need to be constructed

• Site is commercially very valuable



Which site?

• Carve out 
• Co-located with FBOJetPort

• Stand alone Midfield

• Carve out
• Co-located with FBO

Southeast 
Quadrant

10/4/2016 14



Recommendation
• Midfield site 

• Least developable of all sites
• Stand alone facility – not co-located with an 

FBO 
• Provides neutrality for all FBOs

• Combine with Airport Management Office
• Provides flight line visibility 
• Ability to oversee Customs operation 
• Saves annual office rental

10/4/2016 15



Next Steps

10/11/2016 16

• Direction on what to build and where
• Engage architectural / engineering 
firm

• Design facility
• Opinion of probable construction cost

• Revisit with Council



   
AI-1851     23.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Athletic Club

AGENDA CAPTION:
Present, Discuss, Consider And Provide Direction Related To Action Needed To Adopt
The Addison Athletic Club Master Plan.   

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of this item is to obtain guidance from the Council regarding how the Town
should move forward with the Addison Athletic Club Master Plan. Staff will be reviewing
the results of the July 2016 survey/community input sessions and providing options
based on those results. Depending on the elements selected, staff will research multiple
funding options to be considered and will request Council adoption of both the Master
Plan and Financing Plan.

In December 2014, Addison residents were engaged through surveys and focus groups
to gain as much feedback as possible for the start of a Master Plan for the 29 year old
Addison Athletic Club. In January 2015, an 11-member Master Plan Committee made up
of two Council liaisons, seven club members, one club instructor, and one club
member/Addison employee were selected. Together with Barker, Rinker, Seacat
Architecture representatives, the committee held a series of four charrette workshops to
develop the recommended elements of the Master Plan including: 

5,400 square feet of new programming space
Updated HVAC system to reduce maintenance costs
Welcoming lobby and upgraded interior appearance
Large flexible spaces to adapt to fitness trends
Flexible locker rooms that support families, seniors and special needs

From the February 2016 Council meeting, Council directed staff to seek additional input
from the public, so in July 2016, the Town of Addison initiated an on-line survey as well
as three community meetings held at the Athletic Club to determine which elements of
the committee's findings were the most desired and gauge the community's interest in
funding the recommended improvements identified by the previous committee. The top
four priorities identified in the community response are: 

HVAC (Heating, Ventilation & Air Conditioning replacement and upgrades)1.
Lobby/Core Building Improvements2.
Gymnasium and Track Improvements3.
Locker Room Renovations4.

The complete Draft AAC Master Plan report is too large for the agenda software and is
available in the City Secretary's area for viewing.



 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff requests direction from Council to bring forward a Resolution at a future meeting.

Attachments
Report



 

 

 

 

ADDISON ATHLETIC CLUB 

Master Plan Update 

 

October, 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

         
    

 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

                             i 

 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

CHAPTER ONE – EXECUTIVE SUMMMARY      1 
1.1 INTRODUCTION         1 
1.2 PROJECT HISTORY        1 
1.3 PROJECT PROCESS        2 

 

CHAPTER TWO – COMMUNITY INPUT      3 

 2.1 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCESS      3 
 2.2 CURRENT RECREATION TRENDS      3 
 2.3 SURVEY RESULTS        3 
 2.4 CURRENT MEMBERSHIP FEE STRUCTURE     4 
 

CHAPTER THREE – CORE PROGRAMS       5 

 3.1 EXISTING PROGRAMS        5 
3.2 FUTURE PROGRAM OPPORTUNITIES      5 

 

CHAPTER FOUR – CONCEPT DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT   6 
 4.1 PROJECT DESCRIPTION        6 
 4.2 BUILDING FLOOR PLANS       8 

 EXISTING 1ST AND 2ND FLOOR PLANS     8 

 PROPOSED 1ST AND 2ND FLOOR PLANS               10 

 PROPOSED INTERIOR VIEWS                13  
 4.3 SITE IMPROVEMENTS                  14 
 

CHAPTER FIVE – BUDGET                   15 

 5.1 ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS                   15 
 5.2 PHASING                    17 
 
 

APPENDIX: 
APPENDIX 1 – STATISTICALLY VALID SURVEY RESULTS 
APPENDIX 2 – COST ESTIMATE DETAIL



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

1 

CHAPTER ONE  - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  

1.1 INTRODUCTION 
 
The Town of Addison’s Athletic Club (AAC), 
located at 3900 Beltway Drive, offers a variety 
of opportunities for its 3,500 members. The 
AAC is a 55,000 square foot facility that opened 
in March of 1987.  The Town of Addison desired 
a feasibility study for the expansion/renovation 
of the AAC that would include additional 
programming space, an increase in the square 
footage of the weight/fitness area, more 
exercise rooms, new welcome desk/lounge 
space, and updated locker room facilities. Currently, the Athletic Club offers the following 
components: 

 Fitness room includes weight machines, treadmills, stair climbers, bikes, elliptical 
machines and free weights 

 Classes for adults including fitness, dance, specialty camps, yoga, racquetball, and crafts 

 One full-size gym 

 Four racquetball courts 

 Personal Trainers 

 1/17 mile indoor running/walking track 

 Multi-purpose classroom 

 Lounge /coffee bar 

 Child watch 

 Indoor and outdoor aquatics 
 

1.2 PROJECT HISTORY 
Over the past year, a committee of Council Liaisons, residents and club instructors have worked 
with a local architecture firm to develop a new master plan for the Addison Athletic Club. 

In December 2014 Addison residents were engaged through surveys and focus group to gain as 
much feedback as possible for the start of a Master Plan for the 29 year old Addison Athletic 
Club.  In January 2015 an 11-member Master Plan Committee made up of two Council liaisons, 
seven club members, one club instructor, and one club member/Addison employee were 
selected.  Together with BRS Architecture representatives, the committee held a series of four 
charrette workshops to develop the recommended elements of the master plan including: 

 5,400 square feet of new programming space 
 Updated HVAC system to reduce maintenance costs 
 Welcoming lobby and upgraded interior appearance 
 Large flexible spaces to adapt to fitness trends 
 Flexible locker rooms that support families, seniors and special needs 

 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

2 

1.3 PROJECT PROCESS 
The diagram below illustrates how this planning process progressed to determine 
the recommendations included in this report for the Addison Athletic  
Club Master Plan: 
 

 

 

 

 

In July 2016 The Town of Addison initiated an on-line survey as well as three community meetings 
held at the Athletic Club to determine which elements of the committee’s findings were the most 
desired and gauge the community’s interest in funding the recommended improvements 
identified by the previous committee.  The top four priorities identified in the community 
responses are: 

1. HVAC (Heating, Ventilation & Air Conditioning) replacement and upgrades 
Includes new equipment and ductwork as needed 

2. Lobby/Core Building improvements - New welcome desk, permanent transition 
of two racquetball courts to exercise space 

3. Gymnasium and Track improvements - new lighting, wall finishes, new track 
surface and new guard rail to meet the current codes 

4. Locker Room renovations - updating and bringing the locker rooms into 
accessibility compliance with the Texas Accessibility Standards. Improvement will 
include new floor and wall finishes, updated lighting, new lockers and fixtures 

The complete results of the survey and community findings are detailed in Section 2.3. 

Phase 1 Community 
Input and 

Recommended 
Inmprovements

Town Council 
Review

Phase 2 Proposed 
Opportunities/ 

Community Input

Final Master Plan 
Report / Cost Model



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

3 

CHAPTER TWO - COMMUNITY INPUT SUMMARY 

2.1 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION PROCESS 

As part of the Master Plan Update, there was extensive public input and participation in July 
2016. The on-line survey was launched beginning July 13 through July 25, 2016. In addition to the 
on-line survey, three community meeting were held at the Athletic Club on July 13, July 16 and 
July 20, 2016. 

A brief presentation outlining the results of the Phase 1 study and a review of the 
recommendations of the committee were presented.  Attendees could ask questions or make 
comments on the presentation and express their interest in the proposed improvements. 

Display boards were set up to help indicate the level of improvements proposed along with 
images of similar types of facilities displayed to help members identify the concept of the 
proposed changes. At each meeting, the members were also given the opportunity to fill out the 
survey form on- line or by paper copy. The results of the survey are in Appendix 1. 

2.2 CURRENT RECREATION TRENDS 
The current facility offers a variety of activities to address the needs of the community. 
Currently the biggest trends in recreation facilities are: 

 Adult fitness programming 

 Indoor walking tracks 

 Leisure water 

 Therapeutic water 

 Gymnasiums 

The current AAC provides space for the most of the popular activities trends. The one 
exception is adequate adult exercise space. During the phase one study several areas were 
identified as possible areas to expand current programming options with more flexibility. 
One of these changes has taken place through the re-use of existing racquetball courts to 
provide more exercise space. A recommendation of this study is to make this change in a 
permanent way. 

2.3 SURVEY RESULTS 
A total of 399 responses were submitted and analyzed. 

 Almost 99% of the respondents are current members of the Athletic Club. 

 55% of all survey respondents regularly visited the facility as least 12 times per 
month. 

 Almost 2/3 of the respondents are age 50 or older.  

 54% of the respondents are female and 46% are male. 

 94% of the respondents ranked the proposed improvements with the top four in 
following priority: 

1. Replace the Heating and Air Conditioning system 
2. Lobby / Core Building Improvements 
3. Gymnasium & Track Upgrades 
4. Locker Room Upgrades 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

4 

 

In addition to the priorities for proposed improvements, the survey responses also 
indicated the following: 

 51% of the respondents indicated they would be willing to consider an increase in 
membership fees to support the improvements. 

 Almost 80% of the respondents indicated they would NOT support a tax increase 
to fund the improvements. 

Based on the community meetings input, the following items were noted:  

 There is a demand for keeping some racquetball courts. 

 A vocal desire to keep the steam/sauna facilities although the maintenance upkeep 
is high averaging $2,500/year for repairs. 

 More exercise room space is needed to offer varied programming.  

The complete survey results are located in the Appendix 1 this report. 

2.4 CURRENT ATHLETIC CLUB FEE STRUCTURE 
As a part of the study process, membership fee structures of similar facilities across the 
metroplex were studied to compare with the current AAC fee structure. Currently members of 
the Addison Athletic Club are required to register and pay a one-time fee of $10.00. There is no 
fee for renewal of the yearly membership. This fee arrangement is unique to the Town of Addison 
as other surrounding communities charge a monthly or yearly fee based on the type of 
membership offered. 
Examples of surrounding community annual fee structure: 
 Coppell     Family - $500; Individual - $250 
 Plano      Family - $700; Individual - $228  
 Grapevine      Family - $300; Individual - $120 
 Frisco      Family - $900; Individual - $530 
 Flower Mound    Family - $500; Individual - $250 
 Lewisville    Family - $  45; Individual - $  15 
 Farmers Branch   Family - $360; Individual - $180 
 Carrollton    Family - $163; Individual - $  95 

Richardson    Family - $135; Individual - $  60 
Addison ($10.00 one-time fee) Family - $    0; Individual - $    0 



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

5 

 

 
 
 

CHAPTER THREE – CORE PROGRAMS 

3.1 EXISTING PROGRAMS - AMENITIES 
Core programs include the essential program areas that the Athletic Club currently offers. These 
programs fulfill a large number community needs, and have proven popular over the years. 

 Limited group exercise space 
 Basketball 
 Racquetball 
 Cardio/weight room/Circuit training 
 Spin bikes  
 Personal training 
 Senior programming 
 Yoga 
 Indoor and outdoor aquatics 
 Walking / Jogging track 
 Meeting rooms 
 Locker rooms 
 Sauna and steam rooms 

 

3.2 FUTURE PROGRAM OPPORTUNITIES - AMENTITES 
Based on comments heard at the community meetings and in addition to the program options 
above, the proposed improvements will allow for the following: 

 Additional group aerobic exercise space 
 Small group exercise space 
 Enhanced meeting room and social space 
 Improved accessible locker room/family change room 
 New welcome desk and visibility 

 
 
  



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

6 

CHAPTER FOUR – CONCEPT DESIGN AND DEVELOPMENT 

4.1 PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
Based on the top priorities from the community input sessions, the conceptual design of the 
Addison Athletic Center Renovation centers around the top four elements identified by the 
survey results. The design envisions the renovation to be limited to the spaces most important 
to the members of the club.  

 First on the list of priorities is replacement of the existing HVAC system in the original 
building and the addition. This item was identified by 62% of the respondents as being 
either the 1st or 2nd highest priority.  

 The second most identified element was the updating of the lobby and core of the 
building. This will include not only new finishes on the walls and floors, but updated 
welcome desk and lighting. 

 Third on the list was updating the gymnasium and track, to include new lighting, wall 
finishes, new track surface and new guard rail to meet the current codes. 

 Also in the top four is updating and bringing the locker rooms into accessibility compliance 
with the Texas Accessibility Standards. Improvement will include new floor and wall 
finishes, updated lighting, new lockers and fixtures. 

In addition to the priorities listed above, this report also includes changes to the facility required 
to make necessary accessibility modifications to comply with current codes. The phase one study 
identified several areas within the AAC that do not meet current accessible requirements. Most 
of these deficiencies will be addressed as modifications to different areas of the facility are 
completed. At the completion of all future work, a review by an outside agency will required to 
assure compliance. 

 

 



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

7 

An Engineering Assessment and Master Plan conducted during the phase 1 study recommends 
replacement of the existing mechanical system due to the age of the current equipment. Also 
recommended is the proper sizing of equipment to help insure member comfort while using the 
facility. Currently several of the air conditioning components are undersized for the use of the 
space. 

 

 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

8 

 
4.2 BUILDING FLOOR PLANS 

The existing and proposed floor plan views are below. The proposed plans are conceptual and 
were used to help develop project costs for the proposed improvements. Further refinement 
and detail will be developed once the project moves forward. 

 
 
EXISTING FIRST FLOOR PLAN 



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

9 

 
 
 
 
 

 
EXISITNG SECOND FLOOR PLAN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

10 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

11 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

12 

 
PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN 

 
PROPOSED SECOND FLOOR PLAN 



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

13 

PROPOSED INTERIOR LOBBY SKETCHES 
 

 
VIEW OF LOBBY 
             

 
NEW ENTRY DESK 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

14 

 
VIEW FROM TOP OF STAIR 
 

4.3 SITE IMPROVEMENTS 
Based on the site and building accessibility review report authorized during the Phase 1 master 
plan study, much of the needed site accessibility improvements have been completed prior to 
this master plan update. 
The accessible route from the street to the building has been completed, as well as 
improvements to the accessible parking space route and access to the adjacent fire station 
cited in the report. 

 



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

15 

 
 

CHAPTER FIVE - BUDGET 

5.1 ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS 
The cost estimates listed below are provided using 2016 construction dollars. The estimates 
shown identify the top four priorities from the survey and community meetings. Annual 
inflation rates should be considered when the work is performed in the future. Since the first 
estimates were completed in 2015, the cost have escalated as shown below: 
       March 2015   Sept. 2016 
Mechanical Systems Upgrades   $    600,000   $    616,000 
Lobby/Core Building      $ 2,420,000   $ 1,997,500 
Gymnasium and Track improvements  $    520,000   $    385,120 
Locker Room Upgrades    $    910,000   $ 1,028,500 

Construction costs have been consistently increasing for the last several years. This escalation 
was approximately 13% for the past year. These estimated costs should be updated to account 
for future escalation at a rate of 10% - 12% every year. 
 
The current budget request is for a total of $ 841,000. This number includes the following 
costs: 

Mechanical Systems: $616,000 – HVAC only - Includes new equipment and 
ductwork throughout the existing facility. Upgrading of the equipment for better 
efficiency and comfort throughout the facility. The replacement equipment will be 
designed to handle the proposed changes to the existing plans. The estimated 
time to complete entire system replacement is five months.  
 
 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

16 

 
Elevator: $80,000 - Replacement of the existing almost 30 year old elevator. The 
estimated time to replace the existing elevator once new equipment is on site is 
45 days once equipment is on site. 
Painting: $75,000 - Selective interior painting of the existing facility. This amount 
is budgeted for the coming fiscal year and the location of the areas to be painted 
will be determined based on need. The estimated time to phase the painting in 
selected areas of the facility is two months. 
Flooring: $70,000 - Replacement of the existing flooring in selected areas. This 
amount is budgeted for the coming fiscal year and the location of the areas to 
receive new flooring will be determined based on need. Coordination will be 
addressed based on future use of the spaces as well. The estimated time to 
phase the painting in selected areas of the facility is two months. 
 
 

Future considerations not addressed in the budgets listed above but recommended for 
interior improvements to the facility and their associated costs: 

Lobby/Core Building improvements - $1,997,500 - New welcome desk; transition 
of two racquetball courts into permanent exercise space; new flooring; updated 
paint palette; improved coffee bar area; improved acoustics; additional 2nd floor 
exercise space. A breakdown for each item is identified in Appendix 2. 

 Selective Demolition    $150,430 

 New Welcome Desk    $  75,000  

 Improved Acoustics    $  58,360  

 New Flooring     $114,740   

 New Interior Walls    $185,650  

 Interior Painting    $151,310  

 Floor Finishes     $112,470  

 New Cabinets      $125,800  

 New Interior Glass, Mirrors and Frames $   95,545  

 New Doors and Hardware   $105,525  

 New Fire Protection    $   91,700  

 Toilet Accessories    $     7,465  

 Operable Walls     $   32,270  

 Signage and Graphics    $   25,800  

 Sound System     $   95,040  

 Access Control/Security   $ 132,100   

 New Lighting and Electrical   $ 438,295 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

17 

 
Gymnasium and Track improvements - $385,120 Includes new track surface, new 
guardrail around the track, new lighting and sound system, new paint on walls 
and ceilings. A breakdown for each item is identified in Appendix 2. 

 New Track Surface    $  59,840 

 New Guardrail     $  69,350 

 New Lighting     $  74,500 

 New Basketball Goals/Operators  $  45,960 

 New Wall Pads     $  40,635 

 New Sound System    $  25,330 

 Painting      $  41,155 

 Misc. Improvements    $  28,350 
 

Locker Room Upgrades - $1,028,500 - new men’s and women’s showers to meet 
current accessibility requirements, new toilet fixtures, new wall finishes and tile, 
new lockers. A breakdown for each item is identified in Appendix 2. 

 Demolition     $  46,850 

 New Interior Partitions    $149,345 

 New Showers/Toilets/Sinks   $510,625 

 Locker Room Tile/Carpet/Waterproofing $252,600 

 Toilet Partitions/Accessories   $  25,700 

 Painting      $  15,000 

 New Lockers     $  28,380 
 

5.2 PHASING OF THE WORK 
During the discussions at the community meetings, concerns were raised about closing the 
Athletic Club during the periods when construction activities are taking place. Phasing of the 
work has been discussed where only portions of the facility would have to close to perform the 
work, while keeping the majority of the facility open and operational. Safety of club members 
will be the primary determining factor when choosing to close some of the facility for the 
improvements.  

If the work is phased, the overall time to complete the work will take longer, which also may 
result in higher construction costs. When a decision is made to move forward with any 
construction activity, careful consideration will be given to the feasibility to phase the work so 
members can continue to utilize the facility. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                               Addison Athletic Club  

` 

18 

 

APPENDIX 1 – STATISTICALLY VALID SUREVY RESULTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



98.74% 393

1.26% 5

Q1 Are you a member of the Addison
Athletic Club?
Answered: 398 Skipped: 1

Total 398

Yes

No

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Yes

No

1 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



12.24% 48

15.56% 61

17.60% 69

19.13% 75

35.46% 139

Q2 If you are a member, how often do you
visit the Athletic Club each month?

Answered: 392 Skipped: 7

Total 392

1 to 3

4 to 7

8 to 11

12 to 15

15 or more

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

1 to 3

4 to 7

8 to 11

12 to 15

15 or more

2 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



Q3 If you are not a member, please tell us
why?

Answered: 14 Skipped: 385

# Responses Date

1 Recently moved to Addison 7/24/2016 8:20 PM

2 n/a 7/23/2016 10:27 AM

3 I'm not able to join because I do not live in the Addison area. Would love to join by paying a monthly membership fee. 7/22/2016 5:45 PM

4 It's basically free, I don't like large gyms and I think the equipment is good. Love the new weight equipment! 7/22/2016 3:57 PM

5 I am a member, my husband is not. 7/22/2016 3:35 PM

6 I don't live in addison 7/22/2016 10:54 AM

7 Recently moved here. Excited to join. 7/21/2016 10:32 PM

8 Work out 7/18/2016 6:37 PM

9 n/a 7/18/2016 3:17 PM

10 Great equipment and locker shower rooms 7/18/2016 1:20 PM

11 Soon to be a resident of Savoye. My husband and I plan to join shortly after my move date of August 15th 7/17/2016 11:18 PM

12 #6. does not work !!! 7/14/2016 5:00 PM

13 na 7/13/2016 11:24 AM

14 na 7/13/2016 11:13 AM

3 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



0.25% 1

0.75% 3

6.52% 26

11.53% 46

16.54% 66

26.57% 106

37.84% 151

Q4 What is your age?
Answered: 399 Skipped: 0

Total 399

17 or younger

18-20

21-29

30-39

40-49

50-59

60 or older

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

17 or younger

18-20

21-29

30-39

40-49

50-59

60 or older

4 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



46.29% 181

53.71% 210

Q5 Are you male or female?
Answered: 391 Skipped: 8

Total 391

Male

Female

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

Male

Female

5 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



Q6 Please rank the Master Plan
components. (Refer to slides 7-16) Dollar

figures are estimates only. 1=Highest
Priority, 8=Lowest Priority

Answered: 375 Skipped: 24

63.13%
214

10.03%
34

5.60%
19

6.19%
21

3.54%
12

4.72%
16

2.06%
7

4.72%
16

 
339

 
6.77

7.14%
23

20.50%
66

9.32%
30

10.56%
34

10.56%
34

9.01%
29

8.07%
26

24.84%
80

 
322

 
4.20

8.39%
25

16.44%
49

16.44%
49

16.78%
50

13.76%
41

13.09%
39

9.73%
29

5.37%
16

 
298

 
4.84

11.96%
36

11.96%
36

14.29%
43

11.30%
34

14.62%
44

9.97%
30

14.29%
43

11.63%
35

 
301

 
4.50

3.69%
11

11.41%
34

14.77%
44

13.42%
40

15.44%
46

18.79%
56

13.09%
39

9.40%
28

 
298

 
4.19

5.59%
17

10.86%
33

13.49%
41

15.46%
47

15.46%
47

16.45%
50

16.45%
50

6.25%
19

 
304

 
4.29

4.35%
13

9.70%
29

12.37%
37

10.70%
32

12.71%
38

12.37%
37

15.72%
47

22.07%
66

 
299

 
3.72

6.17%
19

9.09%
28

13.96%
43

13.96%
43

11.04%
34

11.69%
36

15.58%
48

18.51%
57

 
308

 
3.95

HVAC (Heating
Ventilating,...

Lobby/Core
Building...

Gymnasium &
Track...

Locker
Rooms/Changi...

Multi-Use Room
($51,000)

Indoor Pool
Upgrades...

New Indoor Spa
($181,000)

Outdoor Pool
Shade Struct...

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 Total Score

HVAC (Heating Ventilating, Air Conditioning)
($616,000)

Lobby/Core Building ($2,734,600)

Gymnasium & Track ($588,000)

Locker Rooms/Changing Suites ($1,028,500)

Multi-Use Room ($51,000)

Indoor Pool Upgrades ($230,500)

New Indoor Spa ($181,000)

Outdoor Pool Shade Structure & Patio ($226,000)

6 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



Q7 What are your favorite elements of the
Master Plan?

Answered: 311 Skipped: 88

# Responses Date

1 HVAC 7/25/2016 9:24 AM

2 Gymnasium and Track 7/25/2016 9:21 AM

3 New fitness studio space New fitness equipment space 7/25/2016 9:18 AM

4 Gym/Track 7/25/2016 9:16 AM

5 None 7/25/2016 9:13 AM

6 New AC and more room for equipment 7/25/2016 9:12 AM

7 Lobby Core plans 7/24/2016 8:20 PM

8 Better air conditioning in each area 7/23/2016 10:16 PM

9 need additional exercise studio space. However the yoga room show is much too small and new design is smaller than
current second floor studio.

7/23/2016 5:25 PM

10 New indoor Spa & upgrades of any type to gym. (Especially the upper floor weight lifting areas) 7/23/2016 4:54 PM

11 We need new HVAC system. 7/23/2016 2:37 PM

12 The upgrades to the indoor pool 7/23/2016 11:10 AM

13 none 7/23/2016 10:27 AM

14 New gym 7/22/2016 10:43 PM

15 Flex room 7/22/2016 10:11 PM

16 Pool shade and family changing rooms. 7/22/2016 10:07 PM

17 The addition of family changing areas 7/22/2016 9:36 PM

18 Hvac repair, locker room remodeling 7/22/2016 8:04 PM

19 I like the extra space and open air feeling in the lobby and core building. 7/22/2016 5:45 PM

20 more room for fitness classes 7/22/2016 5:41 PM

21 Better use of space--more classrooms that can be used for many purposes 7/22/2016 5:26 PM

22 This plan was developed by the Council Members and not presented for vote by the people of Addison. Please let me
and the residents of Addison if this is going to be a decision made by the Council or put to vote to the residents of
Addison (or at least those Addisonians who attend the Addison Athletic Club). Thank you.

7/22/2016 4:22 PM

23 refreshing of aging mechanical infrastructure 7/22/2016 4:05 PM

24 pool/spa. 7/22/2016 4:01 PM

25 HVAC system upgrade and lobby/core upgrades 7/22/2016 3:57 PM

26 Exercise facilities, indoor/outdoor swimming pools areas. 7/22/2016 3:35 PM

27 upgrade and maintain existing facility. 7/22/2016 2:54 PM

28 The proposed upgrade of family locker facilities to accommodate families like ours with special needs. 7/22/2016 2:26 PM

29 HVAC Windows in the gym 7/22/2016 2:13 PM

30 AC 7/22/2016 2:10 PM

31 Like them all 7/22/2016 2:09 PM

32 AC Locker Rooms 7/22/2016 2:03 PM

33 HVAC Indoor Spa 7/22/2016 1:57 PM

7 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



34 HVAC system Lobby/core bldg 7/22/2016 1:54 PM

35 New AC and updated look 7/22/2016 1:51 PM

36 New HVAC unit 7/22/2016 1:26 PM

37 Better Cooling System 7/22/2016 12:24 PM

38 elimination of handball courts 7/22/2016 12:17 PM

39 Hvac 7/22/2016 11:58 AM

40 Updates to track/gymnasium and changes to HVAC. 7/22/2016 11:29 AM

41 equipment upgrades 7/22/2016 11:23 AM

42 New bathrooms 7/22/2016 11:21 AM

43 upgrades in general 7/22/2016 11:17 AM

44 HVAC upgrade 7/22/2016 11:16 AM

45 Indoor pool upgrade 7/22/2016 10:42 AM

46 None- the addison HOMEOWNERS cannot afford this -there is a 38 million bill to be paid for midway rd improvements 7/22/2016 10:22 AM

47 More space for fitness/yoga classes. Updated reception area & locker rooms. 7/22/2016 10:06 AM

48 Fixing air 7/22/2016 10:06 AM

49 Track improvements HVAC upgrades 7/22/2016 10:04 AM

50 Do not want dues or down time of gym use 7/22/2016 9:54 AM

51 refreshed felling at the club 7/22/2016 9:51 AM

52 None of it cost to much 7/22/2016 9:49 AM

53 New Ac 7/22/2016 9:48 AM

54 Improving the HVAC. New gym equipment and weights. shade at the pool. Cafe. 7/22/2016 9:45 AM

55 none 7/22/2016 9:42 AM

56 none 7/22/2016 9:40 AM

57 none, tax money wasted 7/22/2016 9:39 AM

58 none 7/22/2016 9:38 AM

59 New Locker Rooms 7/22/2016 9:36 AM

60 Spa 7/22/2016 9:35 AM

61 Gym Locker rooms 7/22/2016 9:32 AM

62 Improve HVAC system only! 7/22/2016 9:28 AM

63 Locker rooms Exercise Equpment 7/22/2016 9:26 AM

64 New dedicated yoga room 7/22/2016 9:24 AM

65 Nothing 7/22/2016 9:22 AM

66 updated HVAC system, new exercise equipment and updated locker/shower areas 7/22/2016 9:18 AM

67 Locker room changes and multi-use room. 7/22/2016 9:06 AM

68 Expanding the space for the weight room. Updating the Gym and track. 7/22/2016 9:04 AM

69 The family changing rooms 7/22/2016 9:01 AM

8 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



70 Nothing really! Athletic center as it stands is one of the best in the area....we do not need a country club athletic
center. We own (6) homes in Addison and our property taxes have gone through the roof due to unnecessary showy
projects but less police protection seen in our area, weeds growing so high behind our properties on Addison
propertywe have to call several times several times, as we do for brush,limbs pickup....seems to be less service and
more glitz these days. Have been a home owner since mid 80's and our roads have never been t this bad and you are
talking about upgrading a rec center.....not a smart move....get your proprieties right.

7/22/2016 8:58 AM

71 Increasing class room space 7/22/2016 8:54 AM

72 Refresh of some of the outdated parts of the Addison Athletic Club. 7/22/2016 8:52 AM

73 New spa, dedicated yoga space and concept of 2nd floor above existing racquetball courts and lobby (with caveat of
keeping one racquetball court).

7/22/2016 8:48 AM

74 I use the club approximately 3 times per week. The men's showers, restrooms, and sink areas are so out of date and
unclean. I'd like to see this as a priority.

7/22/2016 8:48 AM

75 Shade outside at the pool! And a new open lobby area. 7/22/2016 8:24 AM

76 outdoor pool shade structure, adding space for more group exercise classes 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

77 Updating the HVAC. 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

78 Updating the HVAC. 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

79 Fixing the locker rooms 7/22/2016 8:12 AM

80 Indoor Pool Upgrades 7/22/2016 7:50 AM

81 track changes 7/22/2016 7:46 AM

82 Necessary maintenance items including HVAC and track upgrades and potential for adding section for kids older than
7.

7/22/2016 7:44 AM

83 Upgraded space for cardio equipment and much much needed upgraded locker facilities. Also, a welcome area 7/22/2016 7:29 AM

84 Better HAVAC 7/22/2016 7:24 AM

85 Improving air conditioning and renovating pool. 7/21/2016 11:23 PM

86 The HVAC unit 7/21/2016 11:22 PM

87 the modern look and feel is needed. im very excited about most of the elements.. 7/21/2016 8:01 PM

88 Additional work out machines 7/21/2016 6:53 PM

89 Gymnasium and track improvements 7/21/2016 5:40 PM

90 no 7/21/2016 4:31 PM

91 outdoor pool shade and eliminating racquetball courts. 7/21/2016 4:30 PM

92 lobby 7/21/2016 4:30 PM

93 hvac, lobby and multi-use rooms 7/21/2016 4:27 PM

94 getting rid of rball courts, sauna and steam. 7/21/2016 4:25 PM

95 the changing suites are important for families with children and seniors who are disables. 7/21/2016 4:24 PM

96 maintenance. 7/21/2016 4:21 PM

97 n/a 7/21/2016 4:20 PM

98 track and lobby 7/21/2016 4:16 PM

99 gym track 7/21/2016 4:15 PM

100 outdoor pool upgrades 7/21/2016 4:14 PM

101 none 7/21/2016 4:13 PM

102 MORE EXERCISE ROOM FOR CLASSES 7/21/2016 3:31 PM

103 another exercise room. 7/21/2016 3:25 PM

104 the updated lobby and the multi use rooms 7/21/2016 3:12 PM

105 additional exercise rooms. 7/21/2016 3:08 PM

9 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



106 hvac 7/21/2016 3:02 PM

107 hvac upgrade. gym and track 7/21/2016 3:01 PM

108 improving the air conditioning! AC has never been adequate in the east wing since it was built. 7/21/2016 2:58 PM

109 more bathroom ADA friendly. 7/21/2016 2:55 PM

110 getting rid of racquetball courts and updating the lobby/core building. Our current layout is super outdated, we
definitely need some upgrades!! Super excited about he possibility of this remodel

7/21/2016 2:46 PM

111 exercise room 7/21/2016 2:18 PM

112 outdoor pool upgrades. 7/21/2016 2:16 PM

113 pool upgrades, locker rooms and multi-use room. 7/21/2016 2:06 PM

114 upgrade locker room-mens 7/21/2016 2:03 PM

115 outdoor shade and gazebo at the pool. 7/21/2016 2:01 PM

116 hvac 7/21/2016 1:58 PM

117 no need for this 7/21/2016 1:56 PM

118 waste of money 7/21/2016 1:53 PM

119 none! the club is fine like it is 7/21/2016 1:51 PM

120 none 7/21/2016 1:47 PM

121 new HVAC system and updates to building larger fitness studios and fitness personal room 7/21/2016 1:45 PM

122 gym/exercise upgrades. 7/21/2016 1:42 PM

123 more shade in outdoor pool area. updating locker rooms would be nice, but let's not go overboard- we don't need
luxury.

7/21/2016 1:40 PM

124 2nd floor space above lobby and new lobby/1st floor space 7/21/2016 1:12 PM

125 hvac 7/21/2016 1:04 PM

126 yoga room 7/21/2016 12:53 PM

127 better HVAC and more open space 7/21/2016 12:48 PM

128 removal of rball courts 7/21/2016 12:41 PM

129 new fitness spot 7/21/2016 12:27 PM

130 shade for outdoor pool 7/21/2016 12:25 PM

131 none 7/21/2016 12:21 PM

132 Increased space for fitness equipment. Upgrade Spa. 7/21/2016 12:19 PM

133 outdoor and indoor pool upgrades 7/21/2016 12:16 PM

134 new fitness spot. 7/21/2016 9:58 AM

135 locker room upgrades 7/21/2016 9:48 AM

136 indoor pool 7/21/2016 9:45 AM

137 i love the look of the new multi use room 7/21/2016 9:41 AM

138 upgraded equipment 7/21/2016 9:30 AM

139 game room & child watch. 7/21/2016 9:25 AM

140 HVAC system. That's it. 7/21/2016 9:14 AM

141 Family changing room, more excersic space. 7/21/2016 9:05 AM

142 Must do items: HVAC, elevator 7/21/2016 8:38 AM

143 Lobby / core building 7/20/2016 11:12 PM

144 Don't see need to expand 7/20/2016 11:10 PM

10 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



145 Family locker rooms will keep mommas with little boys OUT of the ladies locker room. Also, good to upgrade HVAC to
Texas heat standards.

7/20/2016 10:53 PM

146 the updated AC 7/20/2016 7:28 PM

147 Indoor pool upgrades 7/20/2016 6:24 PM

148 HVAC, Pool shade 7/20/2016 6:05 PM

149 More meeting space 7/20/2016 5:52 PM

150 New updated cardio equipment 7/20/2016 3:44 PM

151 Yoga studio 7/20/2016 3:26 PM

152 hvac 7/20/2016 3:05 PM

153 ac 7/20/2016 3:01 PM

154 heating ac 7/20/2016 3:00 PM

155 upgrades with HVAC and out door pool area 7/20/2016 2:57 PM

156 ac and gym upgrades 7/20/2016 2:55 PM

157 new hvac renovated showers 7/20/2016 2:53 PM

158 Upper area, above lobby. 7/20/2016 2:53 PM

159 none 7/20/2016 2:50 PM

160 child watch, new exercise rooms/fitness center lofts, cafe 7/20/2016 2:42 PM

161 new gym equipment 7/20/2016 2:38 PM

162 new lobby area, larger fitness classrooms. 7/20/2016 2:36 PM

163 none! is money like water? we are not plano or Allen TX 7/20/2016 2:33 PM

164 meeting room/kitchen?? pool indoor and outdoor. locker room layout. 7/20/2016 2:32 PM

165 locker rooms 7/20/2016 2:27 PM

166 over all new look 7/20/2016 2:24 PM

167 extra space 7/20/2016 2:22 PM

168 locker rooms 7/20/2016 2:20 PM

169 overall just the modernization of the facility 7/20/2016 2:16 PM

170 nothing 7/20/2016 2:14 PM

171 none, keep rball courts 7/20/2016 2:12 PM

172 general update, improvement of fitness experiences. 7/20/2016 2:10 PM

173 additional exercise class space 7/20/2016 2:07 PM

174 The newness the changes will make. 7/20/2016 1:57 PM

175 The lobby and indoor pool upgrades. 7/20/2016 1:48 PM

176 More flexible function space/lobby. 7/20/2016 12:53 PM

177 Increased footprint of the children's center and the addition of a game room for older children. Plus the increase of
multipurpose room space.

7/20/2016 12:23 PM

178 extra fitness/yoga room. Hopefully you can have more classes in the evening. I also like the new stretching and
balance area

7/20/2016 12:12 PM

179 Indoor pool and spa upgrades 7/20/2016 12:08 PM

180 Family bathroom and shade for outside pool 7/20/2016 12:04 PM

181 Family bathroom and shade for outside pool 7/20/2016 12:00 PM

182 additional exercise space repairs that reduce cost. 7/20/2016 10:51 AM

11 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



183 I think the upgrades are good, especially to the locker rooms- they are old and smelly and not taken care of as they
should be for cleanliness

7/20/2016 10:40 AM

184 necessary repairs. new exercise studio rooms- badly needed. 7/20/2016 10:34 AM

185 upgrades to lobby are nice, indoor pool needs it. 7/20/2016 10:09 AM

186 eye appeal 7/20/2016 10:05 AM

187 locker room updates. 7/20/2016 9:42 AM

188 Shade for outdoor space. We love being outdoors but Texas hear is so bad ?? 7/20/2016 9:37 AM

189 Flexible rooms and new changing rooms 7/20/2016 9:29 AM

190 HVAC upgrade 7/20/2016 8:46 AM

191 updated locker rooms and showers; new programmable spaces for cross fit & other multi-use; more yoga & exercise
flexible spaces; better track & indoor spa;

7/20/2016 12:16 AM

192 New gym, locker rooms and indoor pool upgrade. 7/19/2016 8:42 PM

193 I'd rather have these funds refunded to the tax payers than spent on renovation. 7/19/2016 8:25 PM

194 New lobby 7/19/2016 6:48 PM

195 Modern updated look makes the Addison Club as nice as competitive gyms 7/19/2016 4:46 PM

196 HVAC, Multi Use Room 7/19/2016 4:08 PM

197 The master plan doesn't discuss the new spa addition at all...? Closing the second floor for extra square footage would
be nice. Integrating an upper level viewing deck for racquetball I think could generate some extra interest for current
members.

7/19/2016 2:52 PM

198 separate showers more free weights more treadmills and more elipticals. 7/19/2016 1:14 PM

199 not really sure what's better. maybe the gym 7/19/2016 1:09 PM

200 i wish we could do it all 7/19/2016 1:06 PM

201 new equipment 7/19/2016 1:04 PM

202 HVAC multi-use room 7/19/2016 12:59 PM

203 NEW AC FOR UPSTAIRS 7/19/2016 12:58 PM

204 AC only, nothing else needed. 7/19/2016 12:57 PM

205 none 7/19/2016 12:53 PM

206 locker and spa upgrades 7/19/2016 12:52 PM

207 new equipment more lively colors (our current interior is out dates- looks so old) 7/19/2016 12:47 PM

208 ac 7/19/2016 12:43 PM

209 Keep steam room and sauna 7/19/2016 12:29 PM

210 Improve A/C More exercise rooms More places for racquetball 7/19/2016 12:25 PM

211 Don't have any. 7/19/2016 11:03 AM

212 New A/c 7/19/2016 10:45 AM

213 I really like all parts 7/19/2016 10:30 AM

214 new fitness loft and running track 7/19/2016 9:30 AM

215 l 7/19/2016 6:47 AM

216 Improvement n the outdoor pool. 7/18/2016 11:00 PM

217 ADA accessibility/family changing areas & lobby/core bldg improvements 7/18/2016 9:50 PM

218 dealing with the A/C issue, a new system will probably save on utility bill. The club is already modern and practical.
Keeping equipment maintained and replaced is 2nd thing.

7/18/2016 9:34 PM

219 New equipment and track. 7/18/2016 8:42 PM

12 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



220 I like all of it 7/18/2016 7:22 PM

221 making it colder in summer 7/18/2016 5:27 PM

222 exercise room 7/18/2016 5:20 PM

223 exercise 7/18/2016 5:19 PM

224 New HVAC, new painting & carpet, Indoor pool upgrades & maybe Multi purpose to better utilize the library and
downstairs mutlipurpose rooms for exercise classes

7/18/2016 4:19 PM

225 Bigger room for classes and better AC Shade area 7/18/2016 4:06 PM

226 Making good the facility as it stands. Improving ventilation. Emphasis on relaxation as well as exercise 7/18/2016 3:36 PM

227 new indoor spa 7/18/2016 3:22 PM

228 Upgrade to HVAC and the addition of fitness rooms 7/18/2016 3:18 PM

229 hvac 7/18/2016 3:17 PM

230 youth oriented programming and equipment 7/18/2016 3:13 PM

231 bigger multi use room 7/18/2016 3:10 PM

232 individual showers in mens locker room 7/18/2016 3:05 PM

233 leave child care as is 7/18/2016 3:02 PM

234 upgraded indoor pool and more space for treadmills and weights 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

235 spa-assuming sauna and steam rooms. new lockers 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

236 Family Locker Rooms. 7/18/2016 2:36 PM

237 Heating & Air 7/18/2016 2:33 PM

238 Skylights in the Gymnasium 7/18/2016 2:29 PM

239 gym/track 7/18/2016 2:15 PM

240 New equipment, more space, track area. 7/18/2016 2:13 PM

241 expanded exercise loft 7/18/2016 2:12 PM

242 Spa upgrades 7/18/2016 2:08 PM

243 expanded exercise loft. 7/18/2016 2:04 PM

244 Indoor pool and locker room need good maintenance.. They are very worn down currently. 7/18/2016 1:58 PM

245 replacing HVAC 7/18/2016 1:55 PM

246 air conditioning and fitness areas with new equipment, also shade for the pool. 7/18/2016 1:52 PM

247 new HVAC and new equipment 7/18/2016 1:50 PM

248 Indoor and outdoor pool upgrades 7/18/2016 1:44 PM

249 HVAC 7/18/2016 1:42 PM

250 General upgrading of the facility 7/18/2016 1:41 PM

251 new AC 7/18/2016 1:40 PM

252 I love the new lobby that opens up to the pool and features a cafe. Side note, it would be nice if the pool area was
open year round - it's a really pretty space that's nice to enjoy even if you're not swimming.

7/18/2016 1:36 PM

253 A/C 7/18/2016 1:28 PM

254 Flexible design that can be used for multiple new classes or activities 7/18/2016 1:26 PM

255 Maximizing use of space and improving HVAC 7/18/2016 1:25 PM

256 locker rooms and showers 7/18/2016 1:20 PM

257 fixing HVAC 7/18/2016 1:17 PM

258 2 ping pong tables and more yoga space 7/18/2016 1:14 PM

13 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



259 HVAC and outdoor pool shade. 7/18/2016 1:10 PM

260 better use of existing space 7/18/2016 1:07 PM

261 outdoor pool shade structure 7/18/2016 1:05 PM

262 pool 7/18/2016 1:01 PM

263 none/ waste of money 7/18/2016 12:51 PM

264 improved kids area and more space 7/18/2016 12:48 PM

265 the modern look 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

266 the modern look 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

267 Upgraded Gym 7/18/2016 12:34 PM

268 gym 7/18/2016 12:25 PM

269 Nothing 7/18/2016 12:22 PM

270 Locker room improvements 7/18/2016 12:16 PM

271 More workout equipment 7/18/2016 8:06 AM

272 New spa, updates to gym 7/17/2016 11:18 PM

273 Increasing the sf and making more aerobic/fitness rooms. 7/16/2016 9:35 PM

274 Increasing the sf and making more aerobic/fitness rooms. 7/16/2016 9:34 PM

275 HVAC AND GYMNASUIM & TRACK UPGRADES. 7/16/2016 6:38 PM

276 Family Locker Rooms and Multi-Purpose Room. I have a 5 year old who is not allowed to use the women's restroom
and I do not feel comfortable sending him into the men's room alone. Therefore we are constantly having to interrupt
staff members and request to use the employee/childcare bathroom. I love the multi-purpose room because it
provides an area for school aged children. My son is about to age out of the childcare area but won't be old enough to
work out with me until he is 15.

7/16/2016 11:27 AM

277 I love the family changing areas which has been a challenge when my wife has my son at the club. 7/16/2016 11:04 AM

278 Updated lobby, shade around pool 7/16/2016 10:41 AM

279 multi-use room 7/16/2016 10:07 AM

280 A/C Upgrade 7/16/2016 9:58 AM

281 improved indoor pool and spa 7/16/2016 9:56 AM

282 As a dad (who doesn't care to swim) with two kids who love to swim... please (for the love of all things holy) bring on
the shade.

7/16/2016 9:46 AM

283 New lobby and core area 7/16/2016 8:49 AM

284 Like the open space 7/15/2016 9:31 PM

285 more square footage, more options for classe4s 7/15/2016 9:27 PM

286 Lots of modern updates. 7/15/2016 6:49 PM

287 My favorite part of the new Master Plan is the increased space upstairs for fitness equipment. 7/15/2016 6:28 PM

288 Improve lobby and locker rooms 7/15/2016 6:10 PM

289 Overall improvements 7/15/2016 5:03 PM

290 None. 7/15/2016 4:43 PM

291 That you are asking members for their opinion I like the idea of a sitting area in the locker room 7/15/2016 4:37 PM

292 The walking track with skylights, new locker rooms, the new lobby, freshen up of inside pool area, shade covering over
outside pool area, and new HVAC

7/15/2016 4:35 PM

293 I like the idea of upgrading the existing AC Units. Along with upgrading the exterior look of the building. 7/15/2016 4:29 PM

294 hvac 7/15/2016 4:27 PM

295 My most favorite is that thought was given to the future and a Master Plan developed for future needs. 7/14/2016 6:19 PM

14 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



296 a/c, heating. Apparently the roof leaks are not in this plan. 7/14/2016 5:00 PM

297 Redoing the entry area to hopefully be more welcoming and useful 7/14/2016 2:11 PM

298 there was a picture of a rock slide in some of the mock ups, that is very exciting, the larger child care area is exciting,
and I am hoping this would mean that children older than 8 would be allowed to start attending...once the kids turn 8
there they are not allowed in the child care area, and there are not many programs for that age group.

7/13/2016 5:32 PM

299 More flexible rooms to adapt to additional classes and trends . 7/13/2016 5:21 PM

300 Improved Air Conditioning. 7/13/2016 4:24 PM

301 The AC .... & then new lobby & 2nd story additional floor space 4 more aerobic equipment.. 7/13/2016 4:20 PM

302 Just a new look, more inviting. 7/13/2016 3:20 PM

303 Heating ventilation and air conditioning Outdoor pool shade structure and patio 7/13/2016 12:40 PM

304 More space for everyone 7/13/2016 12:14 PM

305 gymnasium indoor pool upgrade 7/13/2016 12:13 PM

306 Nothing 7/13/2016 11:59 AM

307 family changing rooms new HVAC Overall I think plan is well thought out 7/13/2016 11:48 AM

308 Improved locker rooms 7/13/2016 11:24 AM

309 It's a tie: Improved locker rooms AND improved childwatch area. 7/13/2016 11:13 AM

310 We do need to upgrade HVAC 7/13/2016 10:08 AM

311 Outdoor pool upgrades & more room/machines in exercise area 7/13/2016 9:54 AM

15 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



Q8 What are your least favorite elements of
the Master Plan?

Answered: 306 Skipped: 93

# Responses Date

1 Indoor Spa 7/25/2016 9:24 AM

2 Indoor Pool upgrades 7/25/2016 9:21 AM

3 Lobby 7/25/2016 9:16 AM

4 Cost 7/25/2016 9:13 AM

5 Locker Room is fine no need to spend $ on it 7/25/2016 9:12 AM

6 spa 7/23/2016 10:16 PM

7 1)overall plan is too expensive and wasteful. It does not appear any attempt was made to use building, as configured
to keep reno costs down 2) private offices for staff and trainers 3) family locker rooms, and larger childcare area 4)
game room, lounge & cafe - completely unnecessary and this space is serveral times larger than yoga room 5) the
addition of 50 NEW pieces of equipment... are you kidding??? Why when most equipment sits idle all day! 6) the
entire new annex was added several years back, now even more equipment is encroaching into the lobby area for the
men. And yet, the exercise classes heavily used by women members continue to get no relief!! 7) I do not understand
why any thought would be given to spending more money on the outdoor pool, when it is only used 25% of the year
(more poor planning by prior city manager). The ducks get more use out of it than then members. 8) I actually am
strongly opposed to ALL upgrades, except the HVAC, but the survey would not let me reflect that answer. Survey
seems to be designed to make you say you support something when if fact, I do not. Same applies to Quest #11, my
answer is definetly no to both, but survey would not allow me to give same answer on both questions. Online survey
does not allow residents to give answers they want.

7/23/2016 5:25 PM

8 Pool upgrades (especially indoor) & locker room. 7/23/2016 4:54 PM

9 I don't think the aesthetic upgrades are necessary. Keep it fiscal. Do not take all the racquetball courts. Keep 2. 7/23/2016 2:44 PM

10 Very costly. I would be strongly opposed to anything which might cause annual fees or added taxes. The current club
design is functional.

7/23/2016 2:37 PM

11 The elimination of the steam rooms/saunas 7/23/2016 11:10 AM

12 Why are all of the racquetball courts being eliminated? 7/23/2016 10:27 AM

13 cost 7/22/2016 10:43 PM

14 Lobby 7/22/2016 10:11 PM

15 No racquetball court. Just need one. 7/22/2016 10:07 PM

16 removal of racquetball courts 7/22/2016 9:36 PM

17 New indoor spa and outside pool shade 7/22/2016 8:04 PM

18 I think it would be a big mistake to get rid of all the racquetball courts. The courts can be used for everything, volley
ball, handball, squash, wallyball, personal training.

7/22/2016 5:45 PM

19 spa 7/22/2016 5:41 PM

20 Lobby plans 7/22/2016 5:26 PM

21 I want to know who will decide this: the people of Addison or the Council members. 7/22/2016 4:22 PM

22 The Cost 7/22/2016 4:01 PM

23 Emphasis on elements that I don't care about and wouldn't use. Time to implement and the club being a construction
site in the interim.

7/22/2016 4:01 PM

24 Outdoor shade are....but I don't use the outdoor pool. 7/22/2016 3:57 PM

25 Lobby improvements... 7/22/2016 3:35 PM

26 Expense 7/22/2016 3:03 PM

16 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



27 Don't need more than one family changing room. Don't need more lounging areas or fancy locker room upgrades. Fix
what does not work. Keep aT least one racketball court.

7/22/2016 2:54 PM

28 Gymnasium/track 7/22/2016 2:26 PM

29 Removal of the racquetball courts 7/22/2016 2:13 PM

30 elimination of steam room 7/22/2016 2:09 PM

31 Missing sauna and steam room 7/22/2016 2:01 PM

32 Outdoor pool shade 7/22/2016 1:59 PM

33 Looby/core gym/track 7/22/2016 1:57 PM

34 Outdoor Pool Indoor Pool 7/22/2016 1:54 PM

35 Elimination of the steam room and sauna. Please keep hem but update and keep sanitary. 7/22/2016 1:51 PM

36 Some improvements are needed but the Master Plan is TOO MUCH and unnecessary 7/22/2016 1:26 PM

37 Outdoor pool shade and Struture patio 7/22/2016 12:24 PM

38 amount of spending for entrance way 7/22/2016 12:17 PM

39 Elimination of raquetteball courts. 7/22/2016 11:58 AM

40 Changes to locker rooms. Family lockers are not needed at this time. Mens locker room is at capacity during peak
hours so making it smaller is a very bad idea.

7/22/2016 11:29 AM

41 wood floors 7/22/2016 11:23 AM

42 Getting rid of all the racquetball courts, does this fix the hvac in gym so that we can play volleyball? 7/22/2016 11:21 AM

43 I'm just learning to play racquetball with my boyfriend, I would like for the courts to remain 7/22/2016 11:17 AM

44 Why eliminate racquetball courts 7/22/2016 11:16 AM

45 I come to addison to visit a friend and sometime we play racquetball and I enjoy it very much. I would be disappointed
if that went away

7/22/2016 10:54 AM

46 Eliminating the steam rooms & saunas is a big mistake. It's the best thing for my sinuses. 7/22/2016 10:50 AM

47 Multi use room 7/22/2016 10:42 AM

48 spending too much money (give the money back to citizens in form of tax refund)- why such a huge admin
expansion?

7/22/2016 10:10 AM

49 Outdoor pool. 7/22/2016 10:06 AM

50 Spending money on things not really needed That don't change the functionality 7/22/2016 10:06 AM

51 Do not need upgrades like this 7/22/2016 9:56 AM

52 don't need upgrades 7/22/2016 9:54 AM

53 do not understand why the library and family changing rooms are needed 7/22/2016 9:51 AM

54 Locker rooms 7/22/2016 9:48 AM

55 yoga room 7/22/2016 9:46 AM

56 Track. Indoor pool. 7/22/2016 9:45 AM

57 none 7/22/2016 9:42 AM

58 none 7/22/2016 9:40 AM

59 none 7/22/2016 9:39 AM

60 to much $ 7/22/2016 9:38 AM

61 Removing the racquetball courts and steam room/sauna 7/22/2016 9:36 AM

62 Locker Room 7/22/2016 9:35 AM

63 Do not see racquetball courts anymore? This sucks!! 7/22/2016 9:31 AM

64 Too many improvments 7/22/2016 9:30 AM

17 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



65 All the other recommended changes. No pressing need to 'upgrade' or change existing facilities. Definitely don't
change the current locker rooms.

7/22/2016 9:28 AM

66 HVAC 7/22/2016 9:26 AM

67 Do we really need to do anything to the indoor track 7/22/2016 9:24 AM

68 The excessive cost 7/22/2016 9:22 AM

69 To costly, pay off other projects first 7/22/2016 9:20 AM

70 I have no interest in the swimming pools 7/22/2016 9:18 AM

71 Removal of the steam rooms. 7/22/2016 9:06 AM

72 I don't really use the cafe or lounge but I think it's for children's programs in the Summer. I feel like they are right in
the middle of the building. I don't like that we are getting rid of the racquetball courts/current multi-space rooms that
include free weights and other exercise equipment. There is not enough space to lift upstairs.

7/22/2016 9:04 AM

73 removing racquetball court 7/22/2016 9:01 AM

74 Eliminating steam TMS,saunas,racquetball courts, lobby is perfectly fine as is.....if Addison has so much money spend
it on midway road which is a mess and has been promised for years..seems like money is spent on show rather than
needed repair projects these past few years

7/22/2016 8:58 AM

75 Locker rooms 7/22/2016 8:54 AM

76 Overall cost. Eliminating steam room, sauna and all racquetball courts! Expanding inside pool deck. See additional
comments below under question 10.

7/22/2016 8:48 AM

77 elimination of racquetball courts 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

78 I do not understand the whole lobby renovation. While it is beautiful, that is a large sum of money to spend for
something that is not a problem. The utilization of the club will not be enhanced because of this change, and from
what I see you are eliminating the racquetball courts.

7/22/2016 8:13 AM

79 I do not understand the whole lobby renovation. While it is beautiful, that is a large sum of money to spend for
something that is not a problem. The utilization of the club will not be enhanced because of this change, and from
what I see you are eliminating the racquetball courts.

7/22/2016 8:13 AM

80 Not enough going to the gym and horrible track 7/22/2016 8:12 AM

81 Additional Children Play Equipment at the Outdoor Pool. 7/22/2016 7:50 AM

82 locker room changes. 7/22/2016 7:46 AM

83 Removing racquetball courts, shade structure for outdoor pool. People can only access baby pool from that shade
structure. You can't keep an eye on kids swimming in either of the bigger pools.

7/22/2016 7:44 AM

84 Upgraded spa. Seems to be accommodating to those that use it 7/22/2016 7:29 AM

85 New Indoor Spa 7/22/2016 7:24 AM

86 Family changing area, spa, multiple multi purpose rooms - is there actually a demand for this? Where is your data?
Make it public!

7/21/2016 11:23 PM

87 Changing suites, multi-purpose rooms, lounge area in entrance 7/21/2016 11:22 PM

88 the locker room design, seems to reduce the number locker rooms.. if not, then im also ok with it.. 7/21/2016 8:01 PM

89 lounge area in locker rooms 7/21/2016 6:53 PM

90 Don't take out the racquetball courts 7/21/2016 5:40 PM

91 Cost 7/21/2016 5:39 PM

92 no 7/21/2016 4:31 PM

93 indoor pool upgrades, love the pool how it is. 7/21/2016 4:30 PM

94 nothing 7/21/2016 4:30 PM

95 no 7/21/2016 4:27 PM

96 the spa 7/21/2016 4:24 PM

97 everything else 7/21/2016 4:21 PM

18 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



98 cost 7/21/2016 4:20 PM

99 rball 7/21/2016 4:18 PM

100 lobby 7/21/2016 4:14 PM

101 what it will cost 7/21/2016 4:13 PM

102 -family locker rooms -game room -cafe/lounge -new offices for staff and trainers -expanded childcare -failuer to use
existing layout to keep costs down

7/21/2016 3:31 PM

103 yoga room too small or smaller than a game room!! no cafe/lounge(STUPID!) no expanded day care and for whom?!
only 20 kids in addison. No offices for staff! why?! they need to be seen-use existing space in back.

7/21/2016 3:25 PM

104 nothing-everything looks great! 7/21/2016 3:12 PM

105 a. yoga room is smaller than game room AND existing 2nd floor room b. family locker rooms, game room, cafe/lounge;
expanded daycare c. new offices for staff-too big. They don't use current back office space. d. failure to present a plan
that uses existing floor plan as much as possible, to keep costs down.

7/21/2016 3:08 PM

106 spending too much money for not needed changes. 7/21/2016 3:02 PM

107 locker room upgrade 7/21/2016 3:01 PM

108 outdoor pool shade new indoor spa, indoor pool upgrade, locker rooms, changing suites, gym track, lobby/core 7/21/2016 2:58 PM

109 nothing. love it all! 7/21/2016 2:55 PM

110 none 7/21/2016 2:46 PM

111 locker rooms. 7/21/2016 2:18 PM

112 locker room changes. 7/21/2016 2:16 PM

113 the 2.7 m price tag on the lobby upgrade, really??? 7/21/2016 2:03 PM

114 indoor spa. 7/21/2016 2:01 PM

115 it is much more than we need. 7/21/2016 1:58 PM

116 no sauna/steam rooms 7/21/2016 1:53 PM

117 closure/cost 7/21/2016 1:51 PM

118 the cost 7/21/2016 1:47 PM

119 please keep the rball courts-atleast 2- I use it regularly. I also use sauna and steam room. Please keep if possible 7/21/2016 1:45 PM

120 we love the rball court and used them often. 7/21/2016 1:42 PM

121 updating gym and track 7/21/2016 1:40 PM

122 locker room/changing suites-somehow families have worked this out for the last 30 years. 7/21/2016 1:34 PM

123 too much locker room space 7/21/2016 1:12 PM

124 don't see any rball courts in new plan 7/21/2016 1:04 PM

125 locker room reconfiguration loss of rball court! keep one! 7/21/2016 12:53 PM

126 smaller locker room 7/21/2016 12:48 PM

127 keeping the rball courts and steam rooms 7/21/2016 12:41 PM

128 update to lobby 7/21/2016 12:25 PM

129 We are losing the steam room - but not the end of the world. 7/21/2016 12:19 PM

130 indoor spa 7/21/2016 12:16 PM

131 eliminating the rball courts. 7/21/2016 9:58 AM

132 outdoor pool, which is only used 3 months out of the year. lobby-looks fine as is. 7/21/2016 9:48 AM

133 lobby 7/21/2016 9:45 AM

134 I think the current lobby is fine 7/21/2016 9:41 AM

135 spa 7/21/2016 9:39 AM

19 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



136 steam room and sauna 7/21/2016 9:25 AM

137 Everything except the HVAC system. This is a terrible plan. A waste of money. I dont. know what you are thinking! 7/21/2016 9:14 AM

138 Spa 7/21/2016 8:38 AM

139 I don't like that you are getting rid of the steam rooms and saunas. 7/20/2016 11:12 PM

140 The cost 7/20/2016 11:10 PM

141 Not sure if the locker room space will be adequate. No racquetball courts or sauna. 7/20/2016 10:53 PM

142 I like it all! 7/20/2016 7:28 PM

143 Removal of the racquetball courts. New lounge space and cafe. 7/20/2016 6:24 PM

144 Spa 7/20/2016 5:52 PM

145 do not need a spa it is a waste of money 7/20/2016 3:44 PM

146 Losing the sauna & steam rooms, and having the yoga studio next to the child care room. 7/20/2016 3:26 PM

147 pool shade 7/20/2016 3:05 PM

148 lounge areas relocating sign-in. 7/20/2016 3:01 PM

149 fixing things that are not broken. money! taxes! membership fees! 7/20/2016 3:00 PM

150 multi use room gymnasium and track 7/20/2016 2:57 PM

151 lobby 7/20/2016 2:55 PM

152 i'm a single person so family concerns are less important to me 7/20/2016 2:53 PM

153 Locker rooms. Shrinking down the men's and women's locker rooms tpo much. While the family locker rooms take as
much space as the other two combined.

7/20/2016 2:53 PM

154 way too much cost 7/20/2016 2:51 PM

155 all 7/20/2016 2:50 PM

156 classrooms? what are those for? 7/20/2016 2:45 PM

157 locker rooms need to be bigger 7/20/2016 2:42 PM

158 upgrades to outdoor pool. 7/20/2016 2:38 PM

159 removal of rball courts 7/20/2016 2:36 PM

160 new entrance 7/20/2016 2:33 PM

161 coffee bar 7/20/2016 2:32 PM

162 lobby 7/20/2016 2:27 PM

163 none 7/20/2016 2:24 PM

164 no rball 7/20/2016 2:22 PM

165 excessive plans. too much not necessary is being suggested. 7/20/2016 2:20 PM

166 no rball 7/20/2016 2:14 PM

167 no rball courts 7/20/2016 2:12 PM

168 complete eliminations of rball courts 7/20/2016 2:10 PM

169 -overall design is costly and over the top. -plan does not use any of the existing foot print. -expanded staff offices and
large second floor restroom not needed! -why 2 classrooms?! one multi use room is plenty! -planto add 50 more
pieces of equipment?! - are you kidding me?!

7/20/2016 2:07 PM

170 None 7/20/2016 1:57 PM

171 Multi-use room 7/20/2016 1:48 PM

172 Inefficient re-layout of locker room space. Two busy locker rooms are crammed into the space of one, and the other
space (currently men's locker room) is very low density, a few individual rooms. With growing membership, this seems
the wrong direction. The small amount of space recovered from the sauna doesn't make up for halving the locker room
size.

7/20/2016 12:53 PM

20 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



173 gymnasium. I've only seen it used for random basketball. Who uses a library at the athletic club? 7/20/2016 12:12 PM

174 Don't fix (waste money) on things that don't need it 7/20/2016 12:08 PM

175 Wasting money on cosmetics 7/20/2016 12:04 PM

176 Wasting money on cosmetics 7/20/2016 12:00 PM

177 -the complete redesign of core building. -no attempt to use existing space where possible. -private offices for all staff-
trainers- NO!! -the intent to add 50 new pieces of equipment- why when current is used most of the day. -expanding
childcare and family lockerooms - strongly against this.

7/20/2016 10:51 AM

178 The family changing suites- I do not feel that we need a complete separate area for this. 7/20/2016 10:40 AM

179 1. private offices for trainers/staff 2. expanding childcare room 3. family locker room 4. case, lounge and game room
for kids. 5. overall plan to expand and add all new equipment when current equipment is under utilized. 6. new yoga
room is smaller than current room on level two

7/20/2016 10:34 AM

180 I can't think of one except $$$-it seems too high. 7/20/2016 10:09 AM

181 cost 7/20/2016 10:05 AM

182 lobby / core building 7/20/2016 9:42 AM

183 Fancy lobby and lounge take up a lot of space 7/20/2016 9:29 AM

184 Lobby Core/Building upgrades. 7/20/2016 8:46 AM

185 new HVAC; cafe; more children's areas; lifeguard room considering the pool is open 3 months and they do have
shaded areas to sit it;

7/20/2016 12:16 AM

186 None 7/19/2016 8:42 PM

187 I'd rather have these funds refunded to the tax payers than spent on renovation. 7/19/2016 8:25 PM

188 elimination of rqball courts 7/19/2016 8:24 PM

189 Where will the dry and wet saunas be? 7/19/2016 6:48 PM

190 Closing the "lobby/core bldg" - leave it open as it is. Taking away pocket of cardio outside library overlooking indoor
pool. Taking away current "fitness studio" on 2nd floor.

7/19/2016 4:08 PM

191 No racquetball courts. 7/19/2016 2:52 PM

192 too much money on lobby core, gym and track. 7/19/2016 1:14 PM

193 changing to more kids at the expense of other features. 7/19/2016 1:09 PM

194 too many offices included 7/19/2016 1:06 PM

195 eliminating sauna/steam 7/19/2016 1:04 PM

196 way too much money for as nice of a facility we presently have. 7/19/2016 1:00 PM

197 lobby 7/19/2016 12:59 PM

198 all but HVAC 7/19/2016 12:58 PM

199 everything. Uses our tax dollars to remodel a club that already functions well. 7/19/2016 12:57 PM

200 track upgrades. your bidding is too high! 7/19/2016 12:52 PM

201 it looks great but no money to do it. 7/19/2016 12:43 PM

202 all of it. too much money. 7/19/2016 12:22 PM

203 PLEASE DO NOT REMOVE THE RACQUETBALL COURTS. 7/19/2016 12:10 PM

204 Elimination of steam rooms/sauna. No mention of fixing roof. 7/19/2016 11:03 AM

205 Costs 7/19/2016 10:45 AM

206 Gym,but I don't use it 7/19/2016 10:30 AM

207 lesser racquet ball rooms 7/19/2016 9:30 AM

208 The reduction of locker room space. The loose of the racquetball courts, they are used by Addison firemen. Why
would any good athletic club have no steam rooms or saunas?

7/19/2016 6:24 AM

21 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



209 While it's time for a renovation, this goes too far and is much too expensive. I would encourage a thriftier way when I
comes to tax dollars.

7/18/2016 11:55 PM

210 The lobby is a bit dated but looks ok. 7/18/2016 11:00 PM

211 Eliminating the STEAM ROOMS, at least keep a WET steam room. Both steam rooms are used by many. One of the
BEST part of the gym. Redoing the dressing rooms is a WASTE of money. They were redone 3 yrs ago. Why getting
rid of STEAM ROOM???? Can't they build family changing room some where else. Lots of upheaval and MONEY to
accommodate the family changing room bit when club MAINLY used by adults.

7/18/2016 9:34 PM

212 Removing the racket ball courts 7/18/2016 8:42 PM

213 None 7/18/2016 7:22 PM

214 do not use outdoor pool- so not interested in shade 7/18/2016 5:27 PM

215 none 7/18/2016 5:25 PM

216 eliminating racquetball rooms 7/18/2016 5:23 PM

217 lounge space 7/18/2016 5:20 PM

218 lounge space 7/18/2016 5:19 PM

219 Locker rooms/changing suite, lobby/core building, Outdoor pool shade structure, gymnasium & track, New Indoor Spa
all not necessary or needed

7/18/2016 4:19 PM

220 Indoor pool and spa 7/18/2016 4:06 PM

221 Expenditure on renovating facilities that are perfectly adequate (locker rooms/lobby) 7/18/2016 3:36 PM

222 outdoor pool shade 7/18/2016 3:22 PM

223 Do not use the outdoor pool so not interested in that. Not certain about the changes to the locker areas. will they still
be separate?

7/18/2016 3:18 PM

224 outdoor pool and locker rooms 7/18/2016 3:17 PM

225 closing gym 7/18/2016 3:13 PM

226 full gym shut down 7/18/2016 3:10 PM

227 lobby/core bldg. 7/18/2016 3:05 PM

228 steam rooms and saunas 7/18/2016 2:59 PM

229 locker rooms 7/18/2016 2:56 PM

230 lobby 7/18/2016 2:53 PM

231 do not remove mens spa, steam room and sauna 7/18/2016 2:50 PM

232 family area 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

233 multipurpose room 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

234 Removal of existing Racquetball Courts. 7/18/2016 2:36 PM

235 why are you spending so much for lobby? 7/18/2016 2:33 PM

236 Getting rid of steam rooms or saunas, racquetball courts in favor of the new lobby. 7/18/2016 2:29 PM

237 pool 7/18/2016 2:15 PM

238 No racquetball courts. I play alot, this makes me sad. 7/18/2016 2:13 PM

239 the bathroom style looks out dates 7/18/2016 2:12 PM

240 Lobby 7/18/2016 2:08 PM

241 pool (outside) 7/18/2016 2:04 PM

242 Personal Fitness Room...not sure what this is. 7/18/2016 1:50 PM

243 I don't think any of it is necessary. 7/18/2016 1:48 PM

244 Indoor spa 7/18/2016 1:44 PM

245 lobby/locker room updates. BIG $! 7/18/2016 1:42 PM

22 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



246 First floor redesign is less about fitness and more about staff and sitting around. The locker rooms look smaller. I see
people using the racquetball courts all of the time and you're proposing eliminating all of them (a fitness activity) to
add a café?!!

7/18/2016 1:41 PM

247 n/a it all looks great. 7/18/2016 1:36 PM

248 fix A/C ---the other are over kill ---waste of money--hell its a gym not a country club 7/18/2016 1:28 PM

249 It's very expensive for a town community center that is not used by more than 15% of the people 7/18/2016 1:26 PM

250 Lobby living room feel seems a bit unnecessary 7/18/2016 1:25 PM

251 lobby outside enclosure around pool 7/18/2016 1:20 PM

252 all except #1 7/18/2016 1:17 PM

253 everything else 7/18/2016 1:10 PM

254 unnecessary changes 7/18/2016 1:05 PM

255 multi-use room 7/18/2016 1:01 PM

256 The lobby,outdoor pool and locker rooms. 7/18/2016 12:55 PM

257 lobby core building 7/18/2016 12:51 PM

258 none 7/18/2016 12:48 PM

259 not enough focus on sports training 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

260 not enough focus on sports training 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

261 scale back on lobby cost! 7/18/2016 12:41 PM

262 outdoor pool- don't use 7/18/2016 12:34 PM

263 removal of racquet ball courts 7/18/2016 12:25 PM

264 The fact you are wanting to spend my tax $ 7/18/2016 12:22 PM

265 Eliminating the steam room please keep it 7/18/2016 12:20 PM

266 Lobby area looks ok now 7/18/2016 12:16 PM

267 Family Locker Room 7/18/2016 12:08 PM

268 Cost 7/18/2016 8:06 AM

269 Pumping money into locker rooms. It's a large part of the budget but adds little to the function of the facility as a health
and wellness destination.

7/17/2016 11:18 PM

270 Adding/improving spa 7/16/2016 9:35 PM

271 Adding/improving spa 7/16/2016 9:34 PM

272 LOBBY/ CORE BUILDING - CHILD CARE CENTER AND REMOVING RACQUETBALL COURTS. WE DON'T NEED
A CHILD CARE CENTER AND I ENJOY THE RACQUETBALL COURTS.

7/16/2016 6:38 PM

273 The spa. It's something we never use. 7/16/2016 11:27 AM

274 I don't use the spa too much so I don't have an opinion. 7/16/2016 11:04 AM

275 high price of the locker rooms 7/16/2016 10:41 AM

276 NA 7/16/2016 10:07 AM

277 removing racquet ball courts 7/16/2016 9:58 AM

278 removing dry saune 7/16/2016 9:56 AM

279 Nothing really 7/16/2016 9:46 AM

280 can't tell but hoping there are still indoor showers and dressing rooms? I always appreciated those when my children
were younger and in the childrens center. I still use from time to time.

7/16/2016 8:49 AM

281 Suggest keeping 1 raquet ball court, some of the ideas seem "nice to haves" 7/15/2016 9:31 PM

282 Pools inside and out 7/15/2016 9:27 PM

23 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



283 1. I don't see ANY racquetball courts in the new plan. 2. Seems like kind overkill for a community athletic center. That
money that could be spent elsewhere in the city.

7/15/2016 6:49 PM

284 My least favorite part of the new Master Plan involves the diminishing of the locker rooms. I understand that the locker
rooms are not heavily used now, but that is largely because they are dated, so residents avoid them. I also think it is
poor planning to allocate so much space to "Family Lockers" at the expense of Mens and Ladies. We all understand
that parents with little ones need a place to take care of business, but children are only at the athletic center for
occasional camps and babysitting--they are not allowed on the exercise equipment, etc. Therefore, a couple of
"Family" restroom stalls should suffice, and the additional locker room space should be allocated to the adults who are
the primary users of the gym facilities and need to use locker room facilities to change clothes before/after work, and
shower. I've never seen little ones changing out of their work clothes before hitting the treadmill. :)

7/15/2016 6:28 PM

285 none 7/15/2016 5:03 PM

286 elimination of racquetball courts 7/15/2016 4:43 PM

287 It is difficult to understand improvements to locker rooms ~ they look smaller and co-ed? 7/15/2016 4:37 PM

288 The loss of a racquetball court. The new Fitness connection on Trinity Mills built 2 in their space. It is still a relevant
sport.

7/15/2016 4:35 PM

289 I do not like the idea of removing the steam rooms and saunas. I would like to see some funds diverted from the
classroom upgrades or other areas to improve the steam rooms.

7/15/2016 4:29 PM

290 pool 7/15/2016 4:27 PM

291 I see no need to undertake this expense at this time. As it stands this is an excellent facility as it now exists. 7/14/2016 6:19 PM

292 Roof leaks not included. Not using the roof line in the front (columns) to expand the all-purpose room. 7/14/2016 5:00 PM

293 I never use the lock rooms since I'm local so hard to get excited about so much being spent there. 7/14/2016 2:11 PM

294 The huge expense of the Lobby/Core building modifications. 7/13/2016 5:21 PM

295 Cost 7/13/2016 4:24 PM

296 locker rooms.. I am there almost every day in the morning & again around 4pm & rarely are the steam & sauna rooms
not in use... Every one uses them & to give them up for family style rooms which are a huge waste of space & a huge
minus for many people.. Maybe 2 enclosed family style restrooms added to the downstairs somewhere would be
helpful.

7/13/2016 4:20 PM

297 I don't do anything with the pool, so it's my least. 7/13/2016 3:20 PM

298 all others 7/13/2016 12:40 PM

299 Keep one racquetball court 7/13/2016 12:14 PM

300 lobby / core building 7/13/2016 12:13 PM

301 I cannot believe you are taking the last 2 racquetball courts out. You need to keep at least . Who was part if your focus
group? A bunch of senior citizans who have no interest in-ball?

7/13/2016 11:59 AM

302 do we really need rooms for 50 more machines? 7/13/2016 11:48 AM

303 new indoor spa 7/13/2016 11:24 AM

304 It appears that outdoor pool users might be able to walk through/past the family-locker area to access the
men's/women's lockers. If so, this seems to reduce the privacy/security that family-locker users need.

7/13/2016 11:13 AM

305 Lobby/Core 7/13/2016 10:08 AM

306 New indoor SPA 7/13/2016 9:54 AM

24 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



Q9 Are there elements you think should be
included on the Master Plan that were not

listed?
Answered: 284 Skipped: 115

# Responses Date

1 no 7/25/2016 9:21 AM

2 Keep at least 2 of the racquetball courts 7/25/2016 9:18 AM

3 Steam Room, Saunas, and Racquetball 7/25/2016 9:16 AM

4 No 7/25/2016 9:13 AM

5 I would like for the steam rooms to be kept 7/25/2016 9:12 AM

6 Steam room saunas and racquetball are all used daily and should be kept 7/23/2016 10:16 PM

7 I do not think any of the above should be completely eliminated if current adult members want them. The most
pressing need is exercise studio space, which so far does not seem to be a priority. The current priority continues to be
more rooms and exercise machines that benefit the male members.

7/23/2016 5:25 PM

8 I would greatly miss the steam sauna, but do understand that the cost for upkeep is considerable. 7/23/2016 4:54 PM

9 Not sure if I saw that a free weights section was part of the presentation.. Free weights would be nice. 7/23/2016 2:44 PM

10 Yes. Please retain the racquetball courts, sauna and steam rooms. 7/23/2016 2:37 PM

11 Add back the sauna 7/23/2016 11:10 AM

12 keeping at least one racquetball court 7/23/2016 10:27 AM

13 I don't really play racquetball, but I think you guys should keep the courts for the guys that do use them. 4 courts are
probably too many, but I think I see people playing in both courts pretty consistently when I'm here after work, and I
think it'd be a shame if they didn't have that anymore. Other guys I play basketball with agree.

7/22/2016 10:43 PM

14 I would like the steam rooms and saunas to remain 7/22/2016 10:11 PM

15 Racquetball court. Juice/smoothie/coffee bar or cart in reception area or outdoor court yard. More inviting or better
use of outdoor areas around pool.

7/22/2016 10:07 PM

16 yes, I think the steam rooms, saunas and 2 racquetball courts should stay 7/22/2016 9:36 PM

17 Yes: Retain one or 2 racquetball courts. 7/22/2016 8:04 PM

18 Yes, Racquetball courts should be included in the Master Plan. They need to keep at least 2 racquetball courts. 7/22/2016 5:45 PM

19 no 7/22/2016 5:41 PM

20 no 7/22/2016 5:26 PM

21 none should be included until put to vote by the club members and residents of Addison. 7/22/2016 4:22 PM

22 Replace door from indoor pool to lobby. It has huge gaps with cold air from the lobby streaming into the pool area and
makes it impossible to use the indoor pool. Keep saunas and maintain sauna temperature (not about 90F as it is now).
Keep reasonable temperature in the lobby and locker rooms, now it's like a meat locker. Keep outdoor pool open
longer than just Memorial to Labor Day, we have good enough weather in April and October (lifeguards not
necessary).

7/22/2016 4:01 PM

23 Steam rooms, saunas would be appropriate to keep, but if costs were considered high to support keeping them, then
they shouldn't be kept.... A play area/small playground by swimming pool outside would be nice...

7/22/2016 3:35 PM

24 no 7/22/2016 2:54 PM

25 Steam & sauna rooms should remain. I don't play racquetball. 7/22/2016 2:26 PM

26 A space for kids older then 7 to hang out while parents work out 7/22/2016 2:13 PM

27 Steam rooms 7/22/2016 2:09 PM

25 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



28 Steam and Sauna Rooms 7/22/2016 2:03 PM

29 sauna and steam room 7/22/2016 2:01 PM

30 steam room and sauna 7/22/2016 1:57 PM

31 Sauna and steam room 7/22/2016 1:54 PM

32 Elimination of the steam room and sauna. Please keep hem but update and keep sanitary. 7/22/2016 1:51 PM

33 Yes, at least a couple of racquetball courts should stay 7/22/2016 1:26 PM

34 Better Trainers in the facility and more classes for the evening people that work doing the day!!! 7/22/2016 12:24 PM

35 no 7/22/2016 12:17 PM

36 Using the new work out rooms for classes that would appeal to 30-40 year old members. 7/22/2016 11:29 AM

37 Don't like the eliminationn of all racquetball courts 7/22/2016 11:21 AM

38 Racquetball should be kept, I think. 7/22/2016 11:17 AM

39 we need at least 1-2 racquetball courts Add a cinema room 7/22/2016 11:16 AM

40 Racquetball 7/22/2016 10:54 AM

41 I like the cafe' idea Should retain either steam or sauna 7/22/2016 10:10 AM

42 Steam rooms are a must in any health club locker room! 7/22/2016 10:06 AM

43 Instead of huge locker room changes, I would like one family friendly changing room added. 7/22/2016 10:06 AM

44 no 7/22/2016 10:04 AM

45 Keep sauna, steam room and racquetball courts 7/22/2016 9:56 AM

46 we only need maintains 7/22/2016 9:54 AM

47 no 7/22/2016 9:51 AM

48 no 7/22/2016 9:49 AM

49 windows around the track deeper outdoor pool 7/22/2016 9:46 AM

50 I think raquetball courts are unique and should remain. 7/22/2016 9:45 AM

51 none 7/22/2016 9:42 AM

52 none 7/22/2016 9:40 AM

53 no 7/22/2016 9:39 AM

54 new carpet and paint 7/22/2016 9:38 AM

55 Keep steam room Racquetball courts 7/22/2016 9:32 AM

56 Racquetball! 7/22/2016 9:31 AM

57 Racquetball Courts 7/22/2016 9:30 AM

58 Keep the steam rooms and saunas. Keep but limit the racquetball courts to two. 7/22/2016 9:28 AM

59 Yes, Why do this 7/22/2016 9:22 AM

60 I observe very few women using the steam or sauna, but feel at least the steam room should perhaps be included 7/22/2016 9:18 AM

61 More than one multi-use room. 7/22/2016 9:06 AM

62 Racquetball courts need to be included. At least 1 or 2. 7/22/2016 9:05 AM

63 The multi purpose room is located in an awkward place. I'm assuming members can use this room for exercise? I
would like to keep free space downstairs(old racket ball rooms) like we currently have for exercise. There's not enough
space upstairs to lift freely and do push-ups all in the same space.

7/22/2016 9:04 AM

64 Racquetball court and child care combined with games so older kids can be watched over too 7/22/2016 9:01 AM

65 No 7/22/2016 8:58 AM

66 no 7/22/2016 8:54 AM

26 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



67 Get a timer for the water features of the outdoor pool and keep the water features in use when the Athletic Club is in
use. The view of the pool is one of the premier features of the athletic club. We need to keep the outdoor pool clean
and looking great as it's a premium feature of the athletic club all year long.

7/22/2016 8:52 AM

68 Steam room, sauna and 1 racquetball court 7/22/2016 8:48 AM

69 Updated, upgraded bathrooms, showers, sink areas. 7/22/2016 8:48 AM

70 increase number of group exercise classes, promote classes more - you will lose folks to gyms like Crunch who offer a
variety of classes all through the day and evening hours.

7/22/2016 8:13 AM

71 No 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

72 No 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

73 Removing racquetball is a bad plan...must have 2 courts. Ever consider a rock climbing section? 7/22/2016 7:55 AM

74 Additional outdoor tennis courts. 7/22/2016 7:50 AM

75 The track is getting too small as certain times of the day it can be very crowded. It will only get worse with the
additional Addison residents. We should take the new residents into consideration now, so we don't have to put
money back into things we have just changed. Let's get it right the first time.

7/22/2016 7:46 AM

76 Yes, instead of yoga room on the other side of child watch area, consider adding a fun/study room for kids over age 7.
You could have desks, games, puzzles separated with child watch by glass or other transparent wall. This would give
kids a safe area to hang out in. Other ways for the AAC to make money on building with upgrades might include :
birthday parties, viewing area for firework viewing on roof.

7/22/2016 7:44 AM

77 I would recommend a juice/smoothie/nutrition bar/station. Not only would it be great for members to replenish after
intense workouts, but could also be a revenue source, and social environment for members as well

7/22/2016 7:29 AM

78 No 7/22/2016 7:24 AM

79 Steam rooms, sauna and racquetball courts!!! 7/21/2016 11:23 PM

80 Steam rooms, saunas and racquetball courts. 7/21/2016 11:22 PM

81 One of the reasons I am excited to join us because my apartment building does not have sauna or steamroll mom
which I love. I want to do water aerobics and use sauna.

7/21/2016 10:32 PM

82 don't eliminate the steam room! 7/21/2016 8:51 PM

83 sauna and steam room will be missed... having one racketball court would be ideal. 7/21/2016 8:01 PM

84 New steam and sauna 7/21/2016 6:53 PM

85 N/a 7/21/2016 5:40 PM

86 no 7/21/2016 4:31 PM

87 no 7/21/2016 4:30 PM

88 please eliminate all of these items- NO NEED! 7/21/2016 4:30 PM

89 no 7/21/2016 4:27 PM

90 no 7/21/2016 4:24 PM

91 rball 7/21/2016 4:20 PM

92 no 7/21/2016 4:15 PM

93 no 7/21/2016 4:14 PM

94 no 7/21/2016 4:13 PM

95 Steam Rooms and Saunas should stay. 7/21/2016 4:01 PM

96 -they should not be eliminated 7/21/2016 3:31 PM

97 cut it down a bit. ball court in half. make 2 offices out of one. stop throwing money away. 7/21/2016 3:25 PM

98 no- racquetball courts need to go. You don't see these in fitness facilities at all anymore. These spaces could be
utilized so much better if they were eliminated.

7/21/2016 3:12 PM

99 yes, I would keep these over bball court. You could take 1/2 of basketball court and make 2 new exercise studios. 7/21/2016 3:08 PM

100 no 7/21/2016 3:02 PM

27 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



101 yes an area for free weights. 7/21/2016 3:01 PM

102 no 7/21/2016 2:58 PM

103 more outlets in fitness rooms. 7/21/2016 2:55 PM

104 no, everything looks great! racquetball courts and saunas need to be eliminated. Doesn't seem like they get much use. 7/21/2016 2:46 PM

105 mtg tonight said steam, sauna and racquetball courts were in different phases. now this is being eliminated. 7/21/2016 2:16 PM

106 steam room and rball courts 7/21/2016 1:58 PM

107 none 7/21/2016 1:56 PM

108 maybe combine male/female sauna and steam rooms. 7/21/2016 1:53 PM

109 improve jacuzzi 7/21/2016 1:49 PM

110 I never use them, but if people use them atleast keep one or two 7/21/2016 1:47 PM

111 adding free weights rooms as above- courts 7/21/2016 1:45 PM

112 add squat rack and bench press 7/21/2016 1:42 PM

113 master plan should have a greater budgeted amount for maintenance of exercise equipment. 7/21/2016 1:40 PM

114 keep 2 rball courts and the gym. 7/21/2016 1:34 PM

115 dedicated spin room? 7/21/2016 1:12 PM

116 want to keep a few rball courts. also, use the ping pong and foosball tables. 7/21/2016 1:04 PM

117 please consider meditation room/quiet room/ lerger yoga studip/consider adding pilates machines. 7/21/2016 12:53 PM

118 steam room-keep one rball court 7/21/2016 12:48 PM

119 rball 7/21/2016 12:37 PM

120 while i will miss the steam room it needs to go due to low use and high maintenance. 7/21/2016 12:25 PM

121 no 7/21/2016 12:21 PM

122 No 7/21/2016 12:19 PM

123 no 7/21/2016 12:16 PM

124 no 7/21/2016 9:48 AM

125 sauna & rball court 7/21/2016 9:30 AM

126 No 7/21/2016 9:14 AM

127 Racquetball court. 7/21/2016 9:05 AM

128 Keep a steam room and sauna that is unisex. 7/20/2016 11:12 PM

129 no 7/20/2016 11:10 PM

130 Please keep at least two racquetball courts. Also. keep the saunas. I liked the idea of a free weight area, too. Make
sure you keep an elevator, too. Make sure we still have the centrifuges for drying our swimming suits.

7/20/2016 10:53 PM

131 Drinking fountain at end of upstairs weight arrea 7/20/2016 6:05 PM

132 new cardio equipment that is closer to sate of the art and more variety 7/20/2016 3:44 PM

133 Steam rooms & sauna. 7/20/2016 3:26 PM

134 one rball court 7/20/2016 3:01 PM

135 raq ball atleast one court 7/20/2016 3:00 PM

136 no 7/20/2016 2:57 PM

137 steam rooms 7/20/2016 2:55 PM

138 I'd be disappointed to see the above go. I could see taking out some of the racquetball courts. But not all of them. The
steam room and sauna seemed to get used quite a bit.

7/20/2016 2:53 PM

139 the pavement around the pool is blistering hot 7/20/2016 2:51 PM

28 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



140 yes- the leaks in the roof/ceiling need repair. And the crazy weird shelves for the free weights need to be scrapped.
they are a safety hazard

7/20/2016 2:50 PM

141 should be on rball court. Why update nice locker rooms and eliminate sauna/steam. 7/20/2016 2:45 PM

142 steam rooms and sauna should be reconsidered 7/20/2016 2:42 PM

143 better gym equipment 7/20/2016 2:38 PM

144 keep rball courts- this was a major reason why we joined. can't find these in many fitness centers. 7/20/2016 2:36 PM

145 rball courts should be available at and health club 7/20/2016 2:32 PM

146 rballX10 7/20/2016 2:22 PM

147 rball rooms and saunas should remain. 7/20/2016 2:20 PM

148 eliminating rball is a bad idea. Downsizing makes sense, but there are quite a few people who use them regularly. 7/20/2016 2:16 PM

149 keep rball 7/20/2016 2:14 PM

150 rball courts 7/20/2016 2:12 PM

151 rball courts 7/20/2016 2:10 PM

152 -focus should be using majority of AAC as designed -basket ball court has low usage. 50 percent of this space could
be converted to 2 new exercise rooms.

7/20/2016 2:07 PM

153 Keep steam rooms 7/20/2016 1:57 PM

154 no...looks good 7/20/2016 1:48 PM

155 I see the racketball courts frequently in use. I don't personally use the courts, but it seems misguided to remove a
popular function.

7/20/2016 12:53 PM

156 Storage in all the multipurpose rooms and storage at the tennis court. 7/20/2016 12:23 PM

157 keep steam rooms 7/20/2016 12:08 PM

158 There is no place for children age 7 and up. The child center doesn't allow them, but cannot go into gym until they are
a teenager. Can there be a room attached or enclosed area to kid center for that age group to do activities (play Wii,
puzzles, board games, books, legos, etc)/still be supervised by the care giver.

7/20/2016 12:04 PM

159 There is no place for children age 7 and up. The child center doesn't allow them, but cannot go into gym until they are
a teenager. Can there be a room attached or enclosed area to kid center for that age group to do activities (play Wii,
puzzles, board games, books, legos, etc)/still be supervised by the care giver.

7/20/2016 12:00 PM

160 repurpose 50-100 percent of basketball courts to exercise rooms as the wood flooring is already there. Just add walls
and mirrors. one racquetball court could be a exercise studio.

7/20/2016 10:51 AM

161 I would like to see at least a sauna and one racquetball court. Possibly access to a restroom and rinse off station for
people using the volleyball, basketball and tennis courts- Also if lights could be added on the poles to the lights to the
tennis courts facing the sand volleyball courts so there is at least one court lit until 10 PM

7/20/2016 10:40 AM

162 a. these options are used by many adults and better use of space than a game room or enlarged day care! b. why not
look at basketball courts?

7/20/2016 10:34 AM

163 love the steam rooms and racquetball will be missed. 7/20/2016 10:09 AM

164 steam and sauna 7/20/2016 9:42 AM

165 Needs more space for multi-sports including soccer or futsal! Needs more elements tied to sports training. 7/20/2016 9:29 AM

166 individual TV's on each cardio machine 7/20/2016 8:46 AM

167 yes, the dry sauna and steam room need to be kept!. However, only 1 racquetball court is needed. As I said in the
forum, the men's showers are prison showers out of code, yet not specifics were given. There should be individual
stalls which accommodate privacy. This is one reason I don't work out there more. In addition, the towel service should
be either complimentary or an upgraded charge for members who wish to pay annually should be allowed. Other
amenities should be part of the locker rooms also lotion, Q-tips, combs, mouthwash, etc, out by the “grooming
stations”. Locker rooms should be a "high" priority not moderate.

7/20/2016 12:16 AM

168 None 7/19/2016 8:42 PM

169 I'd rather have these funds refunded to the tax payers than spent on renovation. 7/19/2016 8:25 PM

170 raquetballbcourts 7/19/2016 8:24 PM

29 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



171 Please keep racquetball!!! 7/19/2016 7:41 PM

172 Yes steam rooms and saunas and the workout rooms in the racketball courts Do not eliminate them We use them
every visit

7/19/2016 6:48 PM

173 Why would we not have it all? Yes, the sauna, steam rooms, and racquet ball courts aren't used much, but so what? 7/19/2016 4:46 PM

174 Individual TVs on each cardio machine that are controlled by the user of the machine. Ceiling fans in most recent
addition area.

7/19/2016 4:08 PM

175 Racquetball courts are a must. Also, I'm not sure what the difference between the steam rooms and the sauna is, but I
feel like these are features of higher end facilities, and their existence is a nice feature.

7/19/2016 2:52 PM

176 keep sauna 7/19/2016 1:14 PM

177 steam, sauna and rball 7/19/2016 1:09 PM

178 racquetball courts and sauna 7/19/2016 1:04 PM

179 Like to see new Spin Spikes. The ones we have are pretty old. 7/19/2016 1:00 PM

180 no. extend club hours on weekends. 7/19/2016 12:57 PM

181 definetly. Rball, steam rooms are important. It should be in the plan. 7/19/2016 12:52 PM

182 steam room's and saunas should stay. 7/19/2016 12:47 PM

183 restroom convenient to front door for park users 7/19/2016 12:43 PM

184 Steam room and saunas 7/19/2016 12:29 PM

185 Include racquetball courts 7/19/2016 12:25 PM

186 Don't touch the steam & sauna room. 7/19/2016 12:22 PM

187 INCLUDE THE RACQUETBALL COURTS 7/19/2016 12:10 PM

188 Roof Steam rooms Saunas 7/19/2016 11:03 AM

189 no 7/19/2016 10:45 AM

190 No 7/19/2016 10:30 AM

191 Cool surface on the outdoor pool deck. Pool could use some repair. 7/18/2016 11:00 PM

192 Outdoor pool renovations 7/18/2016 10:41 PM

193 Keep the STEAM ROOMS. They are used by many. Is it a maintenance issue or what?? Most gyms don't have
STEAM ROOMS, Addison sets itself apart by having them. KEEP THE STEAM ROOMS as they are used!!!!

7/18/2016 9:34 PM

194 No 7/18/2016 7:22 PM

195 no 7/18/2016 5:27 PM

196 better pool furniture 7/18/2016 5:25 PM

197 rock climbing wall is missing 7/18/2016 5:23 PM

198 no 7/18/2016 5:20 PM

199 no 7/18/2016 5:19 PM

200 one racquetball court is all that is needed and the steam room, do away with the sauna 7/18/2016 4:19 PM

201 NO 7/18/2016 4:06 PM

202 Yes! The Steam rooms, sauna and racquetball courts. These are always busy when I am in and appear to be in high
demand. Whereas the gym is always empty...

7/18/2016 3:36 PM

203 Leave one racquetball court 7/18/2016 3:22 PM

204 None 7/18/2016 3:18 PM

205 steam room, sauna and racquetball 7/18/2016 3:17 PM

206 equipment for youth that cannony workout on equipment upstairs. more youth classes 7/18/2016 3:13 PM

207 outdoor lap pool. more 10-15 yr old activities 7/18/2016 3:10 PM

30 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



208 include racquetball courts, steam rooms and saunas 7/18/2016 3:05 PM

209 sauna and steam room 7/18/2016 2:56 PM

210 hot sauna/steam 7/18/2016 2:53 PM

211 more study areas 7/18/2016 2:51 PM

212 racquetball 7/18/2016 2:50 PM

213 the steam room should be included 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

214 steam and sauna for sure. see #7 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

215 Retain at least one existing racquetball court, or build a new one in a new location, if necessary. 7/18/2016 2:36 PM

216 include steam room & sauna 7/18/2016 2:33 PM

217 steam rooms/saunas, racquetball courts 7/18/2016 2:29 PM

218 bball equipment, shooting machines 7/18/2016 2:15 PM

219 Raquetball courts should be included as well as more tennis courts. 7/18/2016 2:13 PM

220 expanded weights- bench, squat racks and smith machine 7/18/2016 2:12 PM

221 Yes 7/18/2016 2:08 PM

222 cafeteria area. need better chairs and tables 7/18/2016 2:04 PM

223 Indoor pool really need to be upgrade - better lighting, new paint everywhere. The locker room area is very old. This
need to be upgraded including the showers..

7/18/2016 1:58 PM

224 lobby/core building 7/18/2016 1:55 PM

225 don't eliminate all racquetball courts. 7/18/2016 1:52 PM

226 keep saunas 7/18/2016 1:45 PM

227 Concessions improvements 7/18/2016 1:44 PM

228 I would reconsider the removal of ALL of the racquetball courts. 7/18/2016 1:41 PM

229 No. 7/18/2016 1:36 PM

230 A/C only 7/18/2016 1:28 PM

231 Steam room unless it has too much liability 7/18/2016 1:26 PM

232 Additional free weight benches/space for them looks to be a current need. 7/18/2016 1:25 PM

233 Yes....More indoor pool "lap" lanes!!!!!! 7/18/2016 1:20 PM

234 new spin bikes 7/18/2016 1:17 PM

235 how about a joint steam room and sauna for men and women. Keep one rball court. 7/18/2016 1:14 PM

236 upgrade of bathroom/shower for the outdoor pool 7/18/2016 1:10 PM

237 ceiling fans in weight room and basketball court 7/18/2016 1:07 PM

238 absolutely! shower before entering pool. showers right outside outdoor pool entrance. 7/18/2016 1:01 PM

239 convert pools to salt water or ozone. Chlorine is toxic. WELLNESS should be a priority. 7/18/2016 12:55 PM

240 no- fix A/C 7/18/2016 12:51 PM

241 specific kids area to include ages 8-13 7/18/2016 12:48 PM

242 would be great to have a court to play soccer with kids 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

243 would be great to have a court to play soccer with kids 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

244 benches outside in the front 7/18/2016 12:41 PM

245 Yes- please do not remove Racquetball courts or steam rooms! 7/18/2016 12:34 PM

246 More study areas 7/18/2016 12:25 PM

247 Steam room 7/18/2016 12:24 PM

31 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



248 NO 7/18/2016 12:22 PM

249 Steam room/sauna 7/18/2016 12:20 PM

250 Would it be possible to have only one coed steam room and sauna 7/18/2016 12:16 PM

251 Elimination of soda, unhealthy snacks in place of whole and healthy food. Some attention to nutrition especially
geared towards the youth.

7/17/2016 11:18 PM

252 I would like the steam room and racquetball courts to remain. 7/16/2016 6:38 PM

253 Desks/homework stations and a more permanent children's library/bookcase. 7/16/2016 11:27 AM

254 No. I think the plan is extremely thorough and comprehensive. 7/16/2016 11:04 AM

255 Any way to fit in 2 racquet ball courts? They seem well used. We have fun playing in one occasionally. 7/16/2016 10:41 AM

256 sauna and racquetball courts 7/16/2016 10:07 AM

257 racquetball courts, Steam room 7/16/2016 9:58 AM

258 need dry sauna 7/16/2016 9:56 AM

259 Racquetball courts seem pretty important. Our family has used them frequently. We could also stand to make our
weight room more robust. I think that's why more ppl don't use the facilities.

7/16/2016 9:46 AM

260 Looks good 7/16/2016 8:49 AM

261 Improved technology to update membership and prove Addison citzenship. Antiquated to have to bring in a bill with
mailing address.

7/15/2016 9:31 PM

262 No 7/15/2016 9:27 PM

263 Racquetball Courts! 7/15/2016 6:49 PM

264 I absolutely think the steam and saunas should be reinstated. It's difficult to lose amenities in a makeover, but we all
understand that is necessary to some extent. Given the space the racquetball courts require, it's a painful, but fair,
tradeoff. However, removing the steam and saunas is moving backward--there is even more evidence now of the
health benefits of steam and sauna, and the higher end athletic centers (which AAC should be) have these amenities.
The health benefits (see: http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/saunas-might-be-good-for-_n_6736242) are also why
many stand alone sauna and steam spas are opening. I understand they are difficult to maintain and keep clean, but
so are the two pools and the spa. Please reconsider the elimination of the steam and sauna.

7/15/2016 6:28 PM

265 If not in the plan, an additional group exercise room. 7/15/2016 6:10 PM

266 Racquetball courts. 7/15/2016 4:43 PM

267 Maybe offer personal trainers who would share 50% of their charges with the club. Update/clean day care area for
those who wish to have care givers for their little children while they work out.

7/15/2016 4:37 PM

268 Yes, I would like to see space created for a cardio cinema. Gold's Gym and Fitness Connection have them. It is a
great way to workout and not realize how long you have been there!

7/15/2016 4:35 PM

269 See above concerning the saunas 7/15/2016 4:29 PM

270 Those necessary maintenance items such as the A/C, Heating and Ventilating. Other maintenance as occasional
painting, etc., to keep the facility fresh and desirable. .

7/14/2016 6:19 PM

271 At least one raq.court 7/14/2016 5:00 PM

272 Not really. For me it's more about the variety and affordability of the class offerings. Would be nice to have an area for
more social gatherings/food/beverage but perhaps that's included.

7/14/2016 2:11 PM

273 I think potential uses for the spaces should be included, I would hope that after the renovation there would be an
increase in children classes and programming, after school basketball classes, tennis classes, soccer classes...more
options for group or private swimming lessons(I have been trying for a year to have private lessons with the contact
listed at the club, her schedule never works with my children's...maybe there could be more people offering lessons.

7/13/2016 5:32 PM

274 Aren't there some members who use the racquetball courts? You might leave one or two courts. 7/13/2016 5:21 PM

275 A water fountain should be added to the far end of the weight room. Add a dip/pull-up assist machine to the weight
area.

7/13/2016 4:24 PM

276 we should retain the steam & sauna... these are in use all the time... I hear the same from the men... They are a huge
PLUS to the club.

7/13/2016 4:20 PM

32 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



277 Can't think of anything, since I workout w/trainer. 7/13/2016 3:20 PM

278 A theatre for presentations and family movie night Party room Childcare separated for older kids 7/13/2016 12:14 PM

279 Keep a Racquetball court 7/13/2016 11:59 AM

280 More activities for Seniors 7/13/2016 11:48 AM

281 The plan "as is" appears to include increased security for childwatch area. Great! Perhaps a two-phase entry with a
locked second door would increase security. Also, childwatch area should have separation of spaces for
babies/toddlers and older kids.

7/13/2016 11:24 AM

282 maybe keep at least 1 racquetball court 7/13/2016 11:13 AM

283 Why eliminate these? 7/13/2016 10:08 AM

284 Small towels in workout area to use to cover machines from sweat...put in basket at end of workout. 7/13/2016 9:54 AM

33 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



Q10 Are there elements listed you think
should be excluded from the Master Plan?

Answered: 226 Skipped: 173

# Responses Date

1 no 7/25/2016 9:21 AM

2 Lobby 7/25/2016 9:16 AM

3 Redoing Locker Rooms 7/25/2016 9:12 AM

4 n/a 7/23/2016 10:16 PM

5 1) private offices for the staff and trainers. This is completely unnecessary. Except for Randy, cubicles are fine. In
business world, only directors and higher get a private office. 2) expanded childcare - it is not the Town's or taxpayers
responsibility to provide free childcare all day long. The ACC was designed to be ADULT centered facility and should
remain so. If you try and turn it in to child focus rec center, I will stop coming. Kids are not allowed in exercise areas
until 15 yrs of age. M-F they run wild in the lobby area and noise is awful!

7/23/2016 5:25 PM

6 My lowest ranked, being indoor pool & locker room. 7/23/2016 4:54 PM

7 Generally speaking the upgrades to the lobby area are not needed. I think upgrading HVAC and refresh of current
areas is sufficient.

7/23/2016 2:37 PM

8 The new spa 7/23/2016 11:10 AM

9 eliminating ALL of the racquetball courts...it's ridiculous that there can not be at least one court remaining 7/23/2016 10:27 AM

10 Offices 7/22/2016 10:11 PM

11 Special yoga room 7/22/2016 10:07 PM

12 the work done on the outside pool area -- not really needed or necessary 7/22/2016 9:36 PM

13 Lobby remodeling is not necessary. 7/22/2016 8:04 PM

14 I think the cafe is too big. Most people use the gym to workout, not to socialize. 7/22/2016 5:45 PM

15 no 7/22/2016 5:41 PM

16 no 7/22/2016 5:26 PM

17 all until put to vote by the people. 7/22/2016 4:22 PM

18 do not waste money on offices. it looks like the overall plan will increase management/labor costs of operating the
facility. re-organize the entire plan to minimize the need for supervision.

7/22/2016 4:05 PM

19 Cosmetic things, e.g. graphics and banners, game room, expensive sound systems. 7/22/2016 4:01 PM

20 Lobby improvements... There is no need to spend a lot of money on 'beautifying' this area. 7/22/2016 3:35 PM

21 yes - just fix and replace what is existing and add one multi purpose room. 7/22/2016 2:54 PM

22 No 7/22/2016 2:26 PM

23 Please do not remove any of the racquetball courts 7/22/2016 2:13 PM

24 lobby/core building 7/22/2016 1:57 PM

25 This is just too many improvements. Please keep adding improved equipment and keep the gym clean. All new flooring
etc is just unnecessary.

7/22/2016 1:26 PM

26 some rated as low as 3 7/22/2016 12:17 PM

27 Elimination of raquetteball courts. This has been one of my most favorite activities to share with my daughter's. 7/22/2016 11:58 AM

28 Eliminating the sauna's and steam rooms. I use these on a regular basis as do many other club members. 7/22/2016 11:29 AM

29 exclude removing the racquetball courts 7/22/2016 11:23 AM

30 Don't really care about new lobby or game room 7/22/2016 11:21 AM

34 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



31 No 7/22/2016 11:17 AM

32 Locker rooms do not need that much change 7/22/2016 11:16 AM

33 Admin expansion 7/22/2016 10:10 AM

34 no 7/22/2016 10:04 AM

35 maintence only needed 7/22/2016 9:56 AM

36 Keep sauna and steam room 7/22/2016 9:54 AM

37 yes, family locker room and library expansion 7/22/2016 9:51 AM

38 most of it 7/22/2016 9:49 AM

39 none 7/22/2016 9:42 AM

40 none 7/22/2016 9:40 AM

41 no 7/22/2016 9:39 AM

42 all 7/22/2016 9:38 AM

43 Game room doesn't have to be that big as proposed 7/22/2016 9:32 AM

44 Classrooms and bigger daycare. 7/22/2016 9:31 AM

45 Expanding the exercise areas, renovating lobby space, relocating admin. offices, and doing anything in the track and
gymnasium should not be in the plan. The current space is adequate for the amount of usage it gets.

7/22/2016 9:28 AM

46 Do we really need to do anything to the indoor track 7/22/2016 9:24 AM

47 All of it 7/22/2016 9:22 AM

48 probably don't need family changing/locker rooms 7/22/2016 9:18 AM

49 Removal of the steam rooms. 7/22/2016 9:06 AM

50 I had no idea we had a library. Is this for members? If not, I don't think it's really necessary to have a library in a fitness
facility.

7/22/2016 9:04 AM

51 Whole plan should be voted down 7/22/2016 8:58 AM

52 no 7/22/2016 8:54 AM

53 Eliminate second classroom, reduce the amount of admin space and eliminate dedicated game area. Eliminate lounge
space in locker room. Reduce number of family changing rooms (note: I have two children and believe two changing
rooms - one in each locker room is sufficient).

7/22/2016 8:48 AM

54 I'm happy with the current locker rooms but I do understand that others may need an upgrade. 7/22/2016 8:24 AM

55 elimination of racquetball courts 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

56 Why would you eliminate racquetball, Diana's, and steam rooms? 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

57 Why would you eliminate racquetball, Diana's, and steam rooms? 7/22/2016 8:13 AM

58 Saunas 7/22/2016 8:12 AM

59 We don't need a library, as Addison resident we have access to other real library in the area. We don't need a
dedicated yoga room, any room can serve as a yoga room.

7/22/2016 7:50 AM

60 Does anyone use the indoor spa? 7/22/2016 7:46 AM

61 Racquetball court removal. Please consider leaving one or 2 courts. 7/22/2016 7:44 AM

62 No 7/22/2016 7:29 AM

63 No 7/22/2016 7:24 AM

64 Facial spa, lounge, cafe... It's a fitness center/gym not an assisted living complex. 7/21/2016 11:23 PM

65 Family changing suites, the several extra multi-purpose rooms and the lounge area in the entrance. 7/21/2016 11:22 PM

66 The track and gym looked fine to me. We have a shade pool at our apartment. Unless you hear it...too cold. 7/21/2016 10:32 PM

67 do not remove steam and sauna from locker rooms 7/21/2016 6:53 PM

35 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



68 Leave the racquetball courts in 7/21/2016 5:40 PM

69 Scrap the whole thing. The club is fine as it is. 7/21/2016 5:39 PM

70 no 7/21/2016 4:31 PM

71 no 7/21/2016 4:30 PM

72 no 7/21/2016 4:27 PM

73 no spa 7/21/2016 4:24 PM

74 anything not aiding to fitness 7/21/2016 4:20 PM

75 no 7/21/2016 4:15 PM

76 no 7/21/2016 4:14 PM

77 no 7/21/2016 4:13 PM

78 no expanded childcare. and no additional pieces and equipment. try using what is already there. 7/21/2016 3:25 PM

79 no 7/21/2016 3:12 PM

80 everything listen in 8b/8b above. The plan to add 50 new pieces of equipment. Most of existing equipment is idle
majority of the day.

7/21/2016 3:08 PM

81 all but the hvac and repaint 7/21/2016 3:02 PM

82 locker room upgrade. lifeguard room 7/21/2016 3:01 PM

83 game room/coffee bar. 7/21/2016 2:55 PM

84 no 7/21/2016 2:46 PM

85 everything I ranked with an 8. A central desk is absolutely unnecessary. what we have works just fine. 7/21/2016 1:58 PM

86 cafe, etc... if this is to be a social club as opposed to "athletic club" change the name. 7/21/2016 1:53 PM

87 the front lobby is nice- doesn't need changing. 7/21/2016 1:49 PM

88 do we need all the classrooms 7/21/2016 1:45 PM

89 keep a few racquetball courts, keep sauna and steam room. 7/21/2016 1:40 PM

90 I don't think we should spend so much on a new lobby area. This is not a resort and we're trying to impress people. 7/21/2016 1:34 PM

91 indoor space. do locker areas need to be so lage? 7/21/2016 1:12 PM

92 family locker rooms downsized! 7/21/2016 12:53 PM

93 I really don't get the need for family lockers rooms atleast so many. I use the lockers and showers when I come in, the
new locker rooms seem cramped.

7/21/2016 12:48 PM

94 there are lots of whistles and bells, should be scaled down. 7/21/2016 12:25 PM

95 no 7/21/2016 12:21 PM

96 No 7/21/2016 12:19 PM

97 no 7/21/2016 12:16 PM

98 lobby looks fine 7/21/2016 9:48 AM

99 spa and locker room updates 7/21/2016 9:39 AM

100 Everything except HVAC upgrades. 7/21/2016 9:14 AM

101 Library. We could always use other city library. It's very convenient and multiple choices. It's too small in the new
center. Also, do we need that much admin space?

7/21/2016 9:05 AM

102 Everything except A/C 7/20/2016 11:10 PM

103 Not sure the lobby needs that much expenditure (over 1/3 of the budget). It seems OK to me the way it is. 7/20/2016 10:53 PM

104 indoor spa 7/20/2016 7:28 PM

105 Removal of racquetball courts. We use it multiple times a week. Suggest that the removal of racquetball courts be
excluded from the master plan.

7/20/2016 6:24 PM

36 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



106 Spa 7/20/2016 3:44 PM

107 Game area 7/20/2016 3:26 PM

108 doesn't need to be ultra money for the lobby, seating, decorations, etc... 7/20/2016 3:05 PM

109 do maintenance only. no redo needed. 7/20/2016 3:01 PM

110 lots of things! why?!?! lets fix AC, heating, roo, maybe enlarge exercise rooms, make upstairs restrooms as family. 7/20/2016 3:00 PM

111 locker rooms and suites 7/20/2016 2:57 PM

112 no 7/20/2016 2:55 PM

113 The huge family locker room. How about a couple of smaller family locker rooms so that the men's and women's locker
rooms aren't so tiny.

7/20/2016 2:53 PM

114 all 7/20/2016 2:50 PM

115 family locker rooms use same space as mens/womens combined... make smaller family locker rooms. 7/20/2016 2:45 PM

116 the locker rooms proposed are too small and should be reconsidered. It does not seem like very many people use
indoor track.

7/20/2016 2:42 PM

117 spa 7/20/2016 2:40 PM

118 ceiling fans 2nd floor 7/20/2016 2:33 PM

119 coffee bar 7/20/2016 2:32 PM

120 do we need all the extra admin space? 7/20/2016 2:22 PM

121 upgraded lobby and no more ping pong tables or upgraded expanded child care areas... REALLY?! 7/20/2016 2:20 PM

122 admin space is excessive. 7/20/2016 2:16 PM

123 keep rball 7/20/2016 2:14 PM

124 yes, keep rball courts 7/20/2016 2:12 PM

125 game room, new front desk and lounge. cafe, new office for staff. 7/20/2016 2:07 PM

126 No 7/20/2016 1:57 PM

127 no 7/20/2016 1:48 PM

128 The locker room redesign needs to be examined closer and justified based on volumes of members served. The
current plan appears to halve the locker room space at a fairly high expense (over $1 million). The members using the
specialize low density locker rooms won't offset much of the utilization of the half sized main locker rooms.

7/20/2016 12:53 PM

129 As I've listed above...ditch the gymnasium. 7/20/2016 12:12 PM

130 Unnecessary visuals like bannars and murals. 7/20/2016 12:04 PM

131 Unnecessary visuals like bannars and murals. 7/20/2016 12:00 PM

132 new front desk, cafe & lounge, game room (it's bigger than yoga room!!!) expanded childcare. our childcare should not
be the responsibility of the town and taxpayers.

7/20/2016 10:51 AM

133 1. private offices for staff and trainers (except ACC director); in corporate world, these people are in cubicles. NO
PRIVATE TRAINER ROOMS! 2. case, lounge and game room 3. large daycare room- free daycare not responsibility
of town and taxpayers. 4. family locker room

7/20/2016 10:34 AM

134 no 7/20/2016 10:09 AM

135 yes 7/20/2016 10:05 AM

136 Fancy lounge and reduce size of lobby 7/20/2016 9:29 AM

137 Most of it. No major changes are needed, just maintenance. 7/20/2016 8:46 AM

138 The cafe or lounge areas are not necessary or practical, especially with such limited space. The indoor area for
lifeguards for reasons already stated.

7/20/2016 12:16 AM

139 None 7/19/2016 8:42 PM

140 I'd rather have these funds refunded to the tax payers than spent on renovation. 7/19/2016 8:25 PM

141 yoga room 7/19/2016 8:24 PM

37 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



142 The multi purpose room takes up to much area, reduce and keep sauna and steam room 7/19/2016 6:48 PM

143 A lot of it. Don't need expanded fitness area on second floor taking away the charm of the current structure.
Extravagant locker room/changing facilities. Put in one family changing room in each locker room and take away some
lockers. Don't overkill. Sound system in gym/track Expanded kitchen and "cafe" areas.

7/19/2016 4:08 PM

144 I don't understand the grossly extravagant expansion of classroom and admin space. I get that it's needed, but the
current proposal seems to have gone a little overboard, especially considering have the racquetball courts at AAC are
the main reasons I chose Addison over some other parts of Dallas when I moved earlier this year.

7/19/2016 2:52 PM

145 mayor 7/19/2016 1:09 PM

146 no 7/19/2016 1:06 PM

147 steam room 7/19/2016 1:04 PM

148 new spin bikes 7/19/2016 12:58 PM

149 no 7/19/2016 12:57 PM

150 carpet areas?? shoud be replaced, please add to the who cares, large hall? 7/19/2016 12:52 PM

151 no 7/19/2016 12:43 PM

152 Family changing rooms 7/19/2016 12:29 PM

153 most of it is unnecessary 7/19/2016 12:22 PM

154 Frankly, I do not see much need for any of these changes. 7/19/2016 11:03 AM

155 Everything but new A/C 7/19/2016 10:45 AM

156 No 7/19/2016 10:30 AM

157 The entire plan 7/19/2016 6:24 AM

158 Plan should try to work with the existing space instead of moving everything around at great expense. 7/18/2016 11:55 PM

159 I wish we could keep the steam room. 7/18/2016 11:00 PM

160 The shade thing by the pool. Seems silly to go to an outside pool then hunt for shade. It would have to be substantial
due to wind. Pool used only 4 months of yr. Waste of money. Save MONEY on that entrance (too fancy and
EXPENSIVE). It is a bit much.

7/18/2016 9:34 PM

161 I would like to see at least one racket ball court remain. 7/18/2016 8:42 PM

162 No 7/18/2016 7:22 PM

163 no 7/18/2016 5:27 PM

164 no 7/18/2016 5:25 PM

165 locker rooms are fine 7/18/2016 5:23 PM

166 game room 7/18/2016 5:20 PM

167 game room child watch 7/18/2016 5:19 PM

168 Yes the ones I listed above 7/18/2016 4:19 PM

169 Multipurpose room(s) no one uses them now so why would you expect them to be used if you multiply their numbers? 7/18/2016 3:36 PM

170 Fewer family changing rooms---3 or 4. 7/18/2016 3:22 PM

171 None 7/18/2016 3:18 PM

172 new indoor spa 7/18/2016 3:17 PM

173 closing gym long term 7/18/2016 3:13 PM

174 a full gym shut down 7/18/2016 3:10 PM

175 no 7/18/2016 3:05 PM

176 multi rooms 7/18/2016 2:53 PM

177 steam room, sauna 7/18/2016 2:50 PM

178 the lobby isn't so important to me 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

38 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



179 no 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

180 why an expensive lobby? 7/18/2016 2:33 PM

181 AC 7/18/2016 2:15 PM

182 New lockers are not necessary and neither is a new lobby. I don't go to socialize, I go to workout. 7/18/2016 2:13 PM

183 No 7/18/2016 2:08 PM

184 no 7/18/2016 2:04 PM

185 Lobby and indoor spa 7/18/2016 1:44 PM

186 lobby 2.7 million 7/18/2016 1:42 PM

187 The café. And is there really a need for TWO very large classrooms? What type of programs are to be held in these
classrooms? They're both larger than the space allotted to yoga, the downstairs fitness area, the child watch area.
How often are they anticipated to be in use verses the amount of space being dedicated to them?

7/18/2016 1:41 PM

188 No. 7/18/2016 1:36 PM

189 everyting but A/C upgrade....its gym, not a country club 7/18/2016 1:28 PM

190 Although I do not play racquetball, it does appear to me that the 2 remaining courts are used. 7/18/2016 1:25 PM

191 - 0 - 7/18/2016 1:20 PM

192 all except number one 7/18/2016 1:17 PM

193 cafe- make a rball court instead 7/18/2016 1:14 PM

194 no 7/18/2016 1:01 PM

195 yes, lobby redo and locker rooms. 7/18/2016 12:55 PM

196 Everything but A/C 7/18/2016 12:51 PM

197 none 7/18/2016 12:48 PM

198 there seems to be a lot of wasted space for open look and lobby is too big. 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

199 there seems to be a lot of wasted space for open look and lobby is too big. 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

200 lobby re-do 7/18/2016 12:34 PM

201 all but HVAC 7/18/2016 12:22 PM

202 Lobby, Also outside area is only used 3 mouths a year 7/18/2016 12:16 PM

203 Steam room and racquetball courts should remain. Also the building redesign should be scaled down and we don't
need a child care center.

7/16/2016 6:38 PM

204 No 7/16/2016 11:04 AM

205 All looks good 7/16/2016 10:07 AM

206 Not reall 7/16/2016 9:46 AM

207 I think it looks good. 7/16/2016 8:49 AM

208 The sauna and steam rooms--too expensive to maintain. Racquetball courts used by too few people to justify keeping
them to the exclusion of more flexible, useable square footage. We can't be all things to all people.

7/15/2016 9:27 PM

209 Yes, the large Family Locker room should be right-sized to a couple of stand alone "Family" restrooms. Also, if space
is an issue, the Master Plan shows 2 large classrooms in addition to expanded yoga and fitness rooms; these spaces
could be multipurpose and combined.

7/15/2016 6:28 PM

210 Lobby/core upgrades and multi-use room 7/15/2016 4:43 PM

211 Have you considered eliminating the indoor pool to allow for more space for locker rooms, spa, etc? 7/15/2016 4:37 PM

212 I think one racquetball court needs to stay. I think it is busy enough to keep at least one. Cafe - I like the idea of it, not
sure if it will it be used enough

7/15/2016 4:35 PM

213 I don't feel as if any capital items should be undertaken at this time.. For reason see #13 below. 7/14/2016 6:19 PM

214 Lots. And how many people use this facility??? The exercise equip. is never with a waiting line! #11 doesn't work-"NO,
NO" to both questions

7/14/2016 5:00 PM

39 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



215 Not really. 7/13/2016 5:21 PM

216 Walking track area does not need to be redone. 7/13/2016 4:24 PM

217 way to much space is devoted to family changing rooms.. It's like the raquet ball courts... I don't see how the number
of people that need this out weighs what the plans show we are giving up.. in men / women space & sauna/ steam
rooms..

7/13/2016 4:20 PM

218 No, I'm all for it, unless it raises the cost for me. 7/13/2016 3:20 PM

219 Steam rooms, saunas and racquetball courts. 7/13/2016 12:40 PM

220 lobby is not an essential part of the club 7/13/2016 12:13 PM

221 Area to keep a racquetball court 7/13/2016 11:59 AM

222 Nix sauna, steam rooms--too costly to maintain Is there medical documentation to support healthy use of steam room.
I think steam/sauna rooms put the club at great risk-

7/13/2016 11:48 AM

223 Anything that reduces security from severe-weather and violent-person perspectives. 7/13/2016 11:24 AM

224 Possibly eliminate the cafe, unless it will be a sure money-earner for the AAC. 7/13/2016 11:13 AM

225 Locker Room changes 7/13/2016 10:08 AM

226 New indoor spa 7/13/2016 9:54 AM

40 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



Q11 Would you support any of the following
in order to allow the Town to remodel the

existing Athletic Club building?
Answered: 394 Skipped: 5

18.11%
65

26.46%
95

30.64%
110

20.89%
75

3.90%
14

 
359

50.40%
188

29.22%
109

10.19%
38

6.17%
23

4.02%
15

 
373

Definitely No Probably No Probably Yes Definitely Yes

Don't Know Unsure

Increase in
membership fees

Increase in
property tax...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 Definitely No Probably No Probably Yes Definitely Yes Don't Know Unsure Total

Increase in membership fees

Increase in property tax rate

41 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



21.16% 62

44.71% 131

34.13% 100

Q12 If you are unsure or would vote No,
which ONE of the following is the major

reason for your response?
Answered: 293 Skipped: 106

Total 293

# Other (please specify) Date

1 I do not want to have to pay a large amount of money per a membership 7/25/2016 9:21 AM

2 It should come from current budget. 7/23/2016 6:12 PM

3 I believe that facility could be updated in a more cost effective way. More of a "cosmetic refresher" vs. plastic surgery
approach. (So to speak:-)

7/23/2016 4:54 PM

4 The city can't afford the luxury of remodeling the club at this time. There are other city priorities that are more important
than this remodel.

7/23/2016 11:27 AM

5 Our property taxes in Addison have steadily increased. I do not want to pay additional money for taxes. If new member
rates could go up, while grandfathering in the existing members, I would not be opposed to that.

7/23/2016 11:10 AM

6 elimination of all racquetball courts 7/23/2016 10:27 AM

7 I don't like the idea of increasing membership fees as that will open the door to contact increases just like with
property taxes -- another thing that will constantly go up

7/22/2016 9:36 PM

8 Some remodeling is needed but not that entire plan. Also the work can be carried out in phases such that the cost
burden and lifestyle disruptions are minimized.

7/22/2016 8:04 PM

9 The addison athletic club is perfect. They can up grade areas and replace hvac system and locker rooms. And refresh
the rest of the areas without spend so much money.

7/22/2016 5:45 PM

10 I do not think such an extensive remodel is necessary 7/22/2016 4:01 PM

11 remodel focuses on areas not important to me 7/22/2016 4:01 PM

12 I would rather pay a higher fee for the athletic club. I don't support my taxes going up. I think seniors should still
remain a $10 joining fee.

7/22/2016 3:57 PM

13 I think the AAC needs improvement but if the membership fee is going up and taxes then NO, leave the gym along. 7/22/2016 12:24 PM

I need
additional...

I do not think
there is a n...

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Answer Choices Responses

I need additional information

I do not think there is a need for a remodel to the current Athletic Club building

Other (please specify)

42 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



14 I would recommed a increase in membership fee over taxes so those who use it are paying for it.. If you don't use it,
why do you need to fund it.

7/22/2016 11:19 AM

15 Do not want a tax increase 7/22/2016 9:51 AM

16 i think there is a need to upgrade but perhaps to not that extent. 7/22/2016 9:45 AM

17 Minor upgrades 7/22/2016 9:36 AM

18 Some improvments are needed but these are extreme 7/22/2016 9:30 AM

19 simply updating the HVAC,lshower rooms and excerise equipment would be sufficient for me 7/22/2016 9:18 AM

20 I need additional information. I want to be able to have better visuals and understanding of how much space each area
will be getting before I can say yet to paying more for my membership or paying more in taxes. Maybe you all can
provide something like a virtual tour of the proposed facility.

7/22/2016 9:04 AM

21 I only believe the locker rooms need to be redone really. 7/22/2016 8:48 AM

22 Free use was the original intent 7/22/2016 8:43 AM

23 Depends by how much $ you're talking about! 7/22/2016 8:24 AM

24 Question unclear. 7/22/2016 7:55 AM

25 Addison is on a spending spree. Why? I find it totally irresponsible. 7/22/2016 7:46 AM

26 I like the AAC's current offerings and fee structure and would much rather have a temporary bond solution rather than
a permanent increase in taxes.

7/22/2016 7:44 AM

27 I think we could get by with less of a remodel. 7/21/2016 10:32 PM

28 taxes are pretty high in Addison already. 7/21/2016 8:01 PM

29 Have heard that council members want to open the club to the public. I oppose this and hope it stays a facility for
Addsion residents only

7/21/2016 6:53 PM

30 n/a 7/21/2016 4:20 PM

31 more kids sports activities 7/21/2016 4:17 PM

32 only support maintenance upgrades. 7/21/2016 3:31 PM

33 town is already 20 million in debt. where is the money coming from? 7/21/2016 2:16 PM

34 increase in my cost fees or taxes. 7/21/2016 2:06 PM

35 I haven't thought about it enough. 7/21/2016 2:01 PM

36 It is already more than adequate. 7/21/2016 1:58 PM

37 I don't think a major change needs to be made to the AAc. I do believe we could upgrade the bath/shower area
especially the showers. Right now, you have to get in the shower, turn it on and jump over and wait for the water to
get warm. need more space

7/21/2016 1:47 PM

38 I would rather pay a monthly fee 7/21/2016 1:45 PM

39 Raise funds through a bond election-raising the fee for members would not provide enough funds- we need large
sums of money that bonds would provide.

7/21/2016 1:40 PM

40 I'd accept "some" increase in our memberships fees. But not like some "public" companies charge 50-60 a month! 7/21/2016 1:34 PM

41 no reason to increase tax, increase membership fee to Addison residents only. 7/21/2016 12:53 PM

42 not everyone uses it, and a tax increase would not be fair to those who do. Perhaps too many changes at once are
too expensive.

7/21/2016 9:48 AM

43 There is need, but seems not necessary to do so much. 7/21/2016 9:05 AM

44 The facility is a huge amenity to the town. However, I think the people who use it (membership fees) should provide
the bulk of the support. I'd consider a modest increase in taxes, but definitely support higher usage fees -- there's so
much room for those to defray some of the costs, especially ongoing maintenance costs

7/21/2016 8:38 AM

45 Property taxes are to high 7/20/2016 3:44 PM

46 Property taxes already increase year over year. 7/20/2016 3:26 PM

43 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



47 I think there is a need for a remodel. I just don't think that the plan as proposed is the best use of space for that kind of
expense.

7/20/2016 2:53 PM

48 make improvements only that are necessary. 7/20/2016 2:51 PM

49 if not using facility would still pay for it. 7/20/2016 2:45 PM

50 this club really is great for our purposes. We don't really see a new to remodel. But would be willing to pay a higher
membership fee if it does get remodeled.

7/20/2016 2:36 PM

51 increase property tax rate excludes the addison renters from carrying part of the expense. places more on the long
term property owners.

7/20/2016 2:32 PM

52 biggest downside is the filth and mildew in the mens showers! totally unsafe and unsanitary! 7/20/2016 2:27 PM

53 the suggested renovation is excessive 7/20/2016 2:20 PM

54 i rent 7/20/2016 2:16 PM

55 rball is my only interest 7/20/2016 2:14 PM

56 Tax rates are high enough in Addison and Texas. 7/20/2016 1:48 PM

57 Quit buying ugly artwork for entrances and within Addison...so unnessary. Use money wisely. Also with all of the
aprtments you want to build, why not increase their taxes to pay for this since they will add people to the athletic club,
making it crowded.

7/20/2016 12:12 PM

58 need to focus on maintenance issues and exercise space. repurposing under utilized space. 7/20/2016 10:34 AM

59 percent of increase could make me reconsider, but at 8 per yr I could double it.. haha 7/20/2016 10:09 AM

60 $10 per year is way too low for the club. The fiscal plan for the town should aid in this, but doing so but less frivolous
spending on other city items, not necessarily and increase in taxes.

7/20/2016 12:16 AM

61 I'd rather have these funds refunded to the tax payers than spent on renovation. 7/19/2016 8:25 PM

62 A remodel might be nice, but at what cost (specifically to the members and community, not necessarily a "total budget"
figure), and to the detriment of what sports/activities?

7/19/2016 2:52 PM

63 what's selected needs to be more than one option 7/19/2016 1:09 PM

64 racquetball and spa and sauna are more busier than some of our multipurpose areas. How do you eliminate them?! 7/19/2016 12:52 PM

65 Since I use only the water activities, I cannot reply 7/19/2016 10:30 AM

66 costs should be borne by the users 7/19/2016 9:39 AM

67 The remodel is over the top. 7/18/2016 11:55 PM

68 If Addison Council believes they made sound money decisions for the future of Addison, there should be no need to
raise taxes or fees. Addison should have plenty to pay for this project.

7/18/2016 11:00 PM

69 Concerned about recent relavation that the utility project on Belt Line will cost considerably more than originally
approved.

7/18/2016 9:50 PM

70 Need street improve more 7/18/2016 6:37 PM

71 taxes are too high. a membership fee, maybe $5-$10 a month is an idea. 7/18/2016 5:27 PM

72 raising taxes is a NO 7/18/2016 5:25 PM

73 taxes are too high already. A user fee would make more sense. 7/18/2016 3:18 PM

74 i'm all for upgrades, but no complete shut down. 7/18/2016 3:10 PM

75 do not want to pay more taxes 7/18/2016 2:59 PM

76 I do not see the need for a big remodel 7/18/2016 2:50 PM

77 don't want to pay more money 7/18/2016 2:15 PM

78 Property taxes already too high 7/18/2016 2:08 PM

79 I think the main upgrades needed are indoor pool area and locker rooms. The other expenses might not be that critical 7/18/2016 1:58 PM

80 replacing the HVAC ONLY 7/18/2016 1:55 PM

81 I would only do the HVAC and lobby/core building 7/18/2016 1:52 PM

44 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



82 I am spoiled by the tax only model we use now. I think it encourages use of the Club. 7/18/2016 1:25 PM

83 I'm currently renting 7/18/2016 1:01 PM

84 stop wasting my money 7/18/2016 12:51 PM

85 scale down remodeling 7/18/2016 12:41 PM

86 two things I use a lot are being eliminated 7/18/2016 12:34 PM

87 Taxes are already too high 7/18/2016 12:16 PM

88 Spend 3 Mil 7/18/2016 12:12 PM

89 Said yes, but depends on final figures 7/18/2016 12:08 PM

90 remodel is too high in cost 7/18/2016 8:06 AM

91 Yes we need an upgrade to the gym but this goes to far. 7/16/2016 6:38 PM

92 Would like to know the proposed increases 7/16/2016 10:07 AM

93 Vote No on what? This question is not clear. I think a short term bond to add to increased membership fees would be
best.l

7/15/2016 9:27 PM

94 I'm concerned that raising the cost would price some residents out. Also, I think "tiered" usage of certain amenities is a
terrible idea. It raises one of two complaints--"Why do people with more money get access to more resources?" or
alternatively, "If I have to pay more for resources I use, then shouldn't others have to pay for resources they use that I
don't use?" Bad precedent to set.

7/15/2016 6:28 PM

95 elimination of racquetball courts 7/15/2016 4:43 PM

96 I would want to be sure there were more children's programming available before I could support a tax hike, when my
son turns 8, I will be very limited on how I am able to access the club, other than summer months

7/13/2016 5:32 PM

97 I do not think the club needs that large of a redo.. few cities have this type of facility already.. I moved to Addison
strictly due to the Club... Its a huge plus they way it is.. & this is a huge amount of money to ask for & we already
have the Belt-line Rd completion to pay for...

7/13/2016 4:20 PM

98 I think we are all concerned about our property tax. 7/13/2016 3:20 PM

99 Increase in property tax puts burden on residents who do not use AAC and can inhibit residential growth in the city. 7/13/2016 11:13 AM

100 I own a home. Apartment users would not have to pay tax 7/13/2016 9:54 AM

45 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



Q13 Please give us any additional
comments on the Addison Athletic Club

Master Plan.
Answered: 200 Skipped: 199

# Responses Date

1 I believe that $10.00 a year is way to low. I will not be a member if you increase the membership proses to the cost of
other gym costs.

7/25/2016 9:24 AM

2 Try to trim the 6.5 million budget 7/25/2016 9:18 AM

3 No changes needed 7/25/2016 9:13 AM

4 I see no reason for changes it is in good shape. Just needs a few cosmetic changes. 7/25/2016 9:10 AM

5 Look forward to seeing what the next steps are 7/24/2016 8:20 PM

6 n/a 7/23/2016 10:16 PM

7 Do not allow non Addison residents to become members. 7/23/2016 6:12 PM

8 I will strongly oppose such an extravagant plan given all the financial challenges the Town is facing now. Only
maintenance issues and exercise studio space is urgent need. Why not take away mens basketball court or at least
reduce by 50% for studio space? I learned at my meeting there is also admin office space under the staircase to
equipment annex that is never used... more wasted existing space! When I attended the recent meeting I saw another
new expensive piece of equipment purchased for the men and added into one of the old racquetball courts. All the
while, the exercise and yoga mats, primarily used by women, are old, smelly, and often torn/ripped. The light fixtures in
the upstairs room are filthy and full of dust.

7/23/2016 5:25 PM

9 This is a very costly plan and it is not necessary. I would be strongly opposed if there is going to be fees assessed or
added taxes.

7/23/2016 2:37 PM

10 I suggest we do the necessary improvements at this time and put the remodeling plan on hold until the city can afford
it better.

7/23/2016 11:27 AM

11 The indoor pool DEFINITELY needs an update (or thorough cleaning). The grout is disgusting. 7/23/2016 11:10 AM

12 why eliminate all racquetball courts? 7/23/2016 10:27 AM

13 Will the club be closed during this remodel? If so that is unacceptable . 7/22/2016 10:11 PM

14 Thank you for asking for public input. 7/22/2016 10:07 PM

15 If so much money goes into remodeling I think there should be a cafe in the lounge area that serves nice beverages
that can be purchased. I also think the multipurpose meeting space should be available for members to rent out and
allow non-members to attend meeting in the rented space. Both these things can bring in good revenues and off set
costs.

7/22/2016 9:36 PM

16 Please have the council hold extensive deliberations prior to implementing the entire project. 7/22/2016 8:04 PM

17 Racquetball is one of the greatest sports in America. I think it would be a crime to deny future generations the
opportunity to play racquetball. Its super fun to play and provides one of the best aerobic workouts. The only reason
racquetball has declined in United States is because a lot of gyms that had racquetball courts went out of business. I
live in Frisco, TX and the Frisco athletic has 5 + courts. They offer racquetball classes and tournaments. The addison
club can offer the same. The addison athletic club has the perfect balance of amenities for it's members. Please keep
it that way!

7/22/2016 5:45 PM

18 need improvements to help attract new residents 7/22/2016 5:41 PM

19 It should be well designed and nice but let's avoid expensive lobbies and other space 7/22/2016 5:26 PM

20 Not needed unless the residents want it not the council members. I don't want to pay membership fees or have my
property tax increased for a project that is not needed. Thank you

7/22/2016 4:22 PM

46 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



21 Really, this is a lot of money to accomplish very little. The main thing everyone wants is additional class/programming
such as more Yoga and other classes. Addison does not have the critical mass to support additional programming.
Have we even thought of buying out the Crunch gym on Beltline and expanding the facility--excellent facility and it is
not doing very well financially. The present AAC could be made into a new city hall/finance building and the current
city hall and finance buildings could be sold for the commercial land value.

7/22/2016 4:05 PM

22 more focus on indoor/outdoor pool areas 7/22/2016 4:01 PM

23 IF present facility is serving our residents well, then there is no need to add improvements that are not needed...Add
improvements only to maintain facility in good condition.

7/22/2016 3:35 PM

24 I love it as is! It is such a great community ammenity. And now is not the time to spend tons of money on the club.
Just keep it in good repair and replace as needed.

7/22/2016 2:54 PM

25 Hours of operation & classroom schedules also need to be revisited as they are dated & do not reflect a
younger/family friendlier Addison who live busy lives, work 50-60 hours, plus tend to families and would like to work
out or take a class at hours that accommodate that.

7/22/2016 2:26 PM

26 How would the club function while this is going on 7/22/2016 2:01 PM

27 Whould not want exercise equip room closed at all for any amount of time use it regularly. 7/22/2016 1:51 PM

28 I have attended two of the survey feedback sessions and it seems like people really want to keep at least one
racquetball court. As you know I and others also feel strongly about more activities for kids especially when they are
over 7 and age out of child care (which perhaps we can change this policy). I joked about having a racquetball court
with a sliding wall hiding a climbing wall behind it, or use it as a movie room but I just remembered a very cool
interactive gym that utilized large blank walls like a racquetball court. This would be incredible amenity that would set
our center apart as there are not many of these in the country. It would also provide our kids (and adults too) with a
sports activity in a confined space that they would love. It is an interactive screen projected onto a wall much like a
video game but the focus is sports skills like throwing knocking over “bottles”, kicking goals, etc.
https://www.greatplay.com/about/interactive-gym https://www.greatplay.com/highlandsranch/about/mission I am not
sure if this would be a technology we could get or not since they say it is patented (maybe they have a version
available for community centers or someone else has a knock off) but I think it is worth looking into if we want to keep
a racquetball court and utilize the space as much as possible. Even if the technology of the interactive sports wall is
not available to purchase, perhaps even programming could be available for our younger residents on certain days
they could project on the racquetball wall a Wii dance game or some other video game that the athletic center already
has. Just a thought. (Though I would love to find a way to get a climbing wall in the AAC too ) Much of the way that
the AAC is currently used is due to the current policies and programming which could be changed to facilitate the use
of space by more people.

7/22/2016 1:32 PM

29 I am not a fan - especially with that price tag. 7/22/2016 1:26 PM

30 The club is already a world class facility and the low cost of it is a major draw for future home buyers and renter's. The
construction period would also make large portions of the facility unavailable and unsightly for regular users like me.
This plan, in my opinion, is major overkill. Please do not do this, except for the hvac upgrade.

7/22/2016 11:58 AM

31 I like the idea of upgrading 7/22/2016 10:54 AM

32 Addison renters should not have a vote as. They will not be footing the bill- only the taxpayers( home owners) 7/22/2016 10:22 AM

33 New spin bikes 7/22/2016 10:02 AM

34 none 7/22/2016 9:42 AM

35 none 7/22/2016 9:40 AM

36 stop wasting are money 7/22/2016 9:39 AM

37 Bad idea for residents 7/22/2016 9:38 AM

38 Do not remove the steam room/sauna 7/22/2016 9:36 AM

39 No due increases no tax increase 7/22/2016 9:30 AM

40 Fix what's broke (if the HVAC needs to be replaced then do it.) But don't 'fix' a very adequate fitness center. People
moving to and buying homes in Addison are already more than impressed with the facilities we currently have. I
strongly object to any spending money on this overall proposed project.

7/22/2016 9:28 AM

41 I think the club footprint is pretty great as it is. The HVAC needed work or replacement, showers need remodeling and
new exercise equipment would be great.

7/22/2016 9:18 AM

42 Could use racquetball space for family things too such as an interactive video game wall, a climbing wall, blow up
bounce house on certain days, etc

7/22/2016 9:01 AM

47 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



43 Not needed at this time when you have roads in very poor condition (midway) for one 7/22/2016 8:58 AM

44 I suggest we pay for this in multiple ways. 1) Increase in taxes. 2) In the initial year charge users $10 per year and
assess the dues structure annually. 3) Figure out additional revenue streams such as more revenue via more visitors,
selling nutritional drinks, Addison logo work out towels, etc.

7/22/2016 8:52 AM

45 Based on the design and proposed changes, the total cost is woefully under budgeted - expect the overall cost to
exceed $10,000,000. To fund the cost, you might consider a usage based fee system (pay $x per visit) or a tiered
membership plan (different cost per year based on # times use club), thus members deriving the most benefit from the
cost (based on usage), pay for the cost of redesign/upgrade.

7/22/2016 8:48 AM

46 If we increase in property tax rate to support how much of an increase are we looking at? 7/22/2016 7:50 AM

47 If Addison does not have the money I don't want any of the changes. Our property taxes have gone up enough
already. Enough is enough.

7/22/2016 7:46 AM

48 I agree wholeheartedly that the sauna and steam room need to go. I also think we could do without hot tub based on
informal usage observations. Are there any inefficiencies with current staffing that could be cut? For example, it
seems like we have life guard overload and many times in the evening front desk staff are not busy. It seems one
person might be enough? Just thoughts based on my limited knowledge and observations.

7/22/2016 7:44 AM

49 Your survey has been constructed with bias. It is not possible to select "definitely no" to both increase membership
fees AND increase in property tax. Your collected data for this question is therefore inaccurate and the survey should
be reissued to all participants for fairness. If one of the goals of the renovation is to make the facility profitable can the
council outline how homeowners as stakeholders will benefit financially from their investment via property taxes? I
witnessed a very similar facility undertake a very similar renovation. Within six months the day spa, cafe and massage
parlour were shut down and mothballed due to lack of demand... Be careful what you wish for... You may end up
heating/cooling empty rooms for years to come.

7/21/2016 11:23 PM

50 I use the facility 4-5 times a week. The sauna, steam room and racquetball courts are always busy when I go. I look
forward to a nice sauna at the end of a hard workout. I don't care if Grapevine or the entire country don't have these
facilities in their new buildings...they are important to us. I think we need to look and see what it is we want our facility
to be. Do we want a spa (Equinox) feel with cafes, lounge areas, massage rooms...or do we want an athletic center?
Because if the later is not the case, there needs to be a separate town meeting about the overall use of the building. I
am a homeowner and therefore pay taxes to fund the athletic center. One of the key perks about living in Addison is
not having to pay a separate membership fee to use the athletic club. Again, I could care less if other cities aren't
using this model. I do not want our athletic club to turn into some business center. This is a place for the community to
come together. I understand that people want to upgrade the facility, and yes, some things need attention. But there is
absolutely NO reason for a complete overhaul. We can fix the things that need to be fixed, but please don't take away
the charm and uniqueness of our town by turning our athletic club into a corporate community center.

7/21/2016 11:22 PM

51 need the steam room 7/21/2016 8:51 PM

52 Racquetball needs to stay 7/21/2016 5:40 PM

53 Scrap and plan and save the money. 7/21/2016 5:39 PM

54 I think the club is great as is but can see the need to upgrades in the very near future, we shouldn't wait on this too
long. I love coming in every day to work out here, and I know these upgrades will make each time more desirable.

7/21/2016 4:30 PM

55 I think the town has really put a lot of thought into this. I love all the ideas that have been presented. Our facility is very
outdated and needs a face lift. The wood paneling is horrible now! making these changes will make living in Addison
more desirable for families and young adults.

7/21/2016 4:27 PM

56 I think people would be very upset if there are monthly dues. this would work. maybe 10 dollars a month. I feel if we
don't make upgrades our property values will go down. Farmers Branch has made many improvements. Have a great
community center! Also, we need to make ir more of a community center-or build a new community center. we need
more for activities, make more more family friendly/

7/21/2016 4:24 PM

57 please make sure any upgrade backed by proper research 7/21/2016 4:20 PM

58 great ideas 7/21/2016 4:16 PM

59 very disappointed the town would put forth a plan that is not cost efficient and utilize existing (or majorty) floor plan.
there is too much emphases on things that do not enhance workout experience. Such as: -family locker rooms -game
rooms -lounge and coffee bar -new and additional offices for staff and trainers (totally un-necessary) -large 2nd floor
bathrooms. Totally unnecessary when there is locker room on first floor! -50 new pieces of equipment when move
existing equipment sits idle throughout the day.

7/21/2016 3:31 PM

48 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



60 Very disappointed the town would come up with a plan that is not cost effective and does not utilize existing floor
space. Too much emphases on unnecessary and too expensive things. for instance: -Family locker room? are you
serious!? -game room; another no-no! -lounge? Stay home and lounge. EXERCISE at the club. sleep, eat and watch
TV at home! -cafe/coffee bar? WRONG!!!!! -trainers do not need an office. They're here to train-they can sit in their
cars and get on their phone or tablet. -there are plenty of restrooms (large enough) on the 2nd floor. Locker room on
1st floor. USE IT! -NO NEW MACHINES! most machines sit unused! When all of us moved to addison we were
impressed with AAC in that it is intimate, easy access, with a friendly staff! I LOVE THE STAFF! VERY SHORT
AMOUNT OF CHILDREN! since most of the members are 50 or older. How many kids are you talking about? 20?
please-no free baby sitting. let them go to a rec center for that. not here! why is and who are the ones who want all this
nonsense? do they even live here? "DON'T FIX IT IF IT AIN'T BROKE"

7/21/2016 3:25 PM

61 I like the AAC the way it is. Cost of necessary maintenance-ok. We have under used space. This plan is way over the
top, with little to no regard of practicality or costs. We could re-purpose some of the existing space. Projects should
focus on ADULTS, especially 50 and up. The largest demographics in the club.

7/21/2016 3:08 PM

62 too expensive 7/21/2016 3:02 PM

63 I have been an avid member since we moved here 12 yrs ago. One of the biggest issues is many of the younger
people would like to have free weights. This could be done by using the life-guard room. Instead of a one time fee of
10 dollars, they should start charging a yearly fee. This would help to offset cost of the facility and allow for regular
upgrades to equipment. Finally, instead of doing everything all at once maybe spread it out over the course of the next
3 yrs.

7/21/2016 3:01 PM

64 I do not want to see the club shut down while changes are being made. 7/21/2016 2:58 PM

65 it's fine the way it is, with exception of more shade for outdoor pool so the children and their adult sponsors won't
come to inside pool and play.

7/21/2016 2:47 PM

66 As a young adult, I look forward to the possibility of this remodel! we plan on being in Addison for awhile and this has
so much more potential for our own personal uses and our children.

7/21/2016 2:46 PM

67 how will we retain the current employees/staff at the club when it is shut down for 9 months? key consideration. 7/21/2016 2:16 PM

68 lower the budget, do a smaller remodel and don't raise residents costs. 7/21/2016 2:06 PM

69 the club is good but needs a refresh. I would start smaller-3 million and prioritize. 7/21/2016 2:03 PM

70 I do not support closure during renovating. Some of this plan is excessive-not necessary. The present facility is the
best feature Addison offers.

7/21/2016 1:58 PM

71 need at least one more ping pong table 7/21/2016 1:53 PM

72 we don't need to beautify and update as much as being proposed. The AAc is good the way it is- the main this is keep
up with maintaing and updating equipment

7/21/2016 1:40 PM

73 one of the "perks" if living in Addison is "free" access to the AAC is extremely unique. Being somewhat limited 7/21/2016 1:34 PM

74 please do something!! this will just enhance Addison and increase our property values. Right now, it's FREE- we could
pay a bit more in taxes and it would still be chaper than other fitness centers. Love that this will have a community
center feel, shared use by young and old. Please limit use to only Addison Residents and business owners (not
employees)

7/21/2016 1:12 PM

75 consider adding space and building over rook on 2nd floor on either side of the pool 7/21/2016 12:53 PM

76 needs to be updates so I'm glad to see the effort. We need to compete with other cities in north Dallas (Plano, Frisco
etc..) to keep Addison a desirable city to live in.

7/21/2016 12:48 PM

77 the master plan seems to be adding/remodeling aspects of the rec center that don't need to be upgraded. 7/21/2016 12:41 PM

78 don't need. ok as is 7/21/2016 12:21 PM

79 I love the club! I was surprised when I heard that improvements were being considered because I think it is pretty cool
as it is... The proposed changes look really great and well thought out. Lets do it!

7/21/2016 12:19 PM

80 I don't understand why perfectly good equipment is being replaced. I think this plan may be too ambitious and should
be scaled down.

7/21/2016 9:48 AM

81 New plan looks wonderful! can't wait for the new Athletic Club 7/21/2016 9:41 AM

82 This is a terrible plan and the proponents of it should be held accountable. Tax payers in the town did not ask, nor
want this. Back out of this unnecessary and politically charged disaster now.

7/21/2016 9:14 AM

49 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



83 This facility is a huge asset to the community, even for people who don't use it, because it increases the amenities of
Addison hugely. We absolutely must invest in its infrastructure, e.g. HVAC etc, regularly, as well as periodic updates
such as those suggested by the plan

7/21/2016 8:38 AM

84 It seems to me you could create extra space above the existing locker rooms by building up. They are currently 1
story. By adding another story you would gave extra space for classrooms or other multipurpose areas. You could
then keep at least 1 racket ball court for those who like to play. Also, I hope there are plans to add fitness classes for
those over 50 who work all day.

7/20/2016 11:12 PM

85 Where is the money coming from? Mayor committed 6.5 million to townhome developer with no idea where the $$ is
coming from. Beltline project is overspent--Taxes higher. Town needs to limit repairs/expansions to only absolutely
necessary things

7/20/2016 11:10 PM

86 At the forum, the designer stated that few other Athletic Clubs have racquetball courts. Are we to lower our standards
to their level? I thought Addison was better than that.

7/20/2016 10:53 PM

87 Proposed removal of the racquetball courts will cause extreme inconvenience to many of the AAC patrons. We use it
multiple times a week. There are not many racquetball courts available to us. One of the primary reasons we visit the
club is to play racquetball. We play racquetball more than we use any other facilities at the club. Loss of the
racquetball courts may cause many patrons to be turned away from the club. Many people have access to a home or
apartment complex gym. Access to racquetball courts is limited due to the lack of availability of courts in the area.

7/20/2016 6:24 PM

88 . 7/20/2016 3:26 PM

89 • Kudos to the ACC MP Committee for identifying all the various update opportunities and showing how they might fit
into the existing footprint. This is a very important first step. What remains now is to sort, prioritize, consider
alternatives, and provide justification. That is the purpose of the survey now being conducted. • As a general
comment, the existing central layout provides a classic design. The lobby/core area features a spacious look and feel
with its high ceiling, skylights and overlooking balconies. This is a timeless design and does not need updating. The
proposed changes to the lobby/core are not a good idea. We would be better served by adopting the rule that the core
be preserved and that all changes be pushed out to the periphery. • Another ground rule that should be established
from the outset is that any changes to the existing facility must be planned and phased to keep the ACC in operation
throughout the construction period. Minimizing disruption should be a primary objective. • We must be skeptical of the
estimated cost of changes at $6.5 MM. Based on our experience over the last couple of years with city projects, we
should expect actual costs at 2X or say $10 – 15 MM. • Addison would be better served by minimizing the ACC update
expense at this time. It would be better to defer major ACC update expenditures until we can better evaluate the
impact of additional demand from the near-by Grove development. Several years from now we may decide that an
expansion of the footprint is the best way to meet our needs. • There are several ideas with high priority and
significant benefits that can be achieved at reasonable cost and meet the above guidelines. o Maintain the existing
HVAC to return to reliable operation. Replace pieces where necessary and repair the rest. Suggest retaining a well
qualified service firm with engineering and shop capability (like Frymire or equal) to evaluate and provide a firm cost for
the work. o Keep existing racquetball 1 and 2 in operation. They get considerable use. o Open up the old racquetball 3
and 4 areas by removing the wall and providing the necessary column support to create a large classroom, fitness,
meeting multi-use area. o Re-purpose the curved window area overlooking the outside pool in the west wing as an
additional multi use room. Close in the north bay of the outside pool area to provide a place for pool equipment
storage and possible use as a family change area. o Maintain the men’s locker room as is. It is frequently quite
crowded and consolidation next to the women’s locker room is not a good idea. With possible extra space in the
women’s locker area, consider adding a family change cube or two. o The spa on the east end of the inside pool, the
men’s sauna and men’s steam room get limited use. Of these the spa is most popular and used by both men and
women. The sauna also gets considerable use. But if they are deemed too expensive to maintain and operate, shut
them down. The sauna/steam room area could be converted into additional storage or possibly a couple of family
change cubes accessible from the inside pool deck. The spa could be decked over and converted into an elevated
glass surrounded arbor foundation-type seating and plant/sculpture area. o Another area that might be considered for
family change space is the existing men’s and women’s rest rooms in the far southwest wing of the outside pool. The
existing rest rooms appear quite large and cube space for family change with separate access should be available
there. • Ideas that are not cost effective and would disrupt operations or existing classic architecture features include
the following: o Closing in the central lobby area to create a straight-on entry desk, boutique lobby seating and coffee
bar areas, office space modifications, kitchen modifications, upstairs fitness and studio changes, library relocation, etc.
These changes destroy the central openness and subdivide the new space into a multitude of smaller boxes. Much
has been made of the need to update the architecture, look and feel. But there is no need to update a classic.
Destroying the classic layout would be a step backwards. The proposed changes will create too much disruption in
on-going operations to implement. They will be less efficient with regard to routing of the HVAC system. o Outside
pool shade/patio changes are difficult to justify. They receive only seasonal use. o Updating the upstairs track surface
overlooking the gym area is not needed or justified. Painting the walls with graffiti/bold graphics and resurfacing the
track in garish colors is not an upgrade. If wall painting is deemed appropriate, I would suggest updating pastel colors.
o A new elevator is not justified.

7/20/2016 3:07 PM

50 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



90 scaled back version would be sufficient. 7/20/2016 3:05 PM

91 i like it the way it is 7/20/2016 3:01 PM

92 who's idea was this anyways? 7/20/2016 3:00 PM

93 the athletic club is fine the way it is. maintain the HVAC/heating lighting, plumbing and paint and it is just fine 7/20/2016 2:57 PM

94 no renovation is needed. put the money to better use. 7/20/2016 2:50 PM

95 clarify classroom uses. 7/20/2016 2:45 PM

96 user pay system is best. 7/20/2016 2:38 PM

97 we do not need a palace 7/20/2016 2:33 PM

98 I don't see a benefit of a "coffee bar" a a heath club. don't want to see this place just be one more "social spot" in
addison, we already have plenty of those already. PLEASE no "starbucks" at the health club.

7/20/2016 2:32 PM

99 the steam and sauna in mens room are incubators for germs, mildew and fungus. 7/20/2016 2:27 PM

100 please include rball. I didn't know until another player notified me. We are not a vocal bunch, but there is a lot of
support to keep it.

7/20/2016 2:22 PM

101 please finish beautify beltline first. and do not foolishly remodel space like lobby area just for looks. 7/20/2016 2:20 PM

102 rate increase is ok but will have to be reasonable 7/20/2016 2:16 PM

103 keep rball courts 7/20/2016 2:14 PM

104 keep rball courts 7/20/2016 2:12 PM

105 the AACshould remain an adult athletic club.I oppose trying to turn it into "Rec Center". Children 15 years are not
permitted in work out areas. Against any improvements that focus on this demographic. I would only support making
maintenance improvements and converting either the bball court and or upstairs library into additional exercise room.

7/20/2016 2:07 PM

106 looks good, but timing and interruptions are not covered. 7/20/2016 1:48 PM

107 No monthly fees for members 7/20/2016 12:08 PM

108 Park across the street needs a family bathroom. Health club needs family bathroom with shower. Redesigned child
center with adjacent activity area for age 7 and up (until the age of able to use facilities). Treadmills with oen TV
capabilities instead of only 2 large ones. More individual fans for personal treadmill, bike use. More shade outside pool
and better placement of lifeguards chairs. Possible food sales at pool. Sports massage day/schedule appointment in
health club

7/20/2016 12:04 PM

109 Park across the street needs a family bathroom. Health club needs family bathroom with shower. Redesigned child
center with adjacent activity area for age 7 and up (until the age of able to use facilities). Treadmills with oen TV
capabilities instead of only 2 large ones. More individual fans for personal treadmill, bike use.

7/20/2016 12:00 PM

110 the AAC was designed to be a ADULT athletic club, NOT a rec center for kids! It should keep this focus. Children do
not need locker rooms as they are not allowed in equipment areas. The biggest demographic using the AAC are
active seniors 50 and up. one of the biggest ongoing problems is one one exercise class can happen at a time. I would
like to see at least 50 percent of basketball courts converted to exercise studios. don't want to see AAC become a LA
fitness or YMCA like facility.

7/20/2016 10:51 AM

111 oppose any plan to convert the existing ADULT focused AAC into a mega-rec center for small kids and teens. very
disappointed to be presented a plan that, based on the presentation, is the most expensive option for taxpayers.
Absolutely no attempt to utilize existing building layout, as originally designed. The primary AAC demographic
members are ADULTS. very few children live in Addison. Most families move to suburbs when kids become school
age. At our meeting, we were told by Randy that they had 20 kids out of 4,000 AAC members! I was speechless to
see a proposal to spend millions on such a tiny, tiny demographic.

7/20/2016 10:34 AM

112 love it! looks great! 7/20/2016 10:09 AM

113 The club needs some updating, but not $6.2 M worth. An expenditure of this amount is fiscally irresponsible and
unnecessary.

7/20/2016 9:42 AM

114 More programs for children. Would love sports club (like tennis club or swim club) for kids 16 and under to get together
on a regular basis

7/20/2016 9:37 AM

115 It sounds like a great plan and I support it! 7/20/2016 9:29 AM

51 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



116 Annual membership fees are the first step for expanding membership to non-Addison residents. The club should
remain for Addison residents only. By charging an annual fee, you make it much easier to later allow non-residents to
get an annual membership.

7/20/2016 8:46 AM

117 I was hoping there would be a more thorough survey, but hopefully, I can get my comments in this section. First,
though new machines were mentioned, there was no mention of free weights like S bar, plates, a Smith machine, or
dumbbells that go up to 100 pounds. Second, the cafe and bigger lounge areas are impractical and a waste of space.
This is an athletic club, not a family center or community center. Third, would segmenting the pool into an "adults only"
and "families" section be feasible? The upper portion seems to always have adults, singles mainly, and the lower
portion seems to naturally have the families. Just a thought. Fourth, it is my hope the new programmable spaces will
have ones designed for crossfit and athletic training with items for H.I.I.T., vertical leap drills, heavy ropes, etc, etc.
Fifth, will the track have better straight lanes for sprints? Sixth, a shower by the pool for people coming directly to the
pool who don't work out or from the volleyball court to wash off without going to locker room. Seventh, shade for the
seats on the tennis court which could be done by the same company who does the shade used from the pool. Eighth,
as discussed with others who work out there, the culture and demographics of Addison must be reflected in its athletic
club. While there are many seniors, there are also many singles who choose to live in Addison because Addison
draws them. They should be accommodated, because while almost every city has nearly everything geared towards
families with kids, Addison has no public middle or high schools. To make the AAC geared towards a transitory
demographic is senseless and is not good for the long haul. Families will and do move to other cities when their kids
grow up, but singles will continually be drawn to Addison for its many restaurants, nightlife, affordable housing, and
similar demographic. The AAC should not lose sight of this.

7/20/2016 12:16 AM

118 I'd rather have these funds refunded to the tax payers than spent on renovation. 7/19/2016 8:25 PM

119 I have enjoyed playing raquetball. As a new person to the area, I came here and met friends because of raquetball. I
would not be a member otherwise. Thank you.

7/19/2016 7:41 PM

120 I would support both an increase in membership fee and property tax rate for this great Perk of living in Addison 7/19/2016 4:46 PM

121 When you call in an architect and "think outside the box", you will get a re-architected space. That doesn't make it the
right thing for Addison. Keep the AAC the "AAC" not rec center. Take care of maintenance items don't build a new
structure. Reception desk could be moved with current configuration with very little cost. Could close current stair by
racket ball courts and put a multi-purpose or game room there. Eliminate the remaining racket ball courts and put a
spin area in one - may be small but current spin classes very lightly attended anyway. Don’t need so many closed off
room areas – ruining the feel of the club. Current machines are not "too close together" as architect stated. Would
support membership fee increase if it doesn't go crazy.

7/19/2016 4:08 PM

122 I saw and heard that there was a proposed remodel, and I just assumed up until this point that it would have included
racquetball courts. This is a major point of contention and I am going to become as active as I am able to become to
advocate for their inclusion as a part of any remodel. As mentioned earlier, I didn't see any word in the Master Plan
that discussed the new Spa. And, I'm not sure what the current maintenance costs of the HVAC are and understand
that significant cost savings could be generated over time with an updated system, but how is that intended to
"improve user experience"? What are the current costs, and how long would it take the new system breakeven?

7/19/2016 2:52 PM

123 new hours on saturday and sunday. open at 6 on saturday and 7 on sunday. clean under equipement. no tank tops for
men- hygenic purposes. visitors need to sign in at front desk.

7/19/2016 1:11 PM

124 club is currently not being cleaned well 7/19/2016 1:06 PM

125 keep out of our fine athletic club 7/19/2016 12:57 PM

126 6.5 million is very expensive. you should find better contractors. 7/19/2016 12:52 PM

127 Financial impact should be explained in more detail. 7/19/2016 12:47 PM

128 This club is a selling point. Nothing wrong with club now, just needs a new HVAC 7/19/2016 12:43 PM

129 Keep memberships for residents and Addison employees only 7/19/2016 12:29 PM

130 I purchased my house next to the club to play racquetball. PLEASE DO NOT REMOVE THE RACQUETBALL
COURTS.

7/19/2016 12:10 PM

131 Fix the roof and other leaks. 7/19/2016 11:03 AM

132 I like the club as is,but I know some things should updated 7/19/2016 10:30 AM

133 Where would the money come from, I have not seen anything in the budge for this $6, million expense and I would not
support a property tax.

7/19/2016 6:24 AM

134 The AAC is a good thing. Let's keep it that way with a more careful, more budget friendly update. 7/18/2016 11:55 PM

52 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



135 There is NO NEED to remodel as it is "up to date". Keep the STEAM ROOMS, A/C improvement makes sense but the
rest is too expensive. EVERYTHING IS FINE NOW, why spend MONEY for frivolous things? Very, very few in
Addison want to pay for these luxuries. Just maintain what you have now.

7/18/2016 9:34 PM

136 I think the athletic club is a huge perk for living in Addison. I'm proud to be a part of it! 7/18/2016 8:42 PM

137 I am very impressed with the plan. Very excited about it 7/18/2016 7:22 PM

138 Great facility, lots more families would also be great 7/18/2016 5:25 PM

139 access to purchase drinks, snacks (healthy ones not from vending machines) 7/18/2016 5:23 PM

140 new spin bikes 7/18/2016 5:20 PM

141 The free to residents athletic Center is a massive marketing coup for Addison and was one of the main reasons I
purchased my house in Addison and not a surrounding town. By threatening membership fees you will drive people
away from this perfectly serviceable facility and align the town closer to it's generic, uninspiring neighbourhoods. Yhe
ventilatuon state in the building needs an overhaul and the indoor pool needs refurbished. That's it!

7/18/2016 3:36 PM

142 In light of revelations about increased Belt Line Rd expense, I'm not for more debt. Wish we hadn't painted the
crosswalks and had spent that money on this project.

7/18/2016 3:22 PM

143 most citizens in addison are just average people. we don't need to look extravagant. We are not highland park, plano
etc.. most people would prefer to spend money on something that is needed. this update is not needed.

7/18/2016 3:17 PM

144 please include youth 10-14 activities and fitness classes. 7/18/2016 3:13 PM

145 I like the concept but it's pretty good already. Just needs a few tweaks. 7/18/2016 3:10 PM

146 I am fine with the way things are now other than maybe a little more room for the workout machines and weights 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

147 sauna and steam 7/18/2016 2:45 PM

148 place good heating and air, make athletic club safe and keep saunas & steam room as usable. 7/18/2016 2:33 PM

149 I think a remodel would be nice, but the main "attractions" to the club for me, personally, will be removed by the
current plans (sauna, steam room, and racquetball courts).

7/18/2016 2:29 PM

150 looks good, relatively exonomical 7/18/2016 2:15 PM

151 I wish they would open earlier on Sunday. 7/18/2016 2:13 PM

152 much needed 7/18/2016 2:12 PM

153 Club is nice now if you are increasing property tax...not interested at all 7/18/2016 2:08 PM

154 I would vote against anything that raises memberships fees or opens our club up to non-residents. 7/18/2016 1:52 PM

155 Thank you to everyone who has worked on this! It looks fabulous. : ) One last plug for a Stepmill machine--it is great
for getting heart rate up without impact...one of the few machines that doesn't bother my plantar fasciitis ; ) Thanks
again! Bravo!

7/18/2016 1:50 PM

156 I think the club is fine as it is. Better exercise machine maintenance is all that is needed. 7/18/2016 1:48 PM

157 I think the facility is great and only needs minor upgrades to the A/C and the equipment. 7/18/2016 1:41 PM

158 please fix the leaking roof 7/18/2016 1:40 PM

159 The Athletic Facility needs a digital membership program that can keep track of check ins and exercise programs. It
would be very useful for reminding people to use the facility and monitor their healthiness. There needs to be better
shower capabilities before you get into pool. There should be a way to get better basketballs in the gym by swapping
out your Addison membership card or mobile checkout

7/18/2016 1:26 PM

160 I am very thankful for the club I have use since 1997. The 2003 upgrade was in fact an improvement. I generally trust
that the Town will responsibly continue to improve the club.

7/18/2016 1:25 PM

161 - 0 - 7/18/2016 1:20 PM

162 update HVAC and regular maintenance and cleaning equipment and facility is all we need. 7/18/2016 1:10 PM

163 hire people who will keep things clean! Pool is filthy! 7/18/2016 1:01 PM

164 the only thing that should be done is to convert the pools to a salt water or ozone system. Wellness should be a priority 7/18/2016 12:55 PM

165 fix ac 7/18/2016 12:51 PM

166 the space and amenities are much appreciated 7/18/2016 12:48 PM

53 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



167 more multi sport focus, soccer, futsal, training for athletics and cross fit 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

168 more multi sport focus, soccer, futsal, training for athletics and cross fit 7/18/2016 12:44 PM

169 benches out front for children and people waiting on rides 7/18/2016 12:41 PM

170 Please listen to the small suggestions. Study areas 7/18/2016 12:25 PM

171 Don't want it 7/18/2016 12:22 PM

172 Some elements that are included/excluded may not have come out in the focus groups. Who let them? Who designed
the questionnaire? Not sure it was done properly

7/18/2016 12:20 PM

173 Excellent 7/18/2016 12:16 PM

174 Love indoor pool most important thing to me Like steam room for allergies Simple low maniance scale in the locker
rooms

7/18/2016 12:12 PM

175 HVAC, BASKETBALL GYM, TRACK, LOCKER ROOMS AND SHOWERS NEED TO BE UPDATED AND REPAIRED.
BEYOND THIS I DON'T SEE A NEED.

7/16/2016 6:38 PM

176 The AAC is the most important space to build our sense of community. It enhances our property values. I love the
friendships my daughter has built participating in the children's activities. The AAC was one of the top reasons our
family bought a house in Addison. We need to care for it and enhance it.

7/16/2016 10:41 AM

177 It looks awesome and brings our club a modern athletic club look and feel. 7/16/2016 10:07 AM

178 uncertain most improvements are needed. Improved air and heat makes sense 7/16/2016 9:56 AM

179 Would love the yoga room to be equipped to have a barre class...there are many different types, bar method, pure
barre, etc. but the barre is all the same.

7/16/2016 8:49 AM

180 I suggest paying an small annual fee. I am hearing suggested amounts of about $20 a month = $240 annually
compared to previous 1 time $10 fee. I just dont use the Athletic center enough for an annual $240 fee.

7/15/2016 9:31 PM

181 Do it as soon as possible. It will have to be done eventually and will only get more expensive with time. There will be
criticism and dissatisfaction either way: It will further deteriorate and be outdated, in which case it will no longer be a
real estate sales asset and a community draw, or we will spend money on it and those who don't use it will say it
wasn't money well spent. Bite the bullet, finance it even with increased fees (free is ridiculous and out of date) and
other means and get the whole plan done.

7/15/2016 9:27 PM

182 Thanks to Randy Rogers and his crew for the fantastic job they do with our facilities, programming, and staff at the
AAC!

7/15/2016 6:28 PM

183 Money could be better spent on making Addison a better running, pedestrian and biking riding friendly city. 7/15/2016 4:43 PM

184 The committee should visit Cooper Fitness Center. They have done an excellent job of remodeling [2 years ago, I
think] and maintaining a beautiful and highly functional facility.

7/15/2016 4:37 PM

185 thanks for including us 7/15/2016 4:35 PM

186 I would consider having a monthly due for the club to pay for the upgrades. I do not like the idea of increased tax
simply because once a tax is increased, it never decreases. The issue with the monthly dues is you will need to be
lower than what Crunch fitness charges otherwise you risk losing time members. We are building a "brand" in Addison
with the work along Beltline and art work around town which I think is great. In order to be a destination, Addison has
to separate itself from Plano, Frisco etc.. The upgrades to the AAC will help us in that effort. With the new
development in the old Sam's Club location, it will bring new folks to the area that will want to join the AAC, especially
with the upgrades. That's why I vote for a monthly dues program. Perhaps for the older residents on a fixed income a
sliding scale is the best option.

7/15/2016 4:29 PM

187 This is not the time to take on another $6.5 Million obligation. The Town has several large expenses hanging over it's
head presently, to wit: $6.5 Million obligation to Addison Groves Project $30 Million to finish the Beltline Beautification
Project $?? Million to settle the Water Tower wind charger litigation $??? Million to settle the Farmers Branch Creek
litigation $38 Million to repave Midway Road. "You spend a million here, and a million there, and pretty soon you spent
a dollar or two"

7/14/2016 6:19 PM

188 Suits most of our needs. To ask all of Addison residents to fund a facility that less than .08% use is amazing. 7/14/2016 5:00 PM

189 I'd be much happier paying more if I could get more class options and at the affordable senior rate. 7/14/2016 2:11 PM

190 Despite its being dated, the facility continues to be an Addison jewel. 7/13/2016 5:21 PM

191 I would be happier if they just improved the A/C and added some new equipment in the weight room 7/13/2016 4:24 PM

54 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



192 I look forward to updating the great asset we have, living in Addison. I just hope it will be open during the
construction, so that we can use it, of course.

7/13/2016 3:20 PM

193 I am against spending any additional we do not have in our budget,lets finish the projects that we have already
started.

7/13/2016 12:40 PM

194 Climbing wall would be great Committed space for older kids 7/13/2016 12:14 PM

195 the club is a great asset to the community 7/13/2016 12:13 PM

196 I cannot believe you are taking the last 2 racquetball courts out. You need to keep at least 1. Who was part if your
focus group? A bunch of senior citizans who have no interest in R-ball?Going from 4 to 2 to 0 courts. Come on. Every
time I'm up there in the evenings they are packed. When I come in the afternoons there are courts reserved. So I
know the courts are being used. It is not wasted space the lobby doesn't need to be bigger. Bigger for what so people
can SIT around doing nothing. And a cafe really? What a terrible idea, oh wait it's so people can SIT around do
nothing. You have wasted space where the vending machines are us that for a lounge or cafe. If it ain't broke don't fix
it! I would pay more for membership if you keep the courts. I also take classes up there, use the track, and treadmills.
As I said the courts are almost always full with people waiting get on a court.

7/13/2016 11:59 AM

197 Well planned.-like the idea of game room-should be activities for all ages. Hope monies are approved for all changes
Currently do not used health club-but there's always hope

7/13/2016 11:48 AM

198 Great in terms of increased security -- more centralized front-desk. Will the cost of this plan affect funds available for
hiring a full-time security guard at AAC?

7/13/2016 11:24 AM

199 Such a big improvement. Question: What kind of timeframe is proposed for the changes? All at once? Would AAC be
closed? For how long? What time of year?

7/13/2016 11:13 AM

200 n/a 7/13/2016 9:54 AM

55 / 55

2016 Athletic Club Master Plan



 Addison Athletic Club  

 

19 

 
APPENDIX 2 – COST ESTIMATE DETAIL 
 
 







   
AI-1938     24.             
Work Session and Regular Meeting
Meeting Date: 10/11/2016  
Department: Council

AGENDA CAPTION:
Discussion Regarding The Role Of The City Council In The Consideration
And/Or Approval Of Severance Agreements Between The Town Of Addison
And Town Employees.

BACKGROUND:
Mayor Todd Meier requested that the Addison City Council have a discussion about the
Town's policy related to employee severance agreements.

The City Council appoints four employees: 

City Attorney
City Manager
City Secretary
Municipal Court Judge

Severance arrangements with these appointed officials are typically the purview of the
City Council.

General employees of the Town are under the supervision and authority of the City
Manager as outlined in the Town Charter. Accordingly, severance arrangements with
general employees are typically handled by the City Manager.

Mayor Meier would like to discuss what the City Council's role should be related to
consideration and/or approval of severance agreements for employees.

 

RECOMMENDATION:
Provide policy direction to staff.


	Agenda
	1._Executive Session
	2._Reconvene
	3._ADA Self-Evaluation and Transition Plan
	4._Time Warner Wireless - Hot Spot -  Deployment
	5._Midway Road Update
	7._Minutes
	Att1_Minutes
	8._In-Car Video and Body Camera Systems 
	Att1_Body Cameras Quote
	Att2_In-Car Video Cameras Quote
	9._Rugged Laptops for PD
	Att1_Rugged Panasonic Laptops Quote
	10._FY2017 RAMP Grant
	Att1_Resolution
	11._WaterTower Use Agreement
	Att1_Resolution
	12._Housing Policy Amendments Adoption
	Att1_Housing Policy - Red Line Version
	Att2_Housing Policy Resolution
	13._UDR Sponsorship Agreement 2016-17
	Att1_Resolution
	14._Sutphen SPH-100 Aerial
	Att1_BuyBoard Contract _ -Discount Options
	15._CFBISD Presentation
	16._PEG Channel
	Att1_Resolution
	17._RHSI Project Management and Construction Inspection Services Amendment
	Att1_RSHI Original Contract
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14

	Att2_Resolution and Contract
	18._PUBLIC HEARING Case 1746-Z_Town of Addison - Beer and Wine SUP
	Att1_1746-Z Staff Report
	1746-Z Staff Report
	1746-Z Commission Findings

	Att2_Ordinance
	19._PUBLIC HEARING Case 1745-SUP_Home2 Suites
	Att1_1745-SUP Staff Report
	1745-SUP Map
	1745-SUP Staff Report
	1745-SUP Commission Findings

	Att2_1745-SUP Plans
	Att3_Ordinance
	20._PUBLIC HEARING Case 1748-Z_Tollway Center Caf_
	Att1_1748-Z Staff Report
	1748-Z Map
	1748-Z Staff Report
	1748-Z Commission Findings

	Att2_1748-Z Plans
	Att3_Ordinance
	21._PUBLIC HEARING Case 1738-Z_Trinity Christian Academy
	Att1_1738-Z Staff Report
	1738-Z Map
	1738-Z Staff Report
	1738-Z Land Use Analysis form
	1738-Z Commission Findings
	Addison Place HOA Letter

	Att2_Site Plan
	Att3_Ordinance
	22._Customs and Border Patrol Facility at Addison Airport
	Att1_Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	23._Athletic Club Master Plan Options and Survey Results
	Att1_Report
	24._Severance Agreements

